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VIKAS WSP LIMITED o P
B-86/87, Udyog Vihar, RICO, Industrial Area s

Sriganganagar - 335 002 / INDIA

CIN : L24139HR1988PLC030300 === ) .
E-mail : vikasvegan@yahoo.com, website : www.vikaswspltd.in %'

Telephone :91(154) 2494512/2494552 Fax : 91(154)2494361/2475376

September 08, 2021

To

The General Manager,
Corporate Relation Department,
The Stock Exchange, Mumbai,
P.)J.Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400001

Sub: - Submission of 33 AGM Notice cum Annual Report for F.Y. 2020-2021 of Vikas WSP
Limited

Ref:-Vikas WSP Limited
Scrip Code: - 519307

ISIN No. - INE706A01022

Ref.: - Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015)

Dear Sir/ Madam,

This is to inform you that the 33 Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Thursday, 30" September, 2021 through Video Conferencing / Other Audio
Visual Means (VC/OAVM) to transact the business as set out in the notice convening ‘the

said Annual General Meeting which is e-mailed to the shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, please find attached herewith the Annual
Report of the Company for the financial year 2020-2021 along with the Notice of 33™ Annual
General Meeting. Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report for the Financial year 2020-
2021 is enclosed and ‘is also being sent to all the members of the Company whose email

addresses are registered with the Company or Depository Partmpant(s) The requirement of

g‘g '%,.{) .

Regd. Office : Railway Road, Slwam 125046 (Inﬁa) quslahon’ mg]éosoo 88-89 New Delhi as Plc.



sending physical copy of Notice and Integrated Report to the members has been dispensed

with vide the aforementioned circulars.

The Company is offering e-voting facility to its members to transact the businesses set forth
in the Notice. The facility to exercise vote by electronic means (i.e. e-voting/ e-voting at the
AGM) on all resolutions as set out in the Notice will be provided to the members holding
shares elther in physical or electronic form as on the cut- off date i.e. Thursday, September
23, 2021. The e-voting will commence on Monday, September 27, 2021 at 10:00 A.M. and

will end on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 5.00 P.M. (both days inclusive).

The Annual Report and Notice of 337 Annual General Meeting are also available on the

Company’s website as per following Details.

1. Annual Report- http://vikaswspltd.in/data/shareholder—meeting/agm—ZOZI/Annualf
Report-Vikas-WSP-Limited-2021.pdf

2. Notice of 33™ Annual General Meeting- http://vikaswspltd.in/data/shareholder—
meeting/agm—2021/Notice%200f%20AGM%20—30‘09.2021—
Vikas%20WSP%20Limited.pdf

We request you to take the same on record.
Thanking You,

Yours Faithfully,

For VIKAS WSP mef .
" {J& \‘
8

(Bimla Devi Jindal)
DIN: 00034997,
Director

123, Vinoba Basti,
Sriganganagar, Rajasthan-335001

Encl. A/a , ’



o Water Soluble

No Question about quality...
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on Thursday, 30 September, 202 |
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NOTICE
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 33™ ANNUAL
GEMERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF
VIKAS WS5SP LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON
THURSDAY, THE 20™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER,
2021 AT 11.00 AM. THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING ("VC") / OTHER AUDIO
VISUAL MEANS ("OAVM") WITHOUT THE IN-
PERSON PRESENCE OF SHAREHOLDERS. THE
VENUE OF THE MEETING SHALL BE DEEMED TO
BE THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
AT RAILWAY ROAD, SIWANI, HARYANA-
127046.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

i. TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND THE REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OF THE
AUDITORS THEREON:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalons
Financial Statements of the Company including
Balance Sheet as at March 21, 2021, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in equity
and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021 annexed
with notes to the financial statements with reports
of the Board of Directors ("the Board™) and Auditors
therson be and are hereby considered and
adopted.”

2. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF Mrs.
KAMINI JINDAL (DIN- 05268741), WHO
RETIRES BY ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE,
OFFERS HERSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 20132 and the rules made
thereunder ({including any statutory modification(s)
or resnactment thereof), Mrs. KAMINI JINDAL
(DIN- 05268741), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offered herself for reappointment, be
and is hereby reappointed as a director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”
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3. RE-
AUDITOR

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139,142
and ‘other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, regulation 18 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Fequirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
from time to time or any other law for the time
being in force, and as per the recommendation of
Audit Committee and Board of Directors, Mfs AK
Chadda & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Registration No.: 008683N), who have offered
themselves for re-appointment and have confirmed
their eligibility under the provisions of Chapter X of
the Act read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), be and are
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of 5 (five) years, from the
conclusion of 337 Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the 38 Annual General Meeting and
they shall conduct the Statutory Audit for period
ended 31% March 2022 , 31* March 2023, 3i*
March 2024, 31°t March 2025 & 31°" March 2026
and on such Terms and conditions as mutually
agreed and such remuneration as may be mutually
decided and approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company upon recommendations of the Audit
Committee.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Coempany (including its committee thersof)
and/ or Mr. Gunjan Kumar Kamn, Company
Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby
jointly/severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as in its absolute discretion it may
think necessary, expedient or desirable; to settle
any question or doubt that may arise in relation
thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing
resoluticn and to seek such approval/ consent from
the government departments, as may be reguired
in this regard.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. APPROVAL FOR
TRANSACTIONS.

APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY

RELATED PARTY
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution: -

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of
Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable
Rules under Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 and in terms of applicable
provisions of SEBI (Listing Cbligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 executed with the
Stock Exchanges (including any amendment,
modification or reenactment thereof), consent of
the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the proposed transaction between the
Company and Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited,
Vikas Chemi Gums {India) Limited and Vikas Dall
and General Mills {Partnership firm) (3 related
party) for Sale and Purchase of goods in its
absciute discretion on the terms as agreed/ may be
agreed between Board of Directors and Vikas
Proppant & Granite Limited, Vikas Chemi Gums
(India) Limited and Vikas Dall and General Mills
(Partnership firm) and as briefly mentioned in the
explanatory statement to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company (including its committee thereof)
and/ or Mr. Gunjan Kumar Karn, Company
Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby
jointly/severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as in its absolute discretion it may
think necessary, expedient or desirable; to settle
any gquestion or doubt that may arise in relation
thereto in order to oive effect to the foregoing
resolution and to seek such approval/ consent from
the government departments, as may be reguired
in this regard.”

5. APPOINTMENT OF Mr. PAWAN SINGLA
(DIN: 08913655) AS DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modifications, the following resclution as
Ordinary Resolution :-

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”} and
the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force), and in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company and the
recormmendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors of the Cempany, Mr. Pawan Singla

E-f 2

(DIN: 08913655), who was appeinted as an
Additional Director by the Board of Directors, with
effect from 12™ October, 2020 and whe holds office
up to the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting in terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, and
in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act, from
a member, propoesing: his candidature for the office
of Director of the Company, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation with effect from the date of this
Meeting.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company (including its committee thereof)
andf or Mr. Gunjan Kumar Kam, Company
Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby
jointly/severally authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as in its absolute discretion it may
think necessary, expedient or desirable; to settls
any guestion or doubt that may arise in relation
thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing
resolution and to seek such approval/ consent from
the governmment departments, as may be required
in this regard.”

6. APPOINTMENT OF MANAGING DIRECTOR
Mrs. BIMLA DEVI JINDAL(DIN:- 00034997)

To consider -and, if thought fit to pass with or
without modification{s), the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made there under (including any statutory
madification{s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), read with Schedule Y to the
Companies Act; 2013 and Articles of Association of
the Company and subject to the approval of Central
Government or other Government
authority/agency/board, if any, the consent of the
shareholders of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to appointment of Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal
DIN 00034997 as Managing Director of the
Company for a period of five years with effect from
01% Qctober 2021 to 20" September 2026 liable to
retire by rotation.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Ack, 2013
and the rules made thersunder ({including any
statutory modification{s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association
of the Company and subject to the approval of

Annual Regort 2020-21 I-E




Central Government or other Government
authority/agency/board, if any, approval of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to pay the
remuneration in accordance with the industry
standard and within the prescribed limits as set in
Companies Act 2013 to Mrs. Bimla Dewi Jindal,
Managing Director of the Company, the details of
which are given in the Explanatory Statement
annexed hereto.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company or any committee thereof be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and
things as in its absolute discretion it may think
necessary, expedient or desirable; to settle any
guestion or doubt that may arise in refation thereto
in order to give effect to the foregoing resclution
and to seek such approval/ consent from the
government departments, as may be reguired in
this regard”.

Registered Office By order of the Board

Railway Road Bimla Devi Jindal
Siwani Harvana -127046 Chairman and Director
CIN:- DIN:- 000324997
L24139HR1288PLCO30300 123, Vinoba Basti,
Email Id:- Sriganganagar 335001
Eogmail.com

Place: Siwani
Date: 07.09.2021

NOTES

1, The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant
to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
in respect of Special Business at the meeting, is
annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

2. Information regarding particulars of the
Director to be appointed and the Director
sesking appointment/ re-appointment as
reqguired under FRegulation 36 of the
SEBI{Listing Obligations and  Disclosure
Requirements} Regulations, 2015 {"Listing
Regulations™) and Secretarial Standards-2 on
General Meetings are also annexed as
Annexure-4 and the explanatory statement
pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, are annexed hereto. The directorships
held by the Directors considered for the
purpose of disclosure does not include the
directorships held in foreign companies. The
Committes chairmanships/memberships
considered for the purposes of disclosure are
those prescribed under Regulation 18 8 20 of
SEBI (Listing Obligatons and Disclosure
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Requirements) Regulations, 2015 viz. Audit and
Risk Management Committes and Stakeholders’
Belationship Committes respectively of Indian
public limited companies.

In view of the outbreak of COVID-12 pandemic
and its continuation in the current year, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the "MCAT"),
Government of India, has vide its General
Circular Mo, 14/ 2020 dated 8th Aprl 2020,
General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated 13th April
2020, in relation to "Clarification on passing of
ordinary and special resolutions by companies
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder on account of the threat
posed by Covid-12", General Circular No. 20/
2020 dated 5th May 2020, in relaton to
"Clarification on holding of annual general
meesting (AGM) through video conferencing
(WC) or other audio visual means [(DAYM)" and
General Circular No. 02/ 2021 dated 13th
January 2021, in relation to “Clarification on
holding of annual general meeting (AGM)
through video conferencing (VC) or other audio
visual means (CAVM]" (collectively referred to
as “MCA Circulars™) and Securities and
Exchange Board of India wvide Circular No.
SEBI/HO/ CED/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/7¢ dated
12th May 2020, in relation to "Additional
refaxation in relation te compliance with certain
provisicns of SEBT (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements] Regulations 2015 -
Covid-12  pandemic”™ and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th
January 2021, in relation to "Relaxation from
compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 due to the
COVID -19 pandemic™ [collectively raferred to
as "SEBI Circulars™ have permitted the holding
of the Annual General Meeting (TAGM"™) threugh
Video Conferencing {"VC")/Other Audio Visual
Means ("OAVM™), without the physical presence
of the Members at a common wvenue. In
compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act™) (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) read with Rule 20 of
the Companies {Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 {the "Rules™), as
amended from time to time, read with the MCA
Circulars, SEBI Circulars and pursuant fo
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("Listing Regulations™), the Annual General
Meeting ("AGMT™) of the Company is scheduled

6
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to be held on Thursday, 30th September 2021,
at 11:00 A.M. (IST) through VC/OAVM and the
voting for items to be transacted in the Motice
to this AGM is only through remote electronic
voting process (Te-Voting™). The deemed venue
for the 33rd AGM will be Hisar Road, Siwani -
12704¢, Haryana.

4, As the AGM shall be conducted through VC /
OAVM, the facility for appointment of Proxy by
the Members is not available for this AGM and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip
including Route Map are not annexed to this
Motice.

5. Corporate members intending to send their
authorized representatives to attend the AGM
pursuant to Sectionm 113 of the Act are
requested to send to the Company, a certified
copy (in PDF/ JPG Format) of the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc,
authorizing its representatives to attend the
AGM, by e-mail to cavipinsri@gmail.com with a
copy marked to the Company at

RTA at epotices@linkintime.co.in .

Process for dispatch of Annual Report and
registration of email id for obtaining copy of
Annual Report

6. In compliance with the aforementioned MCA
and SEBI Circulars, MNotice of the AGM alonag
with the Annual Report 2020-2021 is being sent
anly through electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the
Company / Depository Participant. Members
may note that the MNotice and Annual Report
2020-2021 will also be available on the
Company’'s website  www.vikaswspltd.in
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE
Limited at www.bseindia,com.

7. Members holding shares in physical mode who
have still not registered their email ID with the
Company can temporarly get their email IDs
registered with the Company's Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents, Link Intime India Pvt
Ltd, by using the link:
https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/email register
itml and Members holding shares

in dematerialized mode are reguested fo
register / update their email addresses with the
relevant Depository Participants.

8. Members seeking any information with regard
to any matter to be placed at the AGM, are

i

requested to write to the Company through an

Procedure for joining the 23rd AGM
through VC / OAVM

2. Link Intime will be providing facility for voting
through remote e-Voting, for participation in
the 33rd AGM through VYC/0AVM fadility and e-
Voting during the 33rd AGM,

10. Members may note that the VC/OAVM facility,
allows participation of at least 1,000 Members
on a first come-first-served basis.

11. Members are entitled to attend the Annual
General Mesting through VC/OAVM provided by
Link Intime by following the below menticned
process. Facility for joining the Annual General
Meeting through WVC/0aVM shall open 15
minutes before the time scheduled for the
Annual General Meeting and will be available to
the Members on first come first serve basis.

Members will be provided with Insta Meet
facility wherein Member shall register their
detzils and attend the Annual General Meeting
as under:

Process and manner for attending the Annual
General Meetin 0 n t:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL:
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

» Select the "Company” and "Event Date’ and register
with your following details: -

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No:Enter vour 16 digit
Demat Account No. or Folio Mo
# Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL
demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary
ID
* Sharsholders/ members heiding shares In NSDL
demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit Client ID
# Sharsholders/ members holding sharss in physical
form shall provide Folic Number registersed with the
Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Mumber
(FaN] [(Members who have not updated their PaN
with the Depository Participant (DPY
Company shall use the sequence number provided to
vaou, if applicable.

C. Mobile No.: Enter vour mobile number,

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with vour
DF/ Company.

»Click "Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for

InstaMeet and your attendance 15 marked for the
meetng),

Annual Regort 2020-21 I-E
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Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to
3 X duri ti ; G | Meeti
through Insta Meet:

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during
the meeting must register their request 3 days
in advance with the company on the specific
email id created for the general meeting.

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum
first basis depending upon the provision made
by the dient.

3, Shareholders will recsive "speaking serial
number” once they mark attendance for the
mesting.

4, ©Other shareholder may ask guestions to the
panellist, via actve chat-board during the
meeting.

5, Please remember speaking serial number and
start vour conversation with panellist by
switching on videc mede and audic of vour
device.

Shareholders are requested to speak only when
meoderator  of the mesting/ mapagement will

announce the name and serial number for speaking,

Vote during the Annual General Meeting
through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic woting is activated by the
scrutinizer/  moderator  during  the meeting,
sharsholders/ members who have not exercised

their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the
vote as under:

1. On the Sharsholders VC page, click on the link
for e-Voting "Cast your vote”

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account MNo. / Folio
Mo. and OTP {received on the registered mobile
number/ registered email Id) received during
registration for InstaMEET and click on "'Submit’.

3. After successful login, you will see "Resolution
Description™ and against the same the option
*Favour/ Against” for voting.

4. ‘Cast your voie by selecting appropriate option
i.e. "Favour/Against™ as desired. Enter the
number of shares (which represents no. of
votes) as on  the cut-off date wunder
‘Favour/Against’.

5, After selecting the appropriate option l.e.
Favour/Against as desired and wyou have
decided to vote, click on "Save”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm
your vote, click on "Confirm®, else to change

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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your vote, click on "Back”™ and accordingly
modify your vote.

6. Once you confirm your voke on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to medify or change
your vote subsegquently.

Note: Sharcholders/ Members, who will be present
in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMest
facility and have not casted their wvote cn the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible
to wvote through e-Voting facility during the
meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted
through Remote e-Voting pror te the Annual
General Mesting will be eligible toc attend/
participate in the Annual General Meeting through
InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote
again during the mesting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the
Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected
through broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are reguired to  use
Intermet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS
download stream) to avoid any disturbance during
the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting
from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in  their
network., It is therefore recommended to use
stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind
of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any gueries
regarding fogin/ e-voting, they may send an email
to instameet@linkintime.co.inor contact on: - Tel:
022-49186175,

InstaMeet Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited

post chanage in the Login mechanism for
ivi r i iti i

demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular dated
December 9, 2020:

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020
on =-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode can vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants only post 9 June, 2021.

H
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Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access e-

Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders helding securities in demat modse/ physical mode is given below:

Type of Sharesholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with
NSDL

+ If you are already registered for NSDL ID=AS faolity, please visit the e-Services
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.comeither on @ Personal Computer or on @ mobile. Once
the home paage of e-Services is [sunched, click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon
under "Login” which is avallable onder "IDedAS’ section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID and Password.

+  After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Chck on
"fccess to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and yvou will ke able to see =-Voting
page. Chck on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting service prowvider website for casting yvour vote during the
remote e-Voting penod or joining virtual mesting & voting during the meeting.

+  Ifthe user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 15 available at
https;/fe=senvices.nadl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl. com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

*  \isit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
"Login™ which is available under "Shareholder/Member" section. & new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP-and a Vernfication Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can ses e-Voting page. Click .on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and vou will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-\Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & vobing during the meeking,

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with
CDSL

+  Ewisting user of who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they cam login through their
user 1d and password. Option will be made avalable to reach e-Voting page
without any further authenbication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https:/'web.cdslindia. com/mveasi'homellogin or www.cdslindiz.com and click on
Mew System Myeasi.

+  After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E
Vobting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider ie. NSDL,
KARVY, LINK INTIME, CDSL. Click on e-Voting service provider name o cast your
vobe.

« If the user 15 not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register i= available at
btkps:/fweb.cdslindiz.com/myeasi/Registration/Eazifegistration

+ Afternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by prowviding demat
Account Mumber and PAN from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Emall as
recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP where the E Voting is in progress.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding securities
in demat mode) &
login through their

*  You can also login using the legin credentials of vour demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vobing facility,

* Once login, vou will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or

depository e-\oting service provider name and you will be redirected to =-Voting service

participants provider website for casting your wote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting dunng the meeting.

Individual

Shareholders 1, Open the intemet browser and launch the URL: hitps://instavote.inkintime.co.n

holding securities in

H-f &
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Physical mode & |»* Click on “Sign Up” under "SHARE HOLDER® tab and reqister with your following

evoting service | details: -

Provider is

LINKINTIME. A. User ID: Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall
provide Event Mo + Folio Number registered with the Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN] {(Members who have
not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)S Company shall use
the seguence number provided to vou, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As
recorded with your DP / Company - in DDSMMYYYY format)

. Bank Account Number: Enter vour Bank Account Number (last four digits), as
recorded with vour DR/Company.

*  Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded
'C" and "D, shall provide their Folio number in 'D' above

» Set the password of your choice (FThe password should contzn minimum 8
characters, at {east one specigl Character (@!=%2&%), at least one numeral, at
least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

»  Chck "confirm” (Your password is now generated).

2. Click on "Login’ under "SHARE HOLDER' tab.

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verfication (CAPTCHA) Code and click
on "Submit’.

4. After successful login, vou will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select
"Wiew' icon.

5. E-voting page will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired
option "Favour / Against’ (If vou wish to view the entire Resolution details, click
on the "View Resolution” file link).

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on “Submit’. A
confirmation box will be displayed. IF you wish to confirm vour vote, click on
"Yes', else to change your vote, click on 'No” and accordingly modify your vota.

Institutional shareholders: * Shareholders/ members can set the password

Institutional shareholders  (i.e. other than of his/her choice by providing the information

[ndividuals, HUF, MRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on the e-voting system of LIIPL at
https://instavote.linkintime.co.inand register
themselves as "Custodian / Mutwal Fund /
Corporate Body'. They are also required to upload
a scanned certified true copy of the board
resolution fauthority letter/power of attorney etc,
together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorised repressntative(s) in PDF format in
the "Custodian / Mutwal Fund / Corporate
Body' login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
Physical mode 8 evoting service Provider is
LINKINTIME, have forgotten the password:

o Click on "Login® under "SHARE HOLDER' tab
and further Click “forgot password?’

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image
Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on
"Submit’.

» In case shareholders/ members is having wvalid

email address, Password will be sent to his /
her registered e-mail address.

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21

about the particulars of the Security Question
and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account
Mumber (last four digits) etc. as mentioned
above,

« The password should contain minimum 8
characters, at least one special character
(@I#£8*), at least one numeral, at least one
alphabet and at least one capital letter,

Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten
the password:

= Shareholders/ membsers who are unable to
retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option
available at abovementioned depository/
depository participants website,

» It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and
take wtmost care to keep your password
confidential.

* For shareholders/ members holding shares
in physical form, the details can be used

B
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only for voting on the resolutions contained
in this Notice.

# During the wvoting pericd, sharsholders/
members can login any number of time till
they have voted on the resolution(s) for a
particular "Event”,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in
demat mode haveany technical issues related to
login through Depository i.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they
may contact the respective helpdesk given below:

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individusal Shareholders holding
secunties in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing anv technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
sending & request at  evoting@nsdl.co.nor call at toll free no,: 18300 1020 950
and 1800 2Z 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding
secunties in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing anv technical issue in login can contact COSL helpdesk by
sending a reguest at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or conmtact at 022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding

shareholders& evoting service Provider is

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and

LINKINTIME,

In case sharehelders/ members holding securities in
physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any
gueries regarding e-voting, they may refer the

InstaVote Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited

Registered Office
Railway Road

Siwani Haryana -127046
CIN:-
L24139HR19BBPLCO30300
Email Id:-
csgunjanvikaswsplid 1984
@gmail.com

By order of the Board

Bimla Devi Jindal
Chairman

and Director

DIM:- 0334997

123, Vinoba Basti,
Sriganganagar 335001

Place: Siwani
Date: 07.09.2021

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
20132

The following Explanatory Statements, as required
under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, set
out all material facts relating to the business under
Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice

ITEM NO. 4
The Companies Ackt, 2013 aims to ensure
transparency in the transactions and dealings

between the related parties of the Company. The
provisions of Section 18B{1) of the Companies Act,
2013 that govern the Related Party Transactions,
requires that for entering into any confract or
arrangement as mentioned herein below with
following related party,

E-f 8

InstaVote e-Voting manwal available at
https://instavote linkintime.co.ln, under  Help
section or send an email to
enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: -
Tal: 022 - 49186000.

(i) Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited
(i} Vikas Chemi Gums(India) Limited
(iii) Vikas Dall and General Mills (Partnership firm)

the Company must obtain prior approval of the
Board of Directors and in case the transaction value
exceeds the limit specified in the act, prior approval
of the sharsholders by way of a Special Resolution
must be obtained:

1. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or
materials;

2. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying,

property of any kind:

Leasing of property of any kind;

Availing or rendering of any services;

Appointment of any agent for purchases or sale

of goods, materials, services or property:

6. Such related party’s appointment to any office
of place of profit in the Company, its subsidiary
Company or associate Company and

7. Underwriting the subscription of any securities
or derivatives thereof, of the Company.

il

In the light of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors of your Company has
approved the proposed transactions aleng with
annual limit that your Company may enter into with
the related parties (as defined under section 2{7&)
of the Companies Ack, 2013)

ITEM NG. 5

Appointment of Mr. Pawan Singla {DIN: 08813655)
as Director of the Company Mr, Pawan Singla (DIN:
08213655) was appointed as an Additional Director

Annual Regort 2020-21 I-E




in the capacity of Executive Director of the
Company, by Board directors at its meeating held on
12" October 2021 under Section 161 of the Act and
in accordance with the Article of Association of the
Company and pursuant to the recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

In terms of Section 1561 (1) of the Companies Act
2013, of Mr. Pawan Singla (DIN: 089132655) holds
office as an Additional Director enly up to the date
of the forthcoming Annual General Mesting and is

SVHEAS o

and the rules made there under (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association
of the Company and subject to the approval of
Central Government or other Government
authority/agency/board, if any, company wants to
appoint Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal as Managing Director
of the Company for 3 years i.e. commencing from
01* October 2021 to 30™ September 2026 liable to
retire by rotation.

eligible for appointment as a Director,

Mr. Pawan Singla {DIN: 08913655) is interested in
the Resolutions mentioned at Item No. 5 of the
Motice. Other tham Mr. Pawan Singla {(DIN:
08213655), no other Director, Key Managerial
Persopnel  or  their respective  relatives  are
concerned or interested in  the resclutions
mentioned at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

As a ‘Promoter and Director, Mrs. Birmla Devi Jindal
has a vast knowledge and experience in the field of
Guar Gum industry. The teams and remuneration of
the managing Director will be as per the policy laid
down by Momination and Remuneration Committee
l.e. Nomination and Remuneration Palicy.

The remuneration will be in terms of provisions of
company act, 2013 and cther applicable provisions
in this regards.

Registered Office

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act, the approval of the Members is sought for the

appointment of Mr. Pawan Singla (DIN: 08913655) By order of the

as Executive Director as set cut above. Railway Road Board
The Beoard of Directors recommends the resolution {SZ]I\LE_T' R~ 1L FEE Bimla Devi
at Item MNo. 5 of this Motice for the approval of the L2941 30H4R1088PLC030300 Jindal
members : :
Email Id:- Chairman
ITEM No. 6 csaunianvikaswspltd1984 and Director
Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal is the promoter Director of @gmail.com DIN:- 00034587

123, Vinoba Basti,
Sriganganagar
335001

the Company. He has been serving as a director of
the Cempany since 2005. Now pursuant to the
provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Place: Siwani
Date: 07.09.2021

Annexure-A

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
(Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards-2 on Ganeral Meetings)

1. Details of Mrs. Kamini Jindal

“Name of the Director Kamini Jindal
_Date of birth. 16-06-1983
Date of Appointment 16-07-2012

Master of Art and Master of Philosophy.

Mrs. Kamini Jindal, belonging to promoter group is an Executive
Director in the Company. She has been appointed by the Board in
2012, Ms., Kamini Jindal 1= a person with excellent academic
background and possesses good educational gualificabions.. She
iz the youth diva in the board of the Company. She is the
daughter of Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal and Bimia Dewvi Jindal,
from her childhood she has taken keen interest in the warking of
the VIKAS. Her long term associgton with Guar Gum Industry
has brought immense value to the board.

Qualification
Experience in Specific functional areas

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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No. of Eguity Shares held i the Company as on | 5000
March 31, 2021
Terms & Conditions of reappointment &s per Company's Appointment and Remuneration Policy
Remunsration fast drawn during the vear FY 2020- | Nil

2021 (Rs. in lakhs]

Mo. of meetings of Board sftended duning the vear i&
Directorship held in other Companiss as on March 31, | 1 (Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited)
2021

Relationship with any other director inter-se and | Daughter of Mrs, Bimla Dew Jindal (Director}
KMPs of the Company
Mames of listed entities in which the persen also holds | Director of Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited
the directorship and the membership of Commitizes
of the board Membzr of Nomination and remuneration committee, Risk
Management Commitiee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee in Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited

2. Details of Mrs. Pawan Singla

Mame of the Director Pawan Singla

Date of birth 01-01-1960

Date of Appointmant 12-10-2020

Qusalhification E.A.

Experience in Specific functional areas Having an expersnce of 05 years in the field of Guar Gum

Mo. of Equity Shares held in the Company as an March 31, | Nil

2021

Terms & Conditions of reappointmeant Az per Company s Appointment and Remunaration Policy

Remuneration last drawn durmg the year FY 2020-2021 | Wil

(Rs. in lakhs)

to. of meetings of Board attended during the vear 16

Directorship held in other Companies as on March 31, 2021 | 1 (Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited)

Relationship with any other director inter-se and KMPs of | No any

the Company

Mames of hsted entities in which the person also holds the | Director of Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited

directorship and the membership of Committees of the | Member of Risk Management Committee and

board as on 31.03.2021 Corporate Social Responsibifity Committee in Vikas
Proppant & Granite Limited

3. Details of Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal

Name of the Director Bimla Devi Jingal

Date of birth 16-12-1957

Drate of Appointmant 10-06-2005

Qualification Bachelor’'s Degree in-Commerce.

Experience in Specific funcbional areas She belongs to & leading Guar Gum Industrighst family. Her

long t=rm expsrience and associstion with Guar Gum
industry is helping and enlightening the glory paths of

VIKAS.
Mo. of Equity Shares keld in the Company as on March 31, | 1,27,74,832
2018
Terms & Conditions of reappointment Az per Company s Appointment and Remuneration Policy
Remunsration last drawn during the year FY 2020-2021 | il
(As. in lakhs)
Mo. of mestings of Board attended during the year 16

Directorship held in other Companies &5 on March 31, 2021 | 1 [Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited)
Relationship with any other director inter-se and KMPs of | Mother of Mrs. Kamini Jindal

the Company
Mames of ‘listed entitizs in which the person also holds the | Director of Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited

directorship and the membership of Committees of the | Member of Audit Committee, Chairperson of Risk

board Management Commititee and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee in Vikas Froppant & Granits
Limited

H_i 10 Annual Repart 2020-2 I.E




Dear Shareholders,

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Standalone Financial Highlights (IGAAP)

SVHEAS o

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors present the 33 Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company, together
with the Audited Annual Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

In compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, (Listing Regulations), the Company has prepared its standalone financial
statements as per Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (IGAAP) for the F.¥Y. 2020-2021. The
Standalone financial highlights of the Company operations are as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Revenue from operations 22,161.33 75,762.81
Other Income T D.00 0.08
Total Income 22,161.33 75,762.89
Total expenditure 33,000.494 73,842.51
Finance cost 3,101.22 416.27
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3,437.28 3,435.45
Profit before tax {10,820.11) 1,020.38
Exceptional Items - -

Profit after Exceptional Items (10,839.11) 1,220.38
Tax expenses 613.29 -214.45

" Profit After Tax (11,452.39) 2,134.83

[ Other Comprehensive Income 51608  -1aage
Profit for the year (10,935.41) 1,990.04

2. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

The highlights of affairs of the Company are as
follows:-

= PRevenue from operations decreased from
Rs. 75,762.81 Lacsto Rs. 22,151.33 Lacs.

= Profit before Tax decreased from Profit of
Bs. 1,820.38 Llacs to Lloss of Rs,
{10,832.11) Lacs.

« Net Profit decreased from a Profit of Rs.
1,920.04 Lacs to a net Loss of Rs.
{10,935.41) Lacs.

3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

The Company has not transferred any amount
to the General Reserve for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021.

4. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors (the "Board™) has not
recommended any dividend for the financial
yvear ended March 31, 2021,

5. SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, there was no change in the
Company's issued, subscribed and paid-up
eguity share capital as on March 31, 2021, it

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21

stood at Rs. 20,44,39,600 divided into
20,44,39,500 equity shares of Re.1 each.

REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

MNone of Financial Statements of the Company,
pertaining to previous financial vears were
revised during the financial year under review.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year ended March 31,
2021, 16 (Sixteen) meetings of the Board of
Birectors were held as against the statutory
minimum reguirement of 4 (Four) meetings as
per provision of Section 173 of Companies Act,
2012 and Secretarial Standard. None of the two
Board Meetings have a gap of more than 120
days between them. The dates of board
meeting are mentioned below:

5. | Types of | Date
| No. | Meeting

| L. Board Meeting | 18.06.2020
| 2. Board Meeting | 26.06.2020
| 3. | Board Meeting | 14.07.2020
| 4. | Board Meeting | 20.07.2020

Board Meeting | 02.09.2020
Board Meeting | 07.09.2020

:HI-E
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7. | Board Meeting | 11.09.2020
3. Board Meeting | 12.10.2020
a. Board Meeting | 13.10.2020

| 10. | Board Meeting | 31.10.2020
11. | Board Meefing | 09.11.2020
12. | Board Meeting | 18.11.2020
13, | Board Meeting | 27.11.2020
14. | Board Mesting | 22.01.2021
15. | Board Meeting | 18.03.2021
16. | Board Mesting | 31.03.2021

For other details of Board Meetings and

committee meetings, members may refer to the
Corporate Govemance Report  attached
separately to this report.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD AND NUMBER OF
BOARD COMMITTEES

The Committees of the Board foous on certain
specific areas and make informed decisions in
line with the delegated authority. The following
Committees constituted by the Board function
according to their respective roles and definaed
SCope:

1. Audit Committee
2. MNomination and remuneration committee.
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
4, Risk Management Committee
5. Corporate
Committee

All the recommendations made by Committees
of Board including the Audit & Risk Management
Committee were accepted by the Board. A
detailed update on the Board, its composition,
detailed charter incduding terms and reference
of various Board Committees, number of Board
and Committes mestings held during F.¥. 2020-
2021 and attendance of the Directors at each
meeting is provided in the Report on Corporate
Governance, which forms part of this Report.

DISCLOSURE ON AUDIT COMMITTEE

Vikas WSP Limited has a qualified and
independent Audit Committes. During the year
under review there was no change in the
composition of Audit Committee.

The Company complies with the provisions
refated to Audit Committese and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, The composition of the
Audit Committee as on March 21, 2020 is as
under:

Social Responsibility (CSR7

s. Name of | DIN Category
No. | Committee

members
1, Mrs, Kamim | 05268741 | Execubve

10.

11.

lp

Jindal Director,
Member
2. Mr. Meera] | 06467182 | Non-Executive -
Chhabra Independent
Dhrectar,
Member
3. Mr. Ram Awtar | 02303734 | Mon-Execubtive -
Mittal Independent
Director,
Chairperson

All Members of the Committee are financially
literate. For more details thereof kindly refer to
the section "Committees of the Board - Audit
Committee’, in the Corporate Govermance
Report.

The Committee has adequate powers to play an
effective role as reguired under the provisions
of the Act and Listing Regulations. During the
year under review, the Board of Directors of the

Company had accepted all the
recommendatons of the Audit Committee.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE B NOMINATION AND

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act,

2013, the MNomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship
Committee constituted by the Board of

Directors to deal with the matters as specified
in the reference given to the respective
committees.

The details of roles, powers and meetings of the
Committees held during the financial yvear under
review along with attendance of members
thereof and status of grievances received from
various stakeholders during the financial year
are furnished in the Corporate Govemnance
Report Section of the Board” Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is embedded in Vikas WSP
Limited operating framework. The Company
believes that managing risks goes hand-in-hand
with maximizing returns. To this effect there is
a robust process in place to identify key risks
across the Group and prioritize relevant action
plans to mitigate these risks, Risk Management
framework is reviewed periadically by the Board
and the Audit & Risk Management Committes,
which includes discussing the management
submissicns on risks, prioritizing key risks and
approving acton plans to mitigate such risks.

The Company has a duly approved Risk
Management Policy. The objective of this policy
is to have a well-defined approach to risk. The
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13.

14.

Policy lays broad guidelines for the appropriate
authority so as to be able to do timely
identification, assessment and prioritization of
risks affecting the Company in the short and
foreseeable future, The Policy suggests framing
an appropriate response action for the key risk
identified, so as to make sure that risks are
adequately compensated or mitigated.

The Intermal Audit function is responsible to
assist the Audit & Risk Management Committes
on an independent basis with a full status of the
risk assessments and management.

Operationally, risk is being managed at the top
level by Management Boards and at operating
level of Executive Committee of circles in India.

Petalled discussion on Risk Management forms
part of Management Discussion & Analysis
under the section "Risks and Concems’, which
forms part of this Annual Report, At present, in
the opinion of the Board of Directors, there are
no risks which may threaten the existence of
the Company.

CORPORATE
(CSR)

The Company did not made any provision for
CSE in the Reported financial year 2020-2021
due to financial losses. However, the
management is already under process to
implement a medical education facility in the
local area and the earlier year CSR Amount will
be used in this program. The Current years
calculation sheet for CSR amount is annexed as
Annexure-I toe this report.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Demand for Guar Gum is increasing in the
food segment. The Company’s RE&ED s
constantly involved in developing new guar
products for food and other industrial
applications for the effective control of

processing problems and the same is conducive
in expanding global guar polymers market,
International market for certified organic guar
polymer is also increasing. Taking all these
prospects together, the demand for guar
polymers is bound to increase in the years
ahead. So the future prospects are expected to
be better.

DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION PAID TO
MANAGING OR WHOLE TIME DIRECTORS

There is no commission paid or payable by vour
company to the Managing Director or the whole
time director.

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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SINTERNATIONAL QUALITY STANDARDS

AND THEIR CERTIFICATIONS-

(A} An IS0 9001:2000 - Certified Company-

100% EQUs of the Company have been certified
as IS0 2001:2000 by DNY - a MNorvagian
Company. So the Company is meebing all the
guality control parameters as set ouk by DNV,

{(B) Hazards Analysis of Critical Control Points

(HACCP)-

The products manufactured by the Company
are also used in the food production as
thickening and binding agent. The end
customers of the Company are multinational
(MNC's) food producers’ viz, Meste (Friskies),
Mars (Master Food)l, Heinz, Sara lee, Unilever,
and CSM. To source their key raw materials,
these MNC's prefer HACCP certified vendors.
Employing HACCP in the production system one
can check the following contaminations:

Physical

Chemical

Microbial

{C) Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP)

16.

17.

Company’s 100% EOUs are certified WHO Good
Manufacturing Practices (WHO-GMP). Guar
Polymers produced using GMP is included in the
Food Chemical Codex (FCC) and approved for
food wuse. Therefore, GMP ensures the
customers that the products are manufactured
in good and hygienic conditions.

DIRECTORS

At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mrs.
Kamini Jindal {DIN:- 05268741), Director of
the Company is liable to retire by rotation in
accordance with the provisions of Section 152
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Articles of Association of the Company and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
as director in 32rd AGM of the Company. The
Board of Directors recommended  the
reappointment for the consideration for the
shareholders in ensuring AGM.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provision of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has alse
the designated key managerial personnel of the
Company. The Key Managerial Personnel {KMP)
in the Company as per Secton 2{51) and 203
of the CnmpaniEE Act, 2013 are as follows:

Mr. Gun]an !{umar "Eumpany Secretary
Karn
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Mr. Bayrang Dass | Chairman cum  Maraging
Aggarwal Director™
Mr. Umesh Bansal Chief Financial Officer

| {Resigned as on 31.03.2021)
{Chief Fnangal Officer {Appaintment
w.ef. 4.05.2021 and resgned with
wef 1382021

Mrs. Privanka Bindra

18.

19.

= Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal expired as on
21.09.2020

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no significant  events, changes
occurred between the end of the financial vear
and till the date of this report which would
materially affect the financial position of the
Company.

BOARD EVALUATION

The board of directors has carried ocut an annual
evaluation of its own performance, board
committees and individual directors pursuant to
the provisions of the Act and the corporate
governance requirements as prescribed by
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations™).

The performance of the board was evaluated by
the board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the
board compositon and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and
functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was

evaluated by the board after seeking inputs
from the committee members on the basis of

the criteria such as the composition of
committees, effectivensss of  committes
meetings, etc.

The board and the nomination and
remuneration committes reviewed the

performance of the individual directors on the
basis of the criteria such as the contribution of
the individual director to the beard and
committee meetings like preparedness on the
issues to be discussed, meaningful and
constructive  contribution  and  inputs in
meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent directors,

performance  of non-independent  directors,
performance of the board as a whole and
performance of the chairman was evaluated,
taking inte account the views of executive
directors and non-executive directors. The
same was discussed in the board meeting that

20.

21.

22,

followed the meeting of the independent
directors, at which the performance of the
board, its committees and individual directors
was also discussed. Performance evaluation of
independent directors was done by the entire
board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated.

DECLARATION
DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from all
Independent Directors of the Company
cenfirming that they continue to meet with the
criteria of independence, as prescribed under
Cection 149 of the Companies Act, 20132 and
Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulaticns. The
Independent Directors have also confirmed that
they have complied with the Company's cede of
conduct.

BY INDEPENDENT

The Board of Directors of the Company consists
of four independent Directors namely

(i) Sh. Neeraj Chhabra
(i) Sh. Ram Awtar Mittal
(i) Sh. Kishan Lal

The above three Directors of the Company gave
statement pursuant teo section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 at the Board Meeting held
on June 18, 2020 for the year 2020-2021. The
same was considered and approved by the
Board, The Statements s  annexed as
Annexure-II to this report.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

The Company has convened and held a
separate mesting of Independent Director on
26.06.2020, 07.02.2020, 31.12.2020,
22.01.2021 & 321.03.2021 during the period
under review.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The Company sktrives to  maintain an
appropriate combination of executive, non-
executive and independent Directors subject to
Minimum of 3 and Maximum of 12 Directors
including at least one Women Director in
compliance with the legal reguirements.

The Momination and Remuneration Committee
of the Company leads the process for Board
Appointment in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI
(Listing Regulations and Disclosure
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Requirements] Regulations, 2015 and other
applicable regulations or policy guidelines.

During the previous year under review the
Company has adopted the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMPs and
Other Employees. The policy is available on
website of the Company i.e.
www, vikaswspltd.in . The Nomination and
Remuneration policy of the Company is
attached in Annexure III to this Report.

23. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 92 and Section
134(3) {a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of Companies {Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the extracts of
Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-2
is annexed herewith as Annexure-IV to this
report. An extract of the annual return of the
Company has been placed on the website of the
Company and «can be  accessed  at
http:/ vikaswspltd.in/data/shareholder-meeting/
agm-2021/MGET-2-VikasSL20WSPS20Limited-2021.,
pdf

24. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

AMALYSIS REPORT

In terms of Regulation 34(21(e) of SEBI {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule V
thereto, Management Discussion and Analysis
Report has been appended separately, which
forms part of this Report and the Annual Report
as Annexure-V,

25. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is the application of best
Management Practices, Compliance of Laws in
true letter and spirit and adherence to ethical
standards for effective management and
distribution of wealth and discharge of social
responsibility for sustainable development of all
stakehciders i.e. shareholders, management,
employees, customers, vendors, regulators

and the community at large. Your company
places prime importance on reliable financial
information, integrity, transparency,
empowerment and compliance with the faw, in
letter and spirit,

The regulators have also smphasized on the
requirement of good corporate governance
practices in corporate management. Your
Company also takes proactive appreach and
revisits its governance and practices from time
to time so as to mest business and regulatcry
reguirements.
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At Vikas WSP Limited, Corporate Governance is
more 3 way of business than a mere legal
cbligation. Besides complyving with the
prescribed Corporate Governance practices as
per the Listing Regulations the Company has
voluntarily adopted wvarious practices of
governance confirming to highest ethical and
responsible. standard of business, globally
benchmarked.

Compliance of Corporate Governance provisions
of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 for the year 2018-2019 has been provided
in the Corporate Governance Report.

A Certificate from M/s Privam & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary of the Company,
confirming compliance of Corporate
Governance, as stpulated under the Listing
Regulations, is annexed as Annexure-VI to
this report.

Ceriificate of the CFO, inter-alia, confirming the
correctness  of the financial statements,
cempliance with Company’s Code of Conduct,
adequacy of the internal control measures and
reporting of matters to the auditors and the
Audit committee in terms of Regulation 17 of
the Listing Regulations is attached in the
Corporate Governance report, and is annexesd
as Annexure-VII to this report.

The Ceorporate Governance Report, inter-alia,
contains the following disclosures:

a} Details of Beard & Committee Meetings

b)Y Composition of Sustainability & Corporate
Social Responsibility Committes

c} Whistle Blower Policy {Vigil Mechanism}

d} Appointment 8% Remuneration Policy (for
Directors, Key Managerial Personngl, Senior
Management and other Emplovees of the
Company) pursuant te the provision of
Section 178 of the Act read Regulation 19
of the Listing Regulations)

&) Performance Evaluation criteria of the
Board, its Committees & individual Directors

DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3)(c) read with Secton
134(5), your directors state that the audited
financial statements of the Company for the
financial year 2020-2021 are in full conformity
with the reguirements of the Companies Act,
2013 and have been audited by its Statutory
Auditors.

Your directors further state that: -
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27.

28.

29.

I} 1In the preparation of the annual accounts for
the yvear-ended March 31, 2021, the spplicable
accounting standards had been followed and
there 15 no matenal departure from the same;

I1) The Directors had sslected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made Jjudgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that dats;

111} The Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with ‘the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assetz of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregulanties;

V) The Directors had prepared the annual
accounts on the 'going concern basis";

W1 The Directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and
that such ntemal financial controls are
adeguate and are operating effectively;

WI}) The Directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and are operating effectively.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT

During the financial year 2020-2021 under
review, the Company has not given any loan or
guarantee or made any investment in terms of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS
REPORTED BY AUDITORS OTHER THAN
THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTAEBLE TO THE
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

The Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors or
Secretarial Auditors of the Company have not
reported any frauds to the Audit Committee or
to the Board of Directors under Section 143{12)
of the Companies Act, 20132, including rules
made thersunder,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE QUTGO

In terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8B of
Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014, a statement
containing details of conservation of energy,
techmology  absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo, in the manner as
prescribed under the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, is given in Annexure - VIII
hereto and forms part of this Report.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

lp

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company
had not invited or accepted any fixed deposits
from: public under Chapter V of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thersunder.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
AND DATE OF REPORT AFTER THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

Therse are no  material changes and
Commitments affecting the Financial Position of
the Company between the end of Financial Year
and date of this report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures relating to remuneration of
Directors ufs 197(12) read with Rule 5{1) of
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is Annexed
as Annexure IX to this report.

The information, as required to be provided in
terms of Section 197{12) of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 5(2) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration OF Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as
Annexure-IX to this report.

ANNUAL BOARD EVALUATION AND
FAMILTARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR
BOARD MEMBERS

A note eon the familiarzation programmer
adopted by the Company for orientation and
training of the Directors, and the Board
evaluation process undertaken' in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Listing Regulations is provided in the
Report on Corporate Governance, which forms
part of this Report.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTCR FAMILARI-
SATION PROGRAMME

The Company has amranged a familiarization
proegram for Independent Directors of the
Company and details has been provided on
Company website on the following link:-
hitps://vikaswspltd.in /investor-information
VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company is committed to adhere to the
highest standards of ethical, moral and legal
conduct of business operations. The Company
has established a vigil mechanism under section
177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
22 of the SEBI(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
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37.

38.

39.

REGULATIONS, 2015 and has adopted the
"Wigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy” of the
Company. As per the policy objective, the
Company encourages its employees who have
concerns about suspected misconduct, to come
forward and express these concerns without
fear of punishment or unfair treatment. A vigil
mechanism provides a channel fto the
employees and Directors to report to the
management COMNCems about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Codes of conduct or policy. The
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards
against victimization of employees and
Directors to avail of the mechanism and also
provide for direct access to the Managing
Director/Chairman of the Audit Committee in
exceptional cases, Such policy is made available
on the website of the Company
hitpa!f vikaswspltd.in wp-content/upload=/2019  0B/VIGIL-
MECHANISM-AND-WHISTLE-BLOWER-POLICY. pof

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Board has
adopted a policy to regulate the transactions of
the Company with its related parties. As per
policy, all related party ftransactions reguire
prior approval of the Audit Committee and
Board of Directors of the Company. Prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company is
also. required for certain related party
transactions as prescribed under Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Reguirement) Regulations, 2015,
The said policy is available on the Company's
website viz. www,vikaswspltd.in

The details of all related party transaction are
provided in Annexure X to the report.

FATLURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE
ACTION

There were no instances where the Company
failed to implement any corporate action within
the specified time limit.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/ COURTS/
TRIBUNALS

There has been no significant and material
order passed by any regulator, courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status
and operations of the Company in future.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION B
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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Mo case was filed, to be disposed under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Preventicn, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013, during the financial year under review.

At Vikas WSP Limited, all ‘employess are of
equal value. There is no discrimination between
individuals at any peoint on the basis of race,
colour, gender, religion, political opinion,
national extraction, social origin, sexual
orientation or age.

At Vikas WSP Limited, every individual is
expected to treat his/her colleagues with
respect and dignity. This is enshrined in values
and in the Code of Ethics & Conduct of
Courtesy. The Direct Touch (Whistle-Blower &
Protection Policy) policy provides a platform to
all employees for reporting unethical business
practices at workplace without the fear of
reprisal and help in eliminating any kind of
misconduct in the system. The policy also
includes misconduct  with respect o
discrimination or sexual harassment.

The Company also has in place "~ Prevention of
Sexual Harassment Policy’. This Anti-Sexual
Harassment policy of the Company is in line
with  the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Waorkplace
(Preventicn, Prohibition & Redressal} Act, 2013.
All employess  (permanent, contractual,
temporary and trainees) are covered under this
policy.

An Intermal Complaints Committee (ICC) is in
place to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment,

The following is a8 summary of sexual
harassment complaints received and disposed
off during the year:

1. | MNo. of complaints received Ml

2. | No. of complaints disposed off Ml

SUSPENSION OF SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

The Equity Shares of the Company have not
bean suspended from the trading.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and
harmonicus industrial relations at all levels. The
enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of employees
have enabled the Company to remain at the
leadership position in the industry, It has taken
various steps to improve productivity across
organization.

s




o SVHEAS

42. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
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43.

M/s 5. Prakash Aggarwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants was re-appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company in the AGM held on
28" Septembar 2020 for a period of 5 years
from 227 Annual General Mesting until the
conclusion of the 37 Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

However, due to Personal and health issue,
M/s S. Prakash Aggarwal & Co tendersd
their resignation as on 05" March, 2021. M/s
AK Chadda & Co., Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Registration MNo. 008683N) gawve their
consent to be appointed as Statutory Auditors
to fill the position of casual vacancy caused due
to resignation of M/s S. Prakash Aggarwal &
Co. On 21% Aprl, 2021, M/s AK Chadda &
Co., Chartered Accountants was appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Postal
Ballot to fill the position of casual vacancy
caused due to resignation of M/s S. Prakash
Aggarwal & Co. to hold the position upto the
next Annual General Meesting of the Company.

The Auditors, M/s AK Chadda & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, will retire at the
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible under Section
129(2) of the Act, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

The Board, based on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee and subject to the
approval of the shareholders, recommended the
reappointment of M/s AK Chadda & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, based on their
furnishing eligibility certificates confirming their
eligibility to continue as auditors of the
Company in terms of the Section 141 of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder, from the
conclusion of the 33rd Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of the conclusion of the 38th
Annual General Meeting and accordingly, the
same forms a part of the business as contained
in the MNobice convening the ensuing Annual
General Mesting.

The report of the Statutory Auditors Mfs AK
Chadda & Co. alongwith notes to Schedules is
enclosed to this report, The observations made
in the Auditors” Report are self-explanatory and
therefore do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
The Company had appointed M/fs Privam &
Associates, Company Secretaries, to conduct

its Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2021. The Secretarial Auditors have

44,

45.

submitted their report for compliance of the
provisions of applicable Corporate Laws and
other applicable Lows on the Company. The
Report on Secretarial Audit is self-explanatory
on compliances and attached as Annexure-XI-
A to this report.

Secretarial Compliance Report Purswant to
Regulation 244 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015
read with SEBI Circular MNo.
CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 08,
2012, in addition to secretarial audit, &nnual
Secretarial Compliance Report given by M/s
Privam & Associates, Company Secretaries
on compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations
and circulars/guidelines issusd thersunder is
annexed as Annexure-XI-B.

Further, pursuant to above said SEBI circular,
listed entities shall additionally, on an annual
basis, require a check by the Practicing
Company Secretary on compliance of all
applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder, conseguent to
which, the Practicing Company Secretary shall
submit a report to the listed entity in the
manner specified in this drcular. The Company
has obtained annual secretarial compliance
report from Privam Gupta of M/s Priyvam &
Associates, Company Secretaries for the
financial year ended march 21, 2021 and same
has besn submitted to the stock exchanges
within the stipulated time, copy of which is
appended to the Report on Annual Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT & FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company bad appointed M/fs Sanjay
Goyal & Associates as an internal auditor of
the Company for the financial year 2020-2021.
They conducted their audit on guarterly basis.
The Bepard of Director considers its
recommendations and plan Company's further
strategies accordingly. Their scope of work
includes review of processes for safeguarding
the assets of the Company, review of
operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems
and processes, and assessing the internal
control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors
findings are discussed with the process owners
and suitable corrective actions are taken as per
the direcions of Audit Committee on an
ongoing basis to  improve efficiency  in
operations.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to place on record their
sincere appreciation of the efforts and dedicated
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services of all the employees who have
contributed by staying with the Company in the
tough period.

46. CFO CERTIFICATION

The Certificate required under Regulation 17(8)
of the Listing Regulations, duly signed by the
CFo of the Company was placed before the
Board. The same is provided as Annexure VII
to this report.

47. GREEN INITIATIVES

Electronics copies of the Annual Report 2020-
2021 and the Notice of the 33rd Annual General
Meeting are sent to all members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/
depositary participants. For members who have
nat registered their email address, physical
copies are sent in the permitted mode.

48. CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of
Conduct which is applicable to the Members of
the Board and all employees in the course of
day to day business operations of the company.
The Company believes in "Zero Tolerance”
against bribery, corruption and unethical
dealings / behaviors of any form and the Board
has laid down the directives to counter such
acts. The code laid down by the Board is known
as "code of business conduct™ which forms an
Appendix to the Code. The Code has been
posted on the Company’s website
www. vikaswspltd.in .

The Code lays down the standard procedure of
business conduct which is -expected to be
followed by the Directors and the designated
emplovees in their business dealings and in
particular on matters refating to integrity in the
work place, in business practices and in dezaling
with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance
through examples on the expected bshavior
from an employee in a given situation and the
reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior
Management  personnel  have  confirmed
compliance with the Code. All Management
Staff were given appropriate training in this
regard.

49. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF
INSIDER  TRADING IN COMPANIES
SECURITIES

Your company has formulated code of conduct
for prevention of Insider Trading in Company's
Securities ("Code™) in accordance with SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation,
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2015, The Objective of this code is to protect
the interest of Shareholders at large, to prevent
misuse of any price sensitive information and to
prevent any insider trading activity by dealing
in shares of the Company by its Designated
Persons. Mr. Gunjan Kumar Karn, Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
Company are authorized to act as Compliance
officer under the Code.

50.SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
complied with the appflicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards issusd by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

51. GENERAL:

The Board of Directors confirm that no
disclosure or reporting is reguired in respect of
the following matters as thers were no
transactions on these matters during the
financial year 2020-2021:

(i} Issue of equity shares with differential rights as
to dividend, voting or otherwise:

(ii) Issue of shares (including sweat eguity shares
or Stock opbions) to employees of the
Company;

(i} non-exercising of veting rights in respect of
shares purchased directly by emplioyees under a
schems pursuant fo Section 67(3) of the Act
read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014;

(iv) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors places on record its
appreciation for the support, assistance and co-
operation received from Government, Regulators
and the bankers to the Company, i.e. Union Bank of
India, Punjab Mational Bank and Union Bank of
India.

The Board is thankful to the shareholders for their
support to the Company. The Board is also thankful
to the employees of the Company for their co-
cperation and unstinted dedication to duty leading
to cordial industrial relations during the year under
review,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
SD/-

Bimla Devi Jindal

Chairman cum Director

(DIN: - 00034957)

Place: 07.09.2021 Date: Sri Ganganagar

IEII_E




o SVHEAS

CSR POLICY

A BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY'S CSR
POLICY.

The Company has been actively participafing in
Social activities. The Company believes in giving to
the society in which it operates. We believe that to
succeed, an organization must maintain highest
standards of corporate behavior towards its
employees, consumers and socisties. We are of
the opinion that CSR underlines the objective of
bringing about & difference and adding valus in
our stakeholders’ lives.

OVERVIEW OF PROJECTS OR PROGRAMS
PROPOSED TO BE UNDERTAKEN

CSR activities of the Company will
following thrust areas:

have the

To promote the education of the children, the
Company s actively participating and holding
programmes for mobvating the students about
their education. The Company s corrently
distributing the scholarship for their basic as well
as higher education and these will also be
continued in the upcoming years. To promote
medical educabtion, the Company 1 also
undertaking a project of establishing Medical
College.

To reduce the poverty and to encourage the
cultivation basic resources like seeds are provided
to the farmers for giving them economical support.
To promote gendsr equality, empowsrnng women,
and facilitate the old age.

To take nibiatives for the protection of
environment and to maintain the ecclogical
balance.

To protect the national hentage and take steps for
its development.

To practice all the works that will help in
eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutntion,

REFERENCE TO THE WEB-LINK TO THE CSR
POLICY

The Company policy s avallable on Company's
website www.vikasguargum.com The link 15
provided as below http://www, vikaswsplitd.in

THE COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE

The Company has formulated a CSE Commuittee
under section 135 {1) and Rules made thersundsr
a committee. Its composition 1s as follows:-

1. Bejrang Dass Aggarwal Member
2. Neera) Chhabra Chairperson
3. Bimla Devi Jindal Member
4. Pawan Singla Member

H_r?_[!

MNote:-

ANMEXURE I

Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal expired as on

21.09.2020. So that in place of Mr. Bajrang Dass
Aggarwal the Committze appointed Mr. Pawan Singla

Current | Pervious
Year Year
(Lacs) (Lacs)
1, Average net profit of the 3043.50 | -760.11
Company for last three
financial years
2. Prescnbed CSR Expenditure a0.57 -15.20
{twao per cent. of the amount
as in item 3 above)
3. Detals of CSR spent dunng
the financal vear.
a8) Total amount to be spent for Mil il
the financal year;
b} Amount unspent 202.74 202.74
cl] Manner in which the amount
spent during the financial yvear
iz detailed below:-
=, Particulars {1} TOTAL
Mo
(1} | CSR project or achvity | Distnbution of
identified Guar seeds
(2] | Sector in which the | Reducing
project powverty by
is covered Providing
resources to the
poor farmers
ke =eeds and
contnbutng  in
INCreasing
income
(3) | Projects or Programme
1. Local area or other
2. Specify the state and | Local
distnct where projects | Sn
or programs was | Ganganagar,
undertaken Rajasthan
(4) | Amount outlay (budget | Mil Mil
project or Programme
o ise |
(5] | Amount spent on the | Ml il
project or Programime
Sub Heads;
(1) Direct expenditure
an praojects ar
programmes
- {2) Overheads
(8) | Cumulative expenditure | Mil Ml
up to the reporting
penod
sd/- sd/

Meeraj Chhabra

( Derector)

MNeeraj Chhabra
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

June 18, 2020

To

The Board of Directors
Vikas WSP Limited
Siwani.

Sub: Declaration of independence under
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015 ("Listing regulations™) and sub-section
{6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

I, Mr. Ram Awtar Mittal, hereby certify that I am
a Non-executive Independent Director of Vikas WSP
Limited, Place and comply with all the criteria of
independent director as envisaged in Regulation 18
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing
regulations™) and the Companies Act, 2013:

I certify that:-

« [ possess relevant expertise and experience to
be an independent director in the Company:

« [ was not a promoter of the Company or its
associate Company;

« I am not related toe promoters / directors /
persons occupying management position at the
board level er level below the board in the
Company.

« Apart from receiving director sitting fees, I have
no pecuniary relationship / tramsactions with
the Company, its promoters, its directors, its
senior management or during the two
immediately preceding financial years or during
the current financial year;

« none of my relatives has or had any pecuniary
relationship or transaction with the Company,
amounting to 2% or more of its gross turnmover
or total income or Rs. 50 Lacs or such higher
amount as may be prescribed, whichever is
lower, during the two Immediately preceding
finrancial years or during the current financial
year;

= PMeither me nor any of my relatives:

4+ holds or has held the position of a key
managerial personnel or is or has been
employes/executive of the Company or any
of the three financial years immediately
preceding the financial year;
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4 is or has been an employee or proprietor or
a partner, in any of the three financial years
immiediately preceding the financial year of;

& a firm of auditors or Company secretaries in
practice or cost auditors of the Company or

4 any legal or a consulting firm that has or
had any transaction with the Company, its
amounting to 10% or mere of the gross
turnover of such firm:

4 holds together with my relatives 2% or
more of the total wvoting power of the
Company; or

4 is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever
name called, of any non-profit organization
that receives 25% or more of its receipts
from ‘the Company, any of its promoters,
directors or that holds 2% or more of the
total voting power of the Company; or

4 I am not a material supplier, service
provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of
the Company;

4 Iam notlessthan 21 years of age,
Declaration

I undertake that 1 shall seek prior approval of the
Board if and when I have any such relationship /
transactions, whether material or non-material, If I
fail to do so I shall cease to be an independent
director from the date of entering in to such
relationship / transactions.

Further, I do hereby declare and confirm that the
above said information’s are true and correct to the
best of my knowledge as on the date of this
declaration of independance

and [ shall take responsibility for its correctness
and shall be liable for fine if any Imposed on the
Company, its directors, if the same found wrong or
incorract in future.

I further undertake to intimate immediately upon
changes, if any, to the Company for updating of the
Same.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
Sd/-

RAM AWTAR MITTAL
DIN: 02303734
H. No.- 9, Sec-6
Bahadurgarh-124507
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June 18, 2020

To

The Board of Directors

Vikas WSP Limited

Siwani.

Sub: Declaration of independence under Regulation
18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing
regulations™) and sub-section {&) of section 142 of
the Companies Act,

I, Mr. Neeraj Chhabra , hereby certify that I am a
Mon-executive Independent Director of Vikas WSP
Limited, Place and comply with all the criteria of
independent director as envisaged in Regulation 18
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing
regulations”) and the Companies Act, 2013.

I certify that:

= 1 possess relevant expertise and experience to
be an independent directer in the Company;

« [ was not a promoter of the Company or its
associate Company;

« I am not related to promoters [/ directors [
persons cccupying management position at the
board level or level below the board in the
Company.

= Apart from receiving director sitting fees, I have
no pecuniary relationship / transactions with
the Company, its promoeters, its directors, its
senior management or during the two
immediately preceding financial yvears or during
the current financial vear;

« none of my relatives has or had any pecuniary
relationship or transaction with the Company,
amounting to 2% or more of its gross turnover
ar total income or Rs. 50 Lacs or such higher
amount as may be prescribed, whichever Is
lower, during the two immediately preceding
financial years or during the current financial
YEar;

« Neither me nor any of my relatives:

4 holds or has held the position of a key
managerial personnel or is or has been
employee/executive of the Company or any
of the three financial wvears immediately
preceding the financial year;

4 is or has been an employee or proprietor or
a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year of;

E_[EZ

4 a firm of auditors or Company secretaries in
practice or cost auditors of the Company or
any legal or a consulting firm that has or
had any transaction with the Company, its
amounting to 10% or more of the gross
turnover of such firm;

4+ holds together with my relatives 2% or
more of the total veoting power of the
Company; or

4 is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever
name called, of any non-profit organization
that receives 25% or moere of its receipts
from the Company, any of its promaoters,
directors or that holds 2% or more of the
total voting power of the Company; or

4+« 1 am not a material supplier, service
provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of
the Company;

4 1am notless than 21 years of age.
Declaration

1 undertake that [ shall seek prior approval of the
Board if and when I have any such relationship /
transactions, whether material or non-material. If I

fail to de so 1 shall cease to be an independent
director from the date of entering in fo such
relationship/ transactions.

Further, I do hereby declare and confirm that the
above said information’s are true and correct to the
best of my knowledge as on the date of this
declaration of independence and I shall take
responsibility for its correctness and shall be liable
for fine if any imposed on the Company, its
directors, if the same found wrong or incorrect in
future.

1 further undertake to intimate immediately upon
changes, if any, to the Company for updating of the
same.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
Sdy/-

Meeraj Chhabra

OIN: 06467189

RCP Tal Colony Q. No.- 34
Suratgarh, Sri Ganaganagar
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June 18, 2020

To

The Board of Directors
Vikas WSP Limited
Siwani.

Sub: Dedlaration of independence under Regulation
18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
regulations™) and sub-section (6) of section 149 of
the Companies Act,

I, Mr. Kishan Lal, hereby certify that I am a Non-
executive Independent Director of Vikas WSP
Limited, Place and comply with all the criteria of
independent director as envisaged in -Regulation 18
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
regulations™) and the Companies Act, 2013.

I certify that:

= 1 possess relevant expertise and experience to
be an independent director in the Company;

« 1 was not a promoter of the Company or its
associate Company;

« I am net related to promoters [/ directors /
pEFS0ONS QCocupying management position at the
board level or level below the board in the
Company.

= Apart from receiving director sitting fees, I have
no pecuniary relationship / transactions with
the Company, its promoters, its directors, its
semior management or during the two
immediately preceding financial years or during
the current financial yvear;

« none of my relatives has or had any pecuniary
relationship or transaction with the Company,
amounting to 23 or more of its gross turnover
or tofal income or Rs. 50 Lacs or such higher
amount as may be prescribed, whichever is
lower, during the two immediately preceding
financial years or during the current financial
Vaar;

« Neither me nor any of my relatives:

4 holds or has held the position of a key
managerial personnel or is or has been
employves/executive of the Company or any
of the three financial years immediately
preceding the financial year;

4 |5 or has been an employee or proprietor or
a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year of;
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4 a firm of auditors or Company secretaries in
practice or cost auditors of the Company or
any legal or a consulting firm that has or
had any transaction with the Company, its
amaounting to 10% or more of the grbss
turnover of such firm;

4+ holds together with my relatives 2% or
more of the total voting power of the
Company; or

4 iz a Chief Executive or director, by whatever
name called, of any non-profit organization
that receives 25% or more of its receipts
from the Company, any of its promoters,
directors or that holds 2% or more of the
total veting power of the Company; or

4 1 am not @ matenal supplier, service
provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of
the Company:

4 Iam notless than 21 years of age.
Declaration

I undertake that I shall seek prior approval of the
Board if and when I have any such relationship /
transactions, whether material or non-material. If 1
fail to do so I shall cease to be an independent
director from the date of entering in to such
relationship / transactions,

Further, 1 do hereby declare and confirm that the
above said information’s are true and correct to the
best of my knowledoe as on the date of this
declaration of independence and I shall take
responsibility for its correctness and shall be liable
for fine if anv imposed on the Company, ils
directors, if the same found wreng or incorrect in
future.

I further undertake to intimate immediately upon
changes, If any, to the Company for updating of the
same.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
sd/-

Kishan Lal

DIN: 01878703

A-3, Jamna Lal Bajaj Marg
C-scheme, Jaipur.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

PURPOSE

The Company has formed MNomination “and
Remuneration Policy Ufs 178{1) of Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 129 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Reguirement)
Regulations, 2015, This policy has been formulated
for determining the gualification, Positive attributes
of Executive Directors, Mon-Executive Directors,
Independent Director and Key Managerial Persons
of the Company.

DEFINITIONS
“ACT" the act shall mean Companies Act, 2013.

“COMMITTEE™ the committee shall mean
Momination and Remuneration Committee under
Section 178 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

“BOARD” the Board shall mean Board Of Directors
of Vikas WSP Limited.

“COMPANY"™ means the Company Vikas WSP
Limited
"KEY MANAGERIAL PERSOMNNEL" means

(il Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or
manager and in their absence, a whole-time
director;

(it Company Secretary; and

(iii) Chief Financial Officer:

Such other officer as may be prescribed

"SENIOR MANAGEMENT" means Senior
Management means personnel of the Company who
are members of its core management team
excluding the Beard of Directors Including
Functional Heads.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Company has formed a committes under
csection 178{1) of Companies Act, 2013 Regulation
19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement} Regulations, 2015.

The Committee consists of three members namely:

_Kishan Lal __
Meeraj Chhabra

| Executive Director, Member _
MNon-Executive - Independent
Director, Member

Ram Awtar Mittal | Non-Executive — Independent

| Director, Chairperson

E_ru
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ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee has been formulated to perform the
following works: -

1. The MNomination and Remuneration Committee
shall identify persons who are gualified to
become directors and who may be appointed in
senicr management in accordance with the
criteria laid down in Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under and all other provisions
applicable, if any and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal. It shall camry
out evaluation of every director's performance.

2. The MNomination and Remuneration Committee
shall formulate the criteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recormmend to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration
for the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees.

3. To carry out evaluation of every Director’s
performance.

4, To carry out any other function as is mandated
by the Board from: time to time and [/ or
enforced by any statutory  notification,
amendment or modification, as may be
applicable.

5. To perform such other functons as may be
necessary or appropriate for the performance of
its duties.

CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR

Any person who wishes to be appointed as a
Director of the Company needs to fulfill the
following criteria; -

1. His appointment must not be in
Contravention of any  provision of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there
under or under any other applicable laws, if
any.

2. The appointment shall be subject to
applicable Regulation of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disdosure Reguirement)
Regulations, 2015.

3. The person who wishes to be appointed as a
Director must have relevant experience in the
industry similar to the business of the Company
or hold relevant gualificaticn in this regard. The
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Committee has discretion to decide whether
gualification, expertise and experience
possessed by a person  are  sufficient [
satisfactory for the concerned position.

4. The Director will be eligible for appointment
only if he has attained the age of twenty one
years.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Independent Director must fulfill the following
criteria:-

1. His appecintment must not be in Contravention
of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under and all the applicable
laws, if any.

2. The appointment shall be subject to applicable
Regulation of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Reguirement) Regulations, 2015.

3. He shall possess appropriate skills, experience
and knowledge in one or more fields of finance,
law, management, sales, marketing,
administration, research, corporate governance,
technical ocperations, or other disciplines related
to the Company's business,

TERM/TENURE

1. Managing Director/Whole-time Director:
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any
person as its Edecutive Chairman, Managing
Director or Executive Director for a term not
exceeding five years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earier than one
yvear before the expiry of term.

2. Independent Director: -

al An Independent Director shall hold office for
a term up to five consecutive years on the
Board of the Company and will be eligible
for re-appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosurs
of such appointment in the Board's report.

b} Mo Independent Director shall hold office for
more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for
appointment after sxpiry of three years of
ceasing to  become an  Independent
Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall
not, during the said period of three vears,
be appeointed in or be associated with the
Company in any other capacity, either
directly or indirectly.
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However, if a person who has already
served as an Independent Director for 5
years or more in the Company as on
October 1, 2014 or such other date as may
be determined by the Committes as per
regulatory reguirement; he/ she shall be
eligible for appointment for one more term
of 5 years only.

c] At the time of appointment of Independent
Director it should be ensured that number
of Boards on which such Independent
Director serves is restricked to seven listed
companies as an Independent Director and
three listed companies as an Independent
Director in case such person is serving as a
Whole time Director of a listed Company or
such other number as may be prescribed
under the Act.

REMOVAL

Due to reasons for any disgualification mentioned in
the Companies Act, 2012 or under any other
applicable Act, rules and regulations there under,
the Committee may recommend, to the Board with
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director,
KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to
the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules
and regulations.

RETIREMENT

The Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will
have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP,
Senior Management in the same position [/
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the
retirement age, for the bensfit of the Company.

Policy relating to the Remuneration for the
Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel

General:

A. The remuneration / compensation / commission
etc. to the Whele-time Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel will be determined by
the Committee and recommended to the Board
for approval. The remuneration / compensation
/[ commission etc. shall be subject to the
prior/post approval of the shareholders of the
Company and Central Government, wherever
required,

B. The remuneration and commission to be
paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in
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accordance with the percentage [ slabs [
conditions laid down in the Articles of
Association of the Company and as per the
provisions of the Act.

C. Increments to the existing remuneration/
compensation structure may be
recommended by the Committee to the
Board which should be within the slabs
approved by the Shareholders in the case of
Whale-time Director.

D. Where any insurance is taken by the
Company on behalf of its Whole-time
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, the Company Secretary
and any other employees for indemnifying
them against any liability, the premium paid
on such insurance shall not be treated as
part of the remuneration payable to any
such personnel.

Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty,
the premium paid on such insurance shall be
treated as part of the remuneration.

Remuneration to  Whole-time [/ Executive |/
Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel;

a} Fixed pay: The Whole-time Director/ KMP and
Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible
for a monthly remuneration as may be
approved by the Board on the recommendation
of the Committee, The breakup of the pay scale
and guantum of perguisites including,
emplover’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme,
medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be
decided and approved by the Board/ the Person
authorized by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee and
approved by the sharsholders and Central
Government, wherever required.

b) Minimum Remuneration: If, in any financial
year, the Company has no profits or its profits
are inadequate, the Company shall pay
remuneration to its Whole-time Director in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule Vv of
the &t and if it is not able to comply with such
provisions, with the previous approval of the
Central Government.,

c) Provisions for excess remuneration: If any
Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly
or indirectly by way of remuneration any such
sums in excess of the limits prescribed under
the Act or without the prior sanction of the
Central Government, where reguired, he / she
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shall refund such sums to the Company and
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for
the Company. The Company shall not waive
recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Government.

Remuneration to MNon-

Independent Director:

Executive !

a) Remuneration / Commission:

The remuneration / commission shall be fixed
as per the siabs and conditons mentioned in
the Articles of Association of the Company and
as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

b) sitting Fees:

The Mon- Executive / Independent Director may
receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committes
thereaf,

Provided that the amount of such fees shall not
exceed Rs, One Lac per meeting of the Board or
Committee or such amount as may be
prescribed by the Central Government from
time to time.

c) Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to
any stock option of the Company.

d} Any remuneration paid to MNon- Executive /
Independent Directors for services rendered
which are of professional in nature shall not be
considered as part of the remuneration if the
following conditions are satisfied:

1. The Services are rendered by such Director
in his capacity as the professional: and

II. In the opinion of the Committes, the
director possesses the requisite qualification
for the practice of that profession.

IMPLEMENTATION

A. The Committese may  issue guidelines,
procedures, formats, reporting mechanism
and manuals in supplement and for better
implementation of this policy as considered
appropriate,

B. The Committee may Delegate any of its
powers to one or more of its members.
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Annexure-IV

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021

Pursuant to Section 22 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:-

1 CIN LZ4139HR198BPLCO30300

2 Registration Date 22.06.19E88

3 Name of the Company Vikas WSP Limited

4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Limited by Shares
Company

5 Address of the Registered office | Railway Road, Siwani, Harvana -1270485

6 Address of the Corporate Office B-86/87.RIICO, Udyog \Vihar, Industrial Area, Sri Ganga
& contact details Magar-335002

7 Whether listed Company ¥es, Bombay Stock Exchange

8 Name, Address & contact details | Link Intime India Pt Limited
of the Registrar & Transfer Address: - Neble Heights, 1% Fleor, Plot No. NH 2, LSC, C-1
Agent, if any. Block, Mear Savitri Market, Janakpuri, Mew Delhi-110058

TEL. N 011-414105%92

II.PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (Al the business activities contributing 10 %
or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated)

5. No. Mame and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
main products / services | Product/service the Company
1 Guar Polymers 13023230, 13023220 100%

ITI1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

5. ND NAME AND | CIN/GLN HOLDING/ %% of shares held | Applicable
ADDRESS OF THE SUBSIDIARY [/ Section
COMPANY ASSOCIATE
1 Mot applicable
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
A. Category-wise Share Holding

Sr Category of Shareholding at the Shareholding a2t the O
Mo Shareholders beginning of the year - 2020 end of the year - 2021 Chang
during
the yeai
Demat | Physical Total %o of Demat |Physical Total %o of
Total Total
Shares Shares

(&) | Sharehalding of Promoter and
Promoter Growsp

[1] | Indizn

(z] Individualz /- Hindu Undivided 29757164 o 29757164 | 'I4.5555 | 29757164 o 29757164 | "14,5555 |'0.0000
Famibhy

(b} Central Government [ Stats 0 o a 0.0000 (i} o {H] '0.0000 |0.00C0
Governmeni(s]

(c) Finzncial I:r".:"tl't'__lﬁuns { Banks 0 o a 0.0000 i} 1] {H] ‘$.0000 |0.00C0

(d} | Any Other [Specify]

Sub Total (A1) 259737164 o 29757164 | '14.5555 | 29757164 o 29757164 | "14,5555 ('0.0000

[2] | Foreign

'zl Individuals (Non-Resident i} o L] 0.0000 i} o a ‘1.0000 (‘00000
Individuals [ Fareign
Individuals)

= Governmant 1] o a 00000 4] o a '.0000 |0.0000

(=] Institutions . a o L] 0.0000 o o o 8.0000 °0.0000

i) Foreign Porifolio Investor 1] o) o 'D,2000 o o o '0.,0000 |"0.0000

(] | Any Other {Specify)

Sub Total {A1{2] ] o L] 0.0000 o o a '1.0000 ‘00000
Tokal Sharsholding of Promaoter 297537164 c 29757164 | 'i4.5555 | 26757164 o 29757165 | "14.5555 |0.0000
and Promoter

CrouplAl={a1{1+{A)(2)

(B} | Public Sharsholding

[1] | Institutions

(5] Mutuzi Funds [/ UTI 4 10000 10600 '0.004£9 4] LOHHOD 10002 '0.0049 |'0.0000

(b Wenture Capital Funds a o 1] '0,0000 @ o i '1.0000 |'0.0000

ic) Alternate Investiment Funds i} i a 0.0000 1] o a '§.0000 |0.0000

(d} Foreign Venture Capital 4 o a 0.e000 o o 5] 'G.0000 |°0.0000
Inyestors

(a} Foreign Portfolio Investor 1000 o 10GE ‘06005 E000 o 1000 'G.0005 |°0.0000

(fl Financial Institutions / Banks B31857 o 891857 0.4362 835643 o B33643 04185 [-0.0177

(g] | Insurance Companies 1 1] 0 0.0000 0 1] 0 '0.0000 |0.00C0

(h} Provident Funds/ Pension Funds il o L] 0.0000 4] o o '8.0000 |°0.0080

ii) Any Other {Specify)

] Sub Total LB (1) . ES2857 10000 202837 ‘04418 836643 10000 Beeh43 G.423% [-0.0177

[2] | Central Government) State
Government(s)/ Prasidentof
Indiz
Sub Total (B1(2) T o [ 0.0000 o i] o '0.0000 | 0.0000

[3] | Mon-Insttutions

(2] | Individuals

(i} Individual shareholdars holding B1321697| 3284482 B4716179 | '41.4382.( 80905081 (3030422 | 42935563 | ‘41.0564 [-0.3818
nominz! share capital upto Rs. 1
izkh.

[iid Individual shareholders holding 67943206 335000 | 68282206 | '33.3997 | 72561789 339000 72900789 | ‘35,6588 |'2,2591
nominal share capital In excess
of Rs. 1 kskh

=3 MBFCs registered with RBI 3650 o 3530 0.0028 3430 {5 3430 ‘0.0027 [-0.0001

(d} | Owerseas Depositories!haolding ] o a 0.e000 4] ] 1} 'G.0000 |°0.0000
DRz) (balancing figure)

(] | Any Other (Specify) o o . . |
Trusts 0700 4000 34700 0.0268 30800 4000 34800 '0.8268 |°0.0000
Foreign Mabionals 2000 o 20043 0.06010 2000 o 2000 '0.0010 |0.0000
Hindu Undivided Family 10662793 o 10662733 ‘52156 GAE8SERT o ES83687 ‘34170 [-1.7986
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MNon Resident Indizns [Non 338057 o 338057 ‘02632 Fagagz2 L] Jae982 '0.3839 |'0.1227
R=pat)

Non Resident Indians (Repat] | 2234773 | 0| 2234775 | 'i.0oai | 367essa | 0 | i6ys3se | Gaa0s {0273
Oversess Bodies Corporstes 37000 o 57000 '0.0279 57000 L] 57000 '0.0275 |'D.0000
Clearing Member BO7547 1] BOTSET '0.2972 795571 L] 795571 '0.2851 |'0.0519
Bodies Corporate 6618668 0 B513663 '3.2373 E611657 L] B611657 32341 §-0.0034
Sub Totst (B3} 170052057 3727482 | 173775575| '85.0025 | 1704423111 3373482 [ 173815793 'B5.0206 |'0.0477
Tatzl Public 170944954 3737482 | 174682436 | '83.44435 | 171295934 3383482 | 174682436 'B5.4445 |'0.c00C
Sharsholding{Bl=[B}(1}+{B}{2)
=(B](3]

Total (AJE] 200702118 3737482  704435600| 1000000 201056116 3383487 | 704435600 160.6000]'0.6000

{CY | Mon Promoter - MNon Public
{C1) Shares Underlying DRs

[1] Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 o '0.0000 o 0 0 ‘00000 |'0.0000
(C2) Shares Held By Employee
Trust

[2] | Emoloves Bengfit Trust (under ] 0 o 0, 0000 o 0 0 "0.0G00 | 0.0000

SEBI {Share bazed Employes
Benefit] Regulstions, 2014)

| Total (A1+(BIHC) 200702118 3737482 | 204439600 '100.0000] 201056118 3363482 | 204435600 "10C.0000
B) Shareholding of Promoter-
Sr | Shareholider’s Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
Mo Mame beginning of the year - 2020 end of the year - 2021
NO.OF %0 of %o of Shares NO.OF O of %oof Shares | % chanoge in
SHARES total Pledged SHARES total Pledged/ shareholding
HELD Shares | fencumbered HELD Shares | encumbered during the
of the to of the to year
company | total shares company | total shares
1 | BAJRANG 16977332 | '6.3043 '5.2845 16977332 | '6.3043 '8.2845 '0.0000
DASS
AGGARWAL
2 BIMLA DEVI 42774832 5. 2487 '0.0000 12774832 | '6.2487 "0.0000 '0.0000
JINDAL 1
3 KAMINI 5000 '0.0024 '‘0.0000 5000 '0.0024 "0.0000 '0.0000
JINDAL _ b
Total 79757164 | "14.5555 '‘B.2845 29757164 | '14.5555 ‘8.2845 "0.0000

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sr Shareholding at the Transactions during Cumulative
No beginning of the year - the year Shareholding at the
< 2020 end of the year- 2021
Mame & Type of NO.OF %o OF DATE OF MNO. OF NO OF %o OF
Transaction SHARES HELD TOTAL TRANSACTI SHARES SHARES TOTAL
SHARES ON HELD SHARES
OF THE OF THE
COMPANY COMPANY
p | BAIRANG DASS 16977332 8.3043 16977332 8.3043
AGGARWAL
AT-THE END OF THE YEAR 16977332 8.3043
2 BIMLA DEVI JINDAL 12774832 6.2487 12774832 6.2487
AT THE END OF THE YEAR | 12774834 52487
3 FAMINI JINDAL 5000 0.0024 5000 0.0024
AT THE END OF THE YEAR S000 0.0024

Mote: 1, Paid up Share Capital of the Company (Face Value Rs. 1.00) at the end of the year s 204435600 Shares.
2. The details of holding has been clubbed based on PAN.
3. 9t of total Shares of the Company is based on the paid up Capital of the Company at the end of the Year.
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SR SHAREHOLDER NAME DPID/Folio PAN SHARES BENPODS_DATE
ND
1 BIMLA DEVI JINDAL IN300S4010051152 ABSPIS495R 12774832 31/03/2020
2 BIMLA DEVT JINDAL IN300294010051152 ABSPIGAO5R 12774832 31/03/2021
3 BAJRANG DASS AGGARWAL INZ0133015413414 ACHPISDZ244 16977332 31/03/2020
4 BAIRANG DASS AGGARWAL IN30133019213414 ACHPISO244 16977332 31/03/2021
5 FAMINI JINDAL IN30133021799814 AMIPIBIOIH 5000 31/03/2020
5] KAMINI JINDAL IN30133021799814 AMIPIS1C1H 5000 31/03/2021
D) shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
{Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr Shareholding at the Transactions during the Cumulative
No beginning of the year - 2020 year Sharsholding at
u the end of the
year - 2021
Name & Type of Transaction MNO.OF SHARES % OF DATE OF NO. OF NO OF |% OF
HELD TOTAL TRANSACTID| SHARES SHARE |TOTAL
SHARES N 5 HELD |SHARES
OF THE OF THE
COMPANY COMPAN
Li
1 MUNNI DEVI GOYAL 17000000 8.3154 17000000 [ 8.3159
AT THE END ©OF THE YEAR 17000000, | 8.3154
P RAJESH KUMAR 4] 0.0000 8] 00000
Transfer 20 May 2020 | 92209 az209 0.0451
Transfer 85 Jun 2020 | 13101 105310 0.0515
Transfer 21 Aug 2020 | 4000 108310 0.0535
Transfer 04 Sep 2020 | 7000 116310 0.0559 |
Transfer 11 Sep 2020 | BOS 117115 0.0573
Transfer 11 Dec 2020 | 55000 172115 0.0842 |
Transfer 18 Dec 2020 | (50000) 1273115 00557
Transfer 31 Dec 2020 | (43860) J8205 0.0383
Transfer 22 lan 2021 | 3500 81755 0.0400
Transfer 12 Feh 2021 | 500 B2255 00402
Transfer 26 Feb 2021 | 71900 154155 | 0.0754
Transfer 12 Mar 2021 | 5000000 5154155 2.5211
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 5154155 | 25211
3 GAJANAND GOYAL 4] 00000 o 00000
Transfer 05 Jun 2020 | 123745 123245 0.0603
Transfer 04 Sep 2020 | 500 123745 | 0.0505 |
Transfer 11 Bec 2020 | 100 123845 0.0606
Transfer 31 Dec 2020 .| (95520) 28325 0.0139
Transfer 08 lan 2021 | 91500 118825 0.05B6
Transfer 12 Mar 2021 | 5000000 5118525 | 2.5043
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 5119825 | 2.5043 |
4 RAINISH EUMAR GOYAL 360972 0.1795 306972 01795
Transfer 10 Apr 2020 | (160000} 206872 01012
Transfer 17 Apr:2020 | (205500} 1472 00007
Transfer 08 May2020 | 24800 26272 00129
Transfer 15 May2020 | (26100) 172 0.0001
Transfer 22 MayZ(20 | 19000 19172 0.0054
Transfer 20 May2020 | 131171 150343 0.0735
Transfer 05 Jun 2020 | 1529 151872 0.0743
Transfer 04 Sep 2020 | 1000 152872 0.0748
Transfer 11 Sep 2020 | 500 153372 | 0.0750
Transfer 11 Deec 2020 | 60 153432 00751
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Transfer 12 Mar 2021 | 2400000 2553432 | 1.2490
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2553432 | 1.2490
5 | ABHINAV JAIN 55104 0.0323 56104 0.0323
Transfer 17 Apr 2020 | (63066) 3038 0.0015
Transfer 08 May2020 | (700) 2338 0.0011
Transfer 15 May2020 | 7600 5338 0.0049
Transter 22 May2020 | 38639 48577 0.0238
Transfer 29 May2020 | 59800 108377 | 0.0530
Transfer 05 Jun 2020 | 21189 126546 | 0.0634
Transfer 17 Jul 2020 | 400000 525546 | 0.2580
Transfer 21 Aug 2020 | 3000 532545 | 0.2505
Transfer 28 Aug 2020 | (28700) S03845 | 02485
Transfer 04 Sep 2020 | 20000 53846 | 0.2562
Transfer 11 Sep 2020 | 10154 534000 | 0.2512
Transfer 11 Dec 2020 | 400 534400 | 0.2614
Transfer 12 Feb 2021 | 100 534500 | 0.2614
Transter 12 Mar 2021 | 2000000 2534500 | 1.2397
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2534500 | 1.23%7
& | PRINITA JAIN 35000 0.0171 35000 0.0171
Transfer 17 Apr 2620 | (25000) 10000 0.0049
Transfer 24 Apr 2020 | 46742 56742 0.0278
Transfer 01 May2020 | (36311) 20431 0.0100
Transfer 08 May2020 | (6682) 13749 0.0057
Transfer 15 May2020 | 31000 44749 0.0218
Transfer 22 May2020 | (7000} 37749 0.0185
Transfer 29 May2020 | 238713 276462 | 0.1352
Transter 05 Jun 2020 | 155200 431662 | 0.2111
Transfer 12 Jun 2020 | (10000) 471662 | 0L2063
Transfer 11 Sep 2020 | 1000 422662 | 0.2067
Transfer 11 Dec 2020 | 200 422862 | 0.2068
Transfer 12 Mar 2021 | 2000000 2422862 | 1.1851
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2422862 | 1.1851
7 | MONIKA GARG 285000 0.1399 JBE000 | 0.1399
Transfer 10 Apr 2020 | (11745 774255 | 0.1341
Transfer 17 Apr 2020 | (270300) 3355 0.0015
Transfer 30 Jun 2020 | 300000 303355 | 0.1484
Transter 21 Aug 2020 | (18401) 284554 | 0.1394
Transfer 78 Aug 2020 | 7000 286954 | 0.1404
Transfer 04 Sep 2020 | (30055) 258898 | 0.1257
Transfer 11 Sep 2020 | 2000 2588599 | 0.1266
Transfer 11 Dec 2020 | 100 258909 | 0.1257
Transfer 17 Feb 2021 | 50 250043 | 0.1257
Transfer 12 Mar 2021 | 2000000 2755043 | 1.1050
Transfer 19 Mar 2021 | 150000 24059049 | 1.1784
AT THE ENC CF THE YEAR 2400049 | 1.1784
8 | GIRDHARI LAL JAIN 136375 0.0716 146375 | 0.0716
Transter 03 Apr 2020 | (5225) 141150 | 0.0650
Transfer 17 Apr 2020 | (45000) 35150 0.0470
Transfer 24 Apr 2020 | (70637) 25513 0.0125
Transfer 01 May2020 | 35341 50854 0.0258
Transfer 08 May2020 | (13642) 47212 0.0231
Transfer 15 May2020 | (46390) 822 0.0004
Transfer 22 May2020 | 30000 30822 0.0151
Transfer 29 May2020 | 78138 108960 | 0.0533
Transfer 05 Jun 2020 | 26300 135260 | 0.0852
Transfer 12 Jun 2020 | 177179 312439 | 0.1528
Transter 24 Jul 2020 | 16327 328766 | 0.1508
Transfer 31 Jul 2020 | 78000 356766 | 0.1745
Transfer 07 Aug 2020 | (107758) 245008 | 0.1218
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Tmrl{.;ffr 14 Apg: 2020 | 10615 2595623 B.127D
Transfer 21 Aug 2020 | 1655 261282 0.1278
Transfer 04 Sep 2020 | 32000 203282 0.1435
Transfer 11 5ep 2020 | 4000 2B7EBZ 0.1454
Transfer 11 Dec 2020 | 100 257382 {.1455
Transter 12 Mar 2021 | 2000000 22497332 1.1237
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2207282 1.1237
9 SHIVANSHU GUPTA 1333000 0.9211 1863000 0.9211
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1883000 09211
10 ANUBHAY GUPTA 1162758 [0.5688 1162758 0.5688
Transfer 03 Apr 2020 | (5000) 1157758 #.5663
Transfer 15 May2020 | {300000) B57758 041596
TlT:t_nE’r_'fr 12 Jun 2020 | 43000 S00758 0. 4406
Transfer 26 Jun 2020 | 47500 S48258 04638
Transfer 07 Aug 2020 | (942933) 5312 0.0025
Transfzr 14 Aug 2020 | J7157 B2516 00404
Transfer 28 Aug 2020 | 854530 1037455 0.5075
Transfer 30 5ep. 2020 | 21000 1058455 | D.5177
Transfer 09 Oct 2020 | 65573 1124034 0.54598
Transfzr 16 Ock 2020 | 28200 1152234 0.5636
Transfer 23 Ock 2020 | 5000 1157234 | 0.5661
Transfer 13 Nov 2020 | 2766 1160000 0.5674
Tmn_gffr 20 Nov 2020 | 15715 1175715 0.5751
Transfer 11 Dec 2020 | 25000 1200715 0.5873
AT THE END GOF THE YEAR 1205530 05857
11 R. 5, SHARES & SECURITIES LTD Q20733 0.4504 320733 0.4504
Transfer 26 Feb 2021 | 40000 Ge0733 046590
Transfer 12 Mar 2021 | 203621 1164354 0.5595
Transfer 19 Mar 2021 | 95000 1256354 0.6160
Transfzr 26 Mar 2021 | (169849) 1085505 0.5329
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1085505 0.5328
12 FRISHMA KIRTIKUMAR MANGAL D4SZR4 04524 545284 04524
Transfer 03 Apr 2020 | (B5) 945150 | 0.4523
Transfer 12 Jun 2020 | 45085 So02BE 04844
Transfer 19 Jun 2020 | 25000 1015238 0.4986
Transter 24 Jul 2020 2250 1021538 0.4957
Transfer 08 Jam 2021 | (311780) 708753 0.3472
Transfer 15 Jan 2021 | (426753) 283000 0.1384
Transfer 26 Feb 2021 | 428000 711000 0.3478
Transfar 05 Mar2021 | 154000 BES000 0.4231
Transfer 12 Mar 2021 | 21653 886053 04334
Transfer 19 Mar 2021 | 84141 570154 04745
TlT:trE-fEr 31 Mar 2041 | 73500 1043694 0.5105
AT THE END OF THE YEAR in4377e 0.5106
13 GOURAY 1043724 0.5105 1043724 | 0.5105
Transter 17 Apr 2020 | [25000) 1018724 0.4%83
Transfer 13 Nov 2020 | (14724) 1004000 0.4211
Transfer 18 Dec 2020 | (17000) SRFOCO 0.45328
Transfer 25 Dec 2020 | (635500) 351500 0.1719
Tmrgfer 01 Jan 2021 | (80815) Z706ES 0.1324
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 270685 0.1324
14 BABU LAL 1233047 0.6055 1238047 0.6056
TlT:trEffr 30 Ock 2020 | {107533) 1130514 0.5530
Transfer 06 Nowv 2020 | (208431) S220B3 04510
Transfer 13 Nov FDZ0 | (246807 675276 0.3303
Transter 20 Nov 2020 | [375273) 300003 0.1467
Transfer 27 Nov 2020 | (77429) 232574 0.1082
Transfer 04 Dec 2020 | (135637] 8537 00425
Transfer 19 Mar 2021 | 113063 200000 0.0978
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AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2000040 0.0e7a8

15 | HANUMAN PRASAD GOYAL 17000004 §.3152 1700000 g.3154

1]

Transfar 05 Mar 2023 | {17000008) 1] 0.B6000
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 0 . D000

15 | NAVEEN GOYAL 3400000 1.6631 3400000 1.6631
Transfar 05 Mar202% | [3400000) 1] 0.0000
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1] 000060

17 | DAVENDER MITTAL (HUF) 2755950 1,3481 2755950 1.3481
Transfar 10 &pr 2020 | [5000D) 2705959 1.3236
Transfer 07 Aug 2020 | 30003 2735969 1.3383-
Transrar 04 Sep 20206 | 10000 27454950 1.3432
Transfer 25 Sep 2020 | {993621) 1752348 f.8571
Transfer 30 Sep 2020 | {400000] 1352348 0.6615
Transfer 09 Oct 2020 | {539318) 313030 03977
Transfar 16 Oct 2020 | {715649] 97381 .047%
Transfar 23 Oct 2020 | [97381] 1] 0.6000
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1] 0.00G0

Maote: 1. Paid up Shars Capital of the Company (Face Valus Rs. 1.00) at the and of the year iz 2044359600 Shares.

2. Thedetals of holding has been clubbed based on PAN.
3. % of total Shares of the Company 15 based on the paid vp Capital of the Company at the end of the Year.

SR | SHAREHOLDER MAME DPID/ Folio PAN SHARES BENPOS DATE

NO

1 R. 5. SHARES & SECURITIES LTD 120191 0100079382 ARACR1Z14] 824178 31/03/2020

2 R.-5. SHARES & SECURITIES LTD 1201910100079332 AAACR1214) 952950 31/03/2021

3 R 5 5HARES AND SECURITIES LIMITED IN30096610281062 ABACR1214) 896555 31/03/2020

4 RS SHARES AND:SECURITIES LIMITED IN30096610281 062 AAACR1214] 865355 31/03/2021

5 DAVEMDER MITTAL [HUF) 1207080000013736 AAEHD4S060 2735969 31/03/2020

o] BABU LAL 1207080000015558 AAWPLI1Z1H 1238047 '31/03/2020

7 BABU LAL 12089200000602531 AAWPLI121H 200000 31/03/2021

g HANUMAN PRASAD GOYAL 1207080000063564 ABVPGET4840 17G00000 31/03/2020

| & | RATNISH KUMAR GOYAL 1208240000057256 ACMPKT340M 366972 31/03/2020

10 | RAINISH KUMAR GOYAL 1208240000027386 ACMPET340M 2553432 31/03/2021

11 GIRDHARI LAL JAIN 1208240000051674 ADRPIGOS IR 146375 31/03/2020

12 | GIRDHARI LAL JAIN 12082400000%1674 ADRPIGEGIR 2257382 31/03/2021

13 PRINITA JAIM 1208240000051661 ADRPIGOG5E 35000 31/03/2020

| 14 | PRINITA JAIN 12068240000021661 ADRPISOSSE 2422862 31/03/2021

15 | MUNNI DEVI GOYAL 1207080000063575 AEIPG4271] 17000200 31/03/2020

1% | MUNNI DEVI GOYAL 120 70800D0063579 AEIPG4271] 17000000 '31/03/2021

17 | SHIVANSHU GUPTA IN302822101015854 AIDPGA47T4H 1883000 31/03/2020

13 | SHIVANSHU GUPTA TN3D262210101854 AIDPG4474H 1833000 31/03/72021

12 | MONIKA GARG 1208240000051689 AINPGSTOGE 28a000 31/03/2020

20 | MONIKA GARG 1208240000021689 AINPGSTOGE 2408045 31/03/72021

21 KRISHNA KIRTIKUMAR MANGAL 1201 130000859145 AREPM1113G 4562155 31/03/2021

22 | KRISHNA KIRTIKUMAR MANGAL 1201130000859149 AKEPM1113G 760654 31/03/2021

23 FRISHNA KIRTIKUMAR MARNGAL 12045200000317596 AKEPM1113G 483000 31/03/32020

24 | KRISHNA KIRTIKUMAR MANGAL 120=520000031756 AREPM1113G 283000 31/03/2021

23 | KRISHHA K MANGAL TN30429515423320 AKEPM1113G 8% 31/03/2020

26 | KRISHNA K MANGAL TH304 28513423320 AKEPM1113G 85 31/03/2021

27 | ANUBHAV GUPTA 120920000111691 AXFPG7341D 1138258 31/03/2020

23 | ANUBHAV GUPTA 12033900D020092% AKFPG7341D 15500 31/03/7020

25 | ANUBHAY GUPTA 1203390000200529 AKFPG73410 1200715 '31/03/2021

30 | ANUBHAV GUPTA INIDD214207 70068 AKFPG7341D SOG0 31/03/2020

31 ANUBHAY GUPTA TNFOD214 20770068 AKFPGTI410 4815 31/03/2021

32 | NAVEEN GOYAL 1207080000063551 BABPGEGITD 3400000 31/03/2020

33 GATANAND GOYAL 1208240000101658 BAEPGI07OP 51198325 31/03/2021

34 | ABHINAY JAIN 1208240000057 277 BFTPI1L366F 66104 31/03/2020

33 | ABHINAV JAIN 1208240000057277 BFTPILI6GP 25343500
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36 | Gourav 0031734 BULFGATIOP 204000 31/03/2020
37 | Gouray Da1734 BULPGATLIOP 20000 31/o3/2021
383 | GOURAV . 1208160014481813 BULPGATICP 839724 31/03/2020
32 | GOURAV . 1208160014491813 B FGATIOP 66585 31/03/2021
40 | RAJESH KUMAR 1208240000101704 CMZPROSGEE 5154155 31032021
Details in respect of shares held by or on behalf of the FIIs/ FPIs.
Sr. | Name of FII/| Folio Pan Mo. | Address Country Of Regn. No. Mo. of 9% of
Mo | FII/FPI FPI | Mo/DPId Incorporation | with SEBI / Share |share
RBI holding
1 THE FI1 IN3015243 | ARACTZ3 | STANDARD IN-NL-FD- 1000 0.6a05
JAGUAR coooi7e 18R CHARTERED 00B1-
FUND N.V. BANEK 93/EC.CO.FII
SECURITIES /2499/11.01.
SERVICES, p2(56)98-93
3RD FLOOR
23-25,
MAHATMA
GANDHI ROAD
FORT, MUMBAI

E) shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

s. Shareholding of each Shareholding at |
Mo. Directors and each Key the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
Managerial Personnel the year the year
% of total No. of shares % of total shares
No. of shares shares of of the Company
the
At the beginning 29905646 Company
of the year 14.61 29905646 | 14.61
Date wise Increass /| (30000) {0.01} [(30000) (0.01)
Cecrease Iri Promaoters
Shareholding during the
year specifving the reasons
for increase /decrsase (e.g.
allotment [ transfer [ bonus/
sweat eguity etc.)
At the end of the year 29875646 14.60 29875646 i14.60

¥. INDEBTEDMESS -Indebtedness of the Company Including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total Indebtedness

Indzbiednass at the beginning of
the financial year

i} Principal &mount 1355491000 | - - 1356401000
it} Interest dus but not paid 197514000 | - - 197514000
ii) Interest accrued but not due - |- - -
Total (i+ii+iii 1554005000 1554005000

-‘E‘haﬂge in Indebtedness during
the financial year

* Additon 254,026,000.00 | - - 254 ,026,000.00
* Reduchon
Net Change 254,026,000.00 | - - 254,026,000.00
Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year - E—
i] Principal Amount 1063789000 1063789000
i} Interest due but not paid 744742000 744242000

ut} Interest accrued but not due

H_iS-’-l
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration te Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SVIHEAS

5. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

B.D.
Aggarwal®

Bimla Devi
Jindal

Kamini
Jindal

Total
Amount

Pawan
Singla

1

Gross salary

{a} Salary as per provisions
containagd in section 17{1) of the
Income-tax Ack, 1961

(b} Value of perguisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 19461

[c) Profits in lieu of salary under
zection I7{3) Income- tax Act, 1861

Lad bl

Stock Opfion

Sweat Eguity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify__

5

{Others, please specify

* Bajrang Dass Aggarwal expired as on 21, [JEI' 2020
B. Remuneration to other directors

5. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Mame of Directors

Total Amount

Ram Awtar Mittal

| Kishan Lal

Neeraj Chhabra

1

Indzpendent Diractars

Fee for attending board committes
meetings

T50000

750000

540000

2040000

Commission -

Others, please specify -

Total (1)

750000

750000

340000

2040000

Other Non-Executive Directars

bt e

Fee for attending board committes -
meetings

Commission -

Qthers, please specify -

Total (2] -

Total {B)={1+2)

FoO000

750000

S40000

2040000

Total Managerial Remuneration

750000

750000

540000

2040000

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSOMNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

5.No

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

C.5.{Gunjan
Kumar Karn}

C.F.0.(Umas | Total

h Bansal}*

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provesions containsd in
sechion 17{1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

Mot applicable

12,60,000

12,00,000 24 60,000

(b) Value of perguisites ufs 17{2) Income-
tax Act, 1961

[c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 19561

Stock Cption

Sweat Eguity

B '.JJ;IM

Commission

- a5 % of profit

gthers, specify.

Others, please specify

Total

Mot applicable

24,60,000
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDINGOF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority [RD | Appeal
the Description Penalty / [ NCLT/ made,if any
Companies Punishment/ COURT] [(oive
Act Compounding Details)

fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Fenzlty Ml N il il il

Punishment feil Ml il il Hil

Compounding Ml il Mil il il

B. DIRECTORS

Panalty il il il hil il

Pupishment il Nil il il il

Compounding mil il Hil il Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN

DEFAULT

Penalty Ml Ml Nl Kl Nil

Punishment il Wil Nil il Nil

Compounding Mil il Hil rgil Nil

H_IBG
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &
ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT

The Company VIKAS WSP was established in 1288,
The Company is one of the India's foremost guar
gum powder (GGP) manufacturer, supplying to all
sectors of the food industry with an extensive range
of quality products, Besides food, the Company also
offers guar gum for technical applications such as
pet food, oil drlling and fracturing, textile printing,
paper making, etc. Per annum production capacity
of all grades guar gum powder is 58800 MT. The
Company is committed to provide its customers
overall services and values that is the best. It has
contributed significantly to our national output,
employment and exports,

FUTURE OUTLOOK, OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Your Company is worlds leading provider of guar
gum polymers, knows how much traceability means
to food and pharmaceutical producers. It offers a
complete and trustworthy range of guar polymers
world-wide and can fully prove their origins.
Traceability serves both regulatory and consumer
reguirements. The Company is known for proven
production processes, advanced guality systems
and reliable supplies. These are the reasons that
yvour Company has abducted most of the expanding
market of guar polymers. Company’'s R&D has a
gimlet-eye on the application problems and their
solutions which goes a long way in expanding its
business in all segments in the vyears ahead.
Currently, your Company is the sole producer of
“Certified Organic guar polymers” and the same is
an oppertunity for the Company to spread its wings
in markets where none existed before. Threats -
Guar is a xerophytes plant and the rain pattern of
the monsoons in the Indian arid zene - mainly
Waestern desert of Rajasthan provides ideal growing
conditions. The need for just the right ameunt of
rain at the right time leaves the guar crop heavily
dependent on the annual rainfall pattern and causes
occasional wide swings in guar supply and prices.
With the emergence of irrigated guar seeds,
dependency of guar crop on monscon has been
minimized. Mow its crop is irrigated with canal
water at the right time that increased its per
hectare vield greatly.
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Annexure-yV

COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

During the current year wunder review your
Company has achieved a total turnover of Rs
22,161.23 lakhs as compared to Rs. 75,792.89
lakhs in the previgpus year during the year under
review the Company has net foss of Rs. (11,452.339)
lakhs,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

Your Company remains committed to enlarging
Foreign Exchange Earnings. Earnings from exports
create arowing value for the Indian Economy and
also serve to benchmark the competitiveness of
your Company’s operations with global standards.

The VIKAS WSP's contribution te Foreign Exchange
Earning from agro exports is a measure of your
Company's growing contribution to the ruoral
eConamy.

BUSINESS SEGMENT

As the Company is dealing only in Guar derivatives
and Guar Polymers, therefore, segment wise detail
is not reguired to incorporate.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company is having adeguate intermal control
systems and procedures which commensurate with
the size of the Company. All the departments of the
Company are following the established rules and
regulaticns for internal control systems. Company
established a Internal Control Audit Department
which ensure that the intemal control systems are
properly followed by all the concerned departments
of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Beyond Balance Sheet, Company's singly biggest
asset is its Human Resource, The Company is of
firm belief that the human resources are the driving
force towards progress and success. The Company
continued its policy of attracting and recruiting best
available talents so that it can face business
challenges ahead. The Company also offers
attractive compensation packages to retain and
motivate its professionals so that they can infuse
their best efforts. The industrial relation continues
to be cordial during the year.

Though the statement and views expressed in the
above said report are on the basis of certain
assumptions and expectations of future events, but
actual results may differ from whatever is stated in
the annual report,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to
present the Company's report on  Corporate
Governance for the vear ended March 31, 2021.
Corporate Governance is more than set of
processes and compliances at Vikas WSP Limited. It
underlines the role that we ses for ourselves for
today, tomorrow and bevond,

The fellowing report on Corporate Governance,
reflecting ethos of Vikas WSP Limited and its
continuous  commitment to ethical business
principles across its operations, lays down the best
practices and the procedures adopted by the
Company in line with the Securlties and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {Listing
Regulations} and internationally foliowed standards
of corporate governance.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBL)
on 28th March 2018 has accepted some of the
recommendations of Kotak Committes on Corporate
Governance. Subseguently, on Sth May 2018 the
SEBI has amended {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure  Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(Listing Regulations).

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY

Qur name and logo refiects our philosophy and
policy. "Wikas”™ means development: in terms of
thouaht and deed. Vikas is a Shining Star in red,
over an oval encompassing our name, is our
constant reminder to out-shine others.

Vikas WSP Limited would like to be known as an
‘excellent” Company in terms of the guality of
governance, the products it manufactures and
trades in, in Customer Services, in fair dealings with
its stakeholders and in the standards of individual
and Company performance. The Company has a
strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical
governance practices. We believe good governance
is an essential ingredient of good business, good
governance and good business have many things in
COMMmon; participatory decision makinag,
accountability, responsivensss, transparsncy,
effectiveness and efficiency among others.

For us good governance and good business is not a
destination but a centinuing journey which is lead
by streng, efficient and competent board.

The norms and processes of Corporate Governance
reflect our commitment to disclose tmely and
accurate information regarding our financial and
operational performance, as well as the Company
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leadership and govermance structure. Owver the
yvears, our stakeholder commitment has enhanced
the respect and recall of our brand nationally and
internationally .Our Global stature has enabled us
to attract best industry talent and financial
resources to translate our short term and long term
strategies into a viable business blueprint.

Our governance  conforms to global standards
through continuocus evaluation and benchmarking.
It is based on the following broad tensts whereby
the Company:

= Adopts transparent procedures and practices
and arrives at decisions based on adequate
information.

= Ensure compliance with regulatory and fiduciary
requiraments in letter and spirit.

« Offers high Levels of Disclosures to disseminate
Corperate; fimandal and operational information
to all stakeholders.

« Adopts policies on tenure of Directors, rotaton
of Auditors and a Code of Conduct for Directors
and Senior Management.

= Creates various Committess for Audit & Risk
Management, HR and MNomination, Corporate
Social Responsibility, Employee Siock Option
Plans and Stakeholders’ Relationship.

« Ensures complete and timely disclosure of
relevant financial and operational information to
enable the Board to plan an effective role in
guiding strategies.

« Offers a formal induction schedule and provide
familiarization programme for new Board
Members that enable them to meat individually
with the top management team, customers etc.

« Review regularly and establishes effective
meeting practices that encourage active
participation and contribution from  all
members,

= Ensures independence of Directors in reviewing

and approving corporate strategy, major
business plans and activities.
« Keeps in place a well-defined corporate

structure that establishes checks, balances and
delegates decision making to appropriate levels
in the organization, though the Board always
remains in effective control of Affairs.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The current policy of the Company is to have an
executive Chairman who is also the Managing
Director, There are a total of Six directors in the
board of which independent directors consists of
50.00 %. Al Directors except MNonexecutive
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Directors have long experience in the Guar Gum
Industry. None of the MNon-executive Directors is
responsible for day-to-day affairs of the Company.

Cur Board of Directors (Board”) shapes the long-

environment by following green
technelogies.

Classification of Board:

iﬂﬂ%@

practices and

included.

as on 13.10.2020

23.06.2021
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term vision and policy approach to steadily elevate 5. Category Number of | 2% to total
the guality of Governance in our organization. We No. Directors number of
follow a defined guideline and an established Directors
framewerk of corporate governance. The objective 1. Executive 3 50.00 %
is to emerge as a market leader in our industry, Director
nationally and internationally with focus on creating 2. Independent | 3 50.00 %
greater value for all those who have a stake in our Director |
progress directy or indirectly. At the same time, Total | 6 100%
the Board puts a lot of emphasis on creating a
global talent poof and helping protect the
The Composition and category of Directors in the Board of the Company are: -
5. Name of the | Category = Total number  of | Total number of
MNo. | Director membership of the | chairmanship of the
Board Committees Board Committees
-
2 £ = o3
E o a a = = X =
S = e 2 - = A
5 = @ a = % 2 a| £ 8
s | 5 52E£ 5 £ | EZssi oz £
-8 | 2233E = | ESe§| E =
Z3 Egg3E E2E Ex 32| F E
From] . |
es saS68 588 GE ESE6( GES
t; Mr. Bajrang Chairman cum 4 1 2 - -
Dass Aggarwal | Managing Director
2. Mrs. Bimla Executive Director | 4 - 2 - -
Devi Jindal
3. Mrs. Kamini Executive Director | 4 1 1 - -
Jindal
4 Mr. Neeraj Independent 2 2 2 i i
Chhabra Director
5 Mr. Kishan Lal | Independent i - - - -
Director
&. Mr. Ram Independent 4 2 4 1 -
Awiar Mittal Director
7- Mr. Pawan Executive Director | 2 1 2 - -
Singla
Motes: -

While considering the total number of directorships, directorships in private companies have also been

= Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal expired as on 21.09.2020. So that Mr. Pawan Singla appointed

= Mr. Pawan Singla resigned in Vikas Proppant & Granite lLimited with effect from
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Details of Board meeting held during the
financial year 2020-2021.

During the financial year 2020-2021, 16 (Sixteen)
board meetings were held and the gap between two
meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on
which said mestings were held are as follows:

S. No. | Types of Meeting Date

1. Board Mesting 18.06.2020
2. Board Mesting 26.06.2020
3. Board Mesting 14.07.2020
4. Board Mesting 20.07.2020
5. Board Mesting 02.09.2020
. Board Mesting 07.09.2020
7. Board Meeting 11.09.2020

. 8. | Board Meeting 12.10.2020 |

=5 Board Mesting 13.10.2020
1. Board Mesting 31.10.2020
ii. Board Mesting 09.11.2020
12. Board Mesting 18.11.2020
13. Board Meeting 27.11.2020
14, Board Mesting 22.01.2021
15, Board Mesting 18:03.2021
16. Board Masting 31.03.2021

Detailed Agenda notes and the information's
reguired to be given in terms of Companies Act,
2013, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards
were circulated to the Board.

The necessary quorum was present for all the
meetings.

5. Name of Number | Attendance
MNo. | Director of Board | at the last
Meeting | AGM held on
Attended | September
28, 2020
1. Mr. Bajrang o No
Diass
Aagarwal
2. Mrs. Bimla 15 Mo
| Devi Jindal
3. Mrs. Kamini 16 Yes
Jindal
4, Mr. Meera] 16 Yes
Chhabra
5. Mr. Kishan Lal | 16 Mo
&. Mr. BEam 16 ¥es
Awtar Mittal
7. Mr. Pawan 8 Mo
Singla

LIMIT ON THE NUMBER OF DIRECTORSHIPS

In compliance with the Lsting Regulations,
Directors of the Company do not serve as
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Independent Director in more than seven Listed
Companies or in case he/she is serving as a Whole-
Time Director in any Listed Company, does not hold
such position in more than three Listed Companies

BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors comprises of highiy
renowned professionals drawn from diverse fields.
They bring with them wide range of skills and
experience to the Board, which enhances the
guality of the Board’s decision making process.
Brief profile of the Company™s Board of directors is
as under:

Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal (Managing

Director & Chairman)

Mr. Bajrang Dass Agagarwal is 3 well-known and
trusted name for Guar Gum Industry. He is one of
the most respected business personalities in India.
Mot only for guar crop harvesting farmers he is a
helping hand but also to others, may it be on
farming end or educational end. He has introduced
new standards in management, efficiency and
corporate social responsibility to an industry he has
helped transform.

Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal is the Founder &
Promoter and current Chairman and Managing
Cirector of the Company. In the year 1288, VIKAS
WSP LIMITED was formed out of his efforts. Ik is
because of his efforts only that today, VIKAS WSP
LIMITED is a large guar gum exporting Company
in India.

Under his |eadership, WVIKAS has achieved
significant improvements in the areas of guar gum
manufacturing guality and production of Organic
Guar Gum.

* Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal expired as on
21.09.2020

Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal (Whole Time Director)

Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal, wife of Mr. Bajrang Dass
Aggarwal belonging to the promoter group is a
Whole Time Director in the Company. She has been
appointed by the Board in 2005.

She holds a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce. She
belongs to a leading Guar Gum Industrialist family.
Her long term experience and association with Guar
Gum industry is helping and enlightening the glory
paths of VIKAS,

Mrs. Kamini Jindal { Executive Director)

Mrs. Kamini Jindal, belonging to promoter group is
an Executive Director in the Company., She has
been appointed by the Board in 2012. Ms. Kamini
Jindal is a person with excellent academic
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background and possesses good educational
gualifications. She is Master of Art and Master of
Philosephy. She is the youth diva in the board of
the Company. She is the daughter of Mr. Bajrang
Dass Aggarwal and Bimla Devi Jindal, from her
childhood she has taken keen interest in the
working of the VIKAS. Her long term association
with Guar Gum Industry has brought immense
value to the board.

Mr. Kishan Lal {(Independent Director)

Mr. Kishan Lal, Independent Director of the
Company has been appointed by the Board as an
additional Director w.e.f. 27.10.2007. He holds a
Master Degree in science. He is the former Director
General of Police, Government of Rajasthan. Mr.
Kishan Lal is having a long term experience to
enforce the law & eorders. A highly disciplined
personality with vast knowledge of legal aspects
ultimately results in value addition to the efficiency
and effectiveness of the Board.

Mr. Ram Awtar Mittal (Independent Director)

HMr. Ram Awtar Mittal, Independent Director of the
Company has been appointed by the Board as an
additional Director w.e.f. 11.08.2008. He has
retired from Indian Revenue Services and having
long experience in Accounts, Audit and taxation.
Presently, he is chairman of the audit committee in
the Company. & keen observer of minute details of
facts and figures, his observations is helping in
growth and expansion of the Company.

Mr. Neeraj Chhabra (Independent Director)

Mr. Neeraj Chhabra, Independent Director of the
Company has been appointed by the Board as an
Additional Director w.e.f, 04.01.2013. Mr. Neeraj
Chhabra is a person with excellent academic
background and possesses good  educational
gualifications. He is post graduate in Pharmacy.
Having vast knowledge about chemical aspects, his
expertise is leading Company on high gquality
manufacturing guar gum powder.

Mr. Pawan Singla (Executive Director)

Mr. Pawan Singla, Executive Director of the
Company has been appointed by the Board as an
Additional Executive Director w.e.f. 12.10.2020.
Having an experience of 05 years in the field of
Guar Gum.

REMUNERATION POLICY
Remuneration Policy for Executive Director:

Subject to the approval of the Members and other
approvals as may be reguired under the Companies

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21

SVHEAS o

Act, 2013, the remuneration of Managing Director is
decided by the Board of Directors on the
recommendation of the Nominaticn and
Remuneration Committee previously known as
Compensation Committes, In determining the
remuneration, the committee  takes  into
consideration the size of the Company's operations
and the onerous responsibility reqguired to be
shouldered by the incumbent, the remuneration
paid by comparable concerns and the performance
of the Company. Their respective annual salaries
are as under:

5. No | Name of the Director Salary (Rs.)
1. | Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal | Nil_
| Z: Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal il

3. Mrs. Kamini Jindal Nil

4. Mr. Pawan Sinala Nil

REMUNERATION POLICY OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR:

In recognition of the contribution and the time
spent on the Company's business and taking into
consideration the size and the complexity of the
Company’s operation the remuneration of
Independent directors is fixed after the approval
dully taken from shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting. Their respective annual remuneration will
not be more than as under:

5. | Name of the Salary (Including
MNo. Director sitting fees and

| Ram Awtar Mittal | 7,50,000

:
2. | Kishan Lal 7.50,000 |
3. | Meeraj Chhabra 5,940,000 |

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

The Board has complete access to all information
with the Company. All Board mestings are governed
by a structured agenda which is backed by
comprehensive background information. Since the
vear 2011-12, as a part of green initiative, the
Company is helding and convening its Board
(including Committese) mestings and General
Meeting.

The information pertaining to mandatory items as
specified in the Listing Regulations, Companies Act,
2013 and other applicable laws, along with other
business issues, is regularly provided to the Board,
as part of the agenda papers at least 7 days in
advance of the Board meetings (except for certain
unpublished price sensitive information which is
circulated at shorter notice).
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POST MEETING FOLLOWS UP SYSTEM:

The Company has an effective post Board meeting
follow up procedure. Acton taken report on the
decisions taken in a meeting is placed at the
immediately succeeding meeting for information of
the Board.

The Board has established procedurses to
periodically review Compliance Report pertaining to
all laws applicable to the Company as well as steps
taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-
compliance.

SUCCESSION PLAN: The Board of Directors has
satisfied itself that plans are in place for crderly
succession for outgoing Members of the Board of
Directors and Senior Management Personnel,

Roles and Responsibilities of Board Members

Vikas WSP Limited has laid down a clear policy
defining the structure and role of Board Members,
The policy of the Company is to have a Executive
Chairman - presently Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal, a
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) - presently Mrs,
Privanka Bindra, and an optimum combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Promoter/
Independent Directors. The duties of Board
Members as a Director have been enumerated in
Listing Regulaticns, Section 166 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Schedule IV of the said Act, the last
being Independent Directors specific. There is a
clear demarcation of responsibility and authority
amongst the Board Members.,

< The Chairman: His primary role is to provide
leadership to the Board in achieving goals of
the Company in accordance with the charter
approved by the Board. He is responsible for
transforming the Company intc a world-class
organization that is dedicated to the well-bsing,
nat only within India but across the globe, apart
from leaving a fortunate legacy to posterity,
Also, as the Chairman of the Board he is
responsible for all the Board matters. He is
responsible, inter-alia, for the working of the
Board and for ensuring that all relevant issues
are placed before the Board and that all
Directors are encouraged to provide their
expert guidance on the relevant issues raised in
the meetings of the Board. He is also
responsible  for formulating the corporate
strategy along with other members of the Board
of Directors. His role, inter-alia, includes:

a) provide leadership to the Board & preside
over all Board & General Mestings.

b} achieve goals in  accordamce  with
Company soverall vision.
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c] ensure that Board decisions are aligned
with Company’ s strategic policy.

d) oversee  and evaluate the  owverall
performance of Board and its Members.

e] ensure to place all relevant matters before
the Board and encourage  healthy
participation by all Directors to enable them
to provide their expert guidance.

f] monitor the core management team.

The CFO and Executive Directors are
responsible for implementation of corporate
strategy, brand equity planning, extemnal
centacts and other Management matters which
are approved by the Board. They are also
responsible for achieving the annual and long
term business plans. Their role, inter-alia,
includes:

@

(a) crafting of vision and business strategies of
the Company.

(b} clear understanding and accomplishment of
Board set goals.,

(c} responsible for overall performance of the
Company in terms of revenues & profits
and goodwill.

(d) acts a5 a
Management.

(e} ensure compliance with statutory provisions
under multiple regulatery enactments.

<  Non-Executive Directors (including
Independent Directors) play a critical role in
balancing the functioning of the Board by
providing Independent judgements on various
issues raised in the Board meetings like
formulation of business strategies, monitoring
of performances etc,

Their role, inter-alia, indudes:

a} impart balance to the Board by providing
independent judgement.

by provide feedback on Company’s strategy
and performance.

link between Board and

c) provide effective feadback and
recommendations for further
improvements.

Board Membership Criteria

The Momination and BRemuneration Committee in
coensultation with Directors/others determine the
appropriate characteristics, skills and experience for
the Board as a whole, as well as its individual
Members. The selection of Board Members is based
on recommendations of the MNominationh and
Remuneration Committee.
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The skill profile of Independent Board Members is
driven by the key performance indicators defined by
the Board, breoadly based on:

a) independent Corporate Govermance.

b} guiding strategy and enhancing
shareholders’ value.

c} monitoring performance, Management
development & compensation.

d} control & compliance.

Board Support and Role of Company Secretary
in Overall Governance Process

The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring
that the Board procedures are followed and
regularly reviewed, investors’ gueries are handled
promptly and reporis to the Board about
compliance with the applicable  statutory
requirements and laws.

The process for the Board and Committee meetings
provides an effective post meeting follow-up,
review and reporting of decisions taken by the
Board and Committee members at their respective
meetings. Important decisions taken at Board and
Committee meetings are communicated prompty to
the concerned departments. Action taken reports
{(ATRs) on decisions taken or recommendations
made by the Board/Committee members at the
previous mesting(s) are circulated at the next
meeting.

Mr. Gunjan Kumar Kam is Chief Compliance Officer.
CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics which is applicable to
the Members of the Board and all employees in the
Management grade. The code has been posted on
the Company’s website www.vikaswspltd.in

The code lays down the standard of conduct which
is expected to be followed by the concermed
Directors and the designated employees in their
business dealings and in particular on matters
relating to conflict of interests, bribery and
corrupticn, integrity of accounting and financial
reporting, fair competition, Corporate Social
Responsibility, concern for sustainable
development, concern for occupational health and
safety, use of licensed software, email and internet
and corporate communications.

All the board members and senior management
personnel have confirmed compliance with the
code.

Commitment to ethical professional conduct is a
must for every employee, including Board Members
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and Senior Management Personnel of Vikas WSP
Limited. The Code is intended to serve as a basis
for ethical decision-making in  conduct of
professional work.

The Code of Conduct enjoins that each individual in
the organization must know and respect existing
laws, accept and provide appropriate professional
views, and be upright in his conduct and observe
corporate  discipline. The duties of Directors
including duties as an Independent Director as laid
down in the Companies Act, 2013 alsoc forms part of
the Code of Conduct.

The Code of Conduct is available on the website of
the Company www.vikasguargum.com. All Board
Members and Senior Management personnel affirm
compliances with the Code of Conduct annually. A
declaration signed by the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) to this effact is placed at the end of this
report.

3. Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has constituted following five
Board Committees and every Committee has an
important role to play within terms of its reference.
The Committese Meetings are duly convened and
held as considered appropriate from time to time.
The process and procedure related te the Board
Meetings are also applicable and followed in the
Committee Mestings.

(a) Audit Committee,

(b} Momination and Remuneration Committes,
(c) Stakeheolder Relationship Committesg,

(d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committes,
(e} Risk Management Committes,

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning,
co-opting and fixing the terms of reference of
various Committees. Details on the role and
composition of these Committees, including the
number of meetings held during the Financial Year
and the related attendance are provided below.

(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE (REGULATION 18 OF
THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015)

The Company has an adequately gualified Audit

Committee and {5 composition mests the

reguirement of Section 177 of the Companies Act,

2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 ("Listing regulations™),

The Board has amended and enhanced the terms of

reference of the Audit Committes. The current

charter of the Audit Committee is in line with
international best practices as well as the
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regulatory reguirements mandated by Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI {Listing
Chligation and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulationis, 2015.

The Composition is as below:-

5. | Name Dresignation

1. | Mr. Ram Awtar Non-Executive - Independent
rittal Director, Chairperson
2. | Mr. Neeraj Chhabra |Non-Executive - Independent
Director, Member
3. | Mrs. Kamim Jindal  [Execubive Director, Member

Mr. Ram Awtar Mittal has been appointed as
chairman of this committee. He has sound
knowledge in finance, taxation and accounts and
has long experience in this industry.

Some of the important functicns performed by the
Committes are:

Financial Reporting and Related Processes

Oversight of the Companys financial reporting
process and financial informatien submitted to the
Stock Exchanges, regulatory authorities or the
public., The terms of reference includes the
following, as is mandated under Regulation 18 of
CEBI  (Listing  Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013:

< Reviewing with the Management the guarterly
unaudited financial statements and the
Auditors’ Limited Review Report
thereonfaudited annual financial statements
and Auditors’ Report thereon before submission
to the Board for approval. This would, inter alia,
include reviewing changes in the accounting
policies and reasons for the same, major
accounting estmates based on exercise of
judgement by the Management, significant
adjustments made in the financial statements
and / or recommendation, if any, made by the
Statutory Auditors in this regard.

< Review the Management Discussion & Analysis
of financial and operational performance.

% Discuss with the Statutory Auditors, their
judgement about the guality and
appropriateness of the Company’'s accounting
principles with reference to the Generally
Accepted Accounting Prindples in  India
(IGAAP).

% Review the investments, if any made by the
Company.

< ogversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
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information to ensure that the finandal

statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

< recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;

< approval of payment to statutory auditors

for any other services rendered by the

statutory auditors;

reviewing, with the management, the

annual financial statements and auditor's

report thereon before submission to the
board for approval, with particular reference
to:

a) matters required to be included in the
director’'s responsibility statement to be
included in the board's report in terms
of clause {(c) of sub-section (3) of
Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013:

b} changes, if any, in accounting policies
and practices and reasons for the same;

c) major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

d} significant adiustments made in the
financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

e] compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial

+
e

statements;

f) discosure of any related party
transacticns;

g) modified cpinion(s) in the draft audit
report;

<+ reviewing, with the management, the

quarterly  financial statement  before

submission to the board for approval;
reviewing and monitering the auditor's
independence and  performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

% approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related
parties;

< scrutiny  of inter-corporate loans and
investments;

<  valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company wherever it is necessary;

% evaluation of internal financial controls and
risk management systems;

< reviewing, with the management,

performance of statutory and internal

auditors, adeguacy of the intermal control
systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit

furnction, if any, including the structure of

-+,
whe

+
Ll
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the internal audit department, staffing and
seniority of the officdal heading the
department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

% discussion with internal “auditors of any
significant findinogs and follow up there on;

< reviewing the findings of any intemnal

investigations by the internal auditors into

matters where thers is suspected fraud or

irregularity or a failure of internal control

systems of a material nature and reporting

the matter to the board;

discussion with statutory auditors before

the audit commences, about the nature and

scope of audit as well as post-audit

discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

% to logk into the reasons for substantial
defaults in the payment to the depositors,
shareholders {in case of nonpayment of
declared dividends) and creditors:

< to review the functioning of the whistle
blower mechanism;

< approval of appointment of chief financial
officer after assessing the gualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the
candidate;

< carrying out any other function as is
mentioned in the terms of reference of the
audit committee,

“

The audit committee shall mandatorily review the
following information:

1. management discussion and analysis  of
financial condition and results of operations;

2. statement of significant  related  party
transactions (as defined by the audit
committes), submitted by management;

3. management letters / letters of intermal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. internal audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses: and

5. the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the chisf internal auditor shall
be subject to review by the audit committee.

6. statement of deviations:
al quarterly statement of deviation{s)

including report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s)
in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI
{Listing Obligations and  Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

b} annual statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than these stated in the
offer document/ prospectus/ notice in
terms of Regulation 32{7) of SEBI {Listing
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Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015..

The composition of the Audit Committee and
the details of meetings attended by its
members are given below:

The composition of the Audit Committes is in
compllance with the requiremeants under Regulation
i8 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. As on date, it
consists of three members, all of them including the
Chairman are non-executive independent directors.
All the Members on the Audit Committee have the
reguisite qualification for appointmient on the
Committee and possess sound knowledge of
finance, accounting practices and internal controls.

The Committee invites Chief Financial Officer and
Financial Controller of the Company and
representative(s) of the Statutory Auditors to
attend the meetings of the Audit Committee on a
regular basis.

SENa:mnfEDesignaﬁun Attended |
N{ Member 26.06. [07.09.] 3112, | 2201 [Broa |
| 2020 | 2020 | 2020 | 2021 (2021 |
L pr. Ram Chasman Yaz | Yes fes fes Yoz |
Auwtar
it | |
2. M. Member Yes | Yes | Yes Yes | Yes |
i
findsl | L
3. Mr.  PMember | Yes | Yes | Yes | Ves | Yes |
Mezrg)
\Chhabra

The minutes of the meetings of the audit committee
are placed before the Board and the Company is
following the recommendations of the audit
committes,

Audit Committee Report for the year ended
March 31, 2021

To the Board of Directors of Vikas WSP
Limited,

The Committee comprises of Two Independent
Directors. The Management is responsible for the
Company’s internal financial controls and financial
reporting process. The Independent Auditors are
responsible for performing an Independent audit of
the Company's financial statements in accordance
with the Indian GAAP and for issuing a report
thereon. The Committee is responsible for
overseeing the processes related to financial
reporting and information dissemination.

In this regard, the Committee discussed with the
Company’s Statutory Auditors the overall scope for
their audit. The Committee also discussed the result
of examinations made by Internal Auditors, their
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evaluation of the Company's internal financial
controls and the owverall gquality of financial
reporting. The Management alsc presented to the
Committee the Company’s financial statements and
also represented that the Company's financial
statements had been drawn in accordance with the
Indian GAAP,

Based on its review and discussions conducted with
the Management and the Independent Auditors, the
Audit Committee believes that the Company's
financial statements are presented in conformity
with Indian GAAP in all material aspects.

The Committes has also reviewed Statement of
contingent liabilities, management discussion and
analysis, financial statements of company,
Directors' responsibility statement, financial results
and draft audit/ limited review report thereon,
financial statements and draft Auoditors” report,
approval {including modification, if any) and review
of Related Party Transactions and scrutinized inter
corporate  loans of the Company. The Risk
assessment and minimization procedures were also
reviewed, During the vyear, the Committee also
approved amendments In the Policy on Related
Party Transactions, evaluated the Internal Financial
Control & Risk Management System of the
Company. Complaints received under Whistie-
Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism were also monitored
by the Committes. The Committes affirms that in
compliance with the Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil
Mechanism no persennel had been denied access to
the Audit Committes.

The Committee has appeinted M/s Sanjay Goyal
8 Associates, Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditors of the Company for the period from
01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021 and discussed and
approved their audit plan. The Committes
appointment of M/s 5. Prakash Aggarwal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, Sri Ganga MNagar as
Statutory Auditors of the Company, to carry out
audit of the accounts of the Company for June
Quarter, 2020 B September Quarter, 2020. After
resignation of M/s 5. Prakash Aggarwal & Co as
on 05.03.2021 the Committese appeointed M/s AK
Chadda & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Reqgistration MNo. 008682N) for December Quarter,
2020 and March Quarter, 2021

To conclude, the Committee is sufficiently satisfied
that it has complied with the responsibilities as
outlined in the Audit Committee’s responsibility
statement.

Place: Sri Ganga
Magar
Date : 07.09.2021

Mr. Ram Awtar Mittal
Chairman
Audit Committee

E_rms

(b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (REGULATION 19 OF THE SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015)

The Beoard of Directors has constituted
MNomination and Remuneration Committes,
pursuant to the requirements of Section 178 of
the Act read with rules netified thersunder and
Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015, The Committee’s composition and terms
of refereance mest with the requirements of the
above mentioned provisicns. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the
Committes.

(I) TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference includes the following:

1. To formulate the criteria for determining
gualifications, positive  attributes and
independence of a director and recommend
to the Board a policy, reladng to the
remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other emplovees.

2. To formulate criteria for wvaluation of
performance of Independent Directors and
the Board of Directors.

3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of

Directors.

4. To identify persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be
appointed in  senior management in

accordance  with the criteria to be
formulated by the Committes, recommend
to the Board their appointment and
removal.

5. To identify whether to extend or continue
the term of appointment of independent
directors, on the basis of the report of

performance  evaluation of independent
directors:
(II) COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND
ATTENDANCE
The committee consists of following members,
S. Name Designation
Mao.
I. Mr. Kishan Lal Execufive Director, Member
2z Mr. Ram Awtar | Non-Executive -
Mittal Independent Directar,
Chairperson
= Mir. Meera] | Non-Executive -
Chhabra Independent Directar,
Member
4. Mr. Gungan | Company Secretary
Kumar kKarn
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Buring F.Y. 2020-2021,
22.01.2021 & 31.03.2021.

The attendance of members at the meetings held during F.Y. 2020-2021, are given befow:

iﬂﬂ%@

the Committee met Five times i.e. 26.06.2020, 07.09.2020, 31.12.2020,

s. Mame of | Designation Attended

No | Member 26.06.2020 07.09,2020 31.12.2020 22.01.2021 31.03.2021 |

1. Mr. Kishan Lal | Member Mo Mo Mo Mo Yes |

2. Mr. Ram Chairperson Yes Yesz Yes Yes Yes
Awtar Mittal

3 Mr. Meera) Member VEs Yes Yes Yes VEs
Chhabra

4, Mr. Bajrang Member Yes Yes Mo No ho
Dass Aggarwal

3. Mr, Pawan Member No Mo Yes Yes No
Singla

4, Mr. Gunjan Company Mo Yes Yes Yes Yes
Kumar Karn Secretary

* Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal expired as on 21.02.2020. So that Committee appointed Mr. Pawan Singla in
place of Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal. After that the Committee appointed Mr. Kishan lal in place of Pawan

singla
{IIT) PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Act states that the formal annual evaluation
needs to be dome by the Board of its own
performance and that of its Committees and
individual directors, based on the criteria
recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Regulation 17 (10) read
with Schedule II to SEBI (Listing Obligations and
bBisclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Schedule IV to the Act provides: that the
performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors shall be done by the entire Board,
including the director being evaluated, on the
criteria formulated by the said Committee.
Indicative list of factors that may be evaluated
include participation and contribution by a director,
commitment, effective deployment of knowledge
and expertise, integrity and maintenance of
confidentiality.

Performance of the Board and Board Committees
were evaluated on wvarious parameters such as
structure, Compaosition, quality, diversity,
experience, competences, performance of spedfic
duties and obligation, guality of decision making
and over all Board effectiveness,

Performance of individual Directors was evaluated
on parameters, such as meeting attendance,
participation and contribution, responsibility
towards stakeholders and independent judgement.

The Chairman and the Managing Director were
evaluated on certain additional parameters, such as
performance of the Company, leadership,
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relaticnships, communication, recognition and

awards received by the Company.

Some of the performance indicators based on which

the Independent Directors were evaluated include:

« Devotion of Sufficient Time and attention
towards professional obligations for
independent Decision making and for acting in
the best interest of the Company,

« Providing strategic guidance to the Company
and help in determining important policies with
a view to ensure long-term viability and
strength.

= Bringing extermal expertise and independent
judgement that contributes objectivity in the
Board's deliberation, particulariy on issues of
strategy, performance and conflict
management.

(IV) REMUNERATION POLICY

The MNomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company has formed Policy on Nomination and
Remuneration to determine the remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personell, and
Independent Directors of the Company. The policy
consists of followings:- Remuneration to Whaole-
time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and
Senior Management Personnel:

a) Fixed pay: The Whole-time Director/ KMP and
Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible
for a monthly remuneration as may be
approved by the Board on the recommendation
of the Committee. The breakup of the pay scale
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b)

a)

b)

c)

d)

E_rsta

Remuneration to
Independent Director:

and quantum of perguisites including,
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme,
medical expenses, club fees etc, shall be
decided and approved by the Board/ the Person
authorized by the Board on the
recommendation of the Commitkee and
approved by the shareholders and Central
Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration: If, in any financial
year, the Company has no profits or its profits
are inadequate, the Company shall pay
remuneration to ks Whole-time Director in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule Vv of
the Act and if it is not able to comply with such
provisions, then with the previous approval of
the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration: If any
Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly
or indirectly by way of remuneration any such
sums in excess of the limits prescribed under
the Act or without the prior sanction of the
Central Government, where reguired, he / she
shall refund such sums to the Company and
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for
the Company. The Company shall not waive
recovery of such sum refundable to him unless
permitted by the Central Government.

Non- Executive !

Remuneration / Commission:

The remuneration / commission shall be fixed
as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in
the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Act.

Sitting Fees:

The Mon- Executive / Independent Director may

receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committes
thereof,

Provided that the amount of such fees shall not
exceed Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board or
Committee or such amount as may be
prescribed by the Central Government from
fime to time.

Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to
any stock optian of the Company.

Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive
fIndependent Directors for services rendered,
which are of professional in nature shall not be
considered as part of the remuneration if the
following conditions are satisfied:

i) The Services are rendered by such Director
in his capacity as the professional; and

i} In the opinicn of the Committee, the

director possesses the reguisite
qualification for the practice of that
profession.

e) Details of remuneration of Directors

The details of remuneration of director is provided
in director’s report annexure i.e. MGET-9.

V) ROLES AND RESPOMSIBILITIES OF THE

COMMITTEE

HR Related

5
o

+
Ll

il

+
Ll

Formulation and recommendation to the Board,
a policy relating to remuneration of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.
Determine the compensation (including salaries
and salaries adjustments, incentives /benefits,
bonuses) and performance targets of the
Chairman and of the Managing Directors.

In the event of no profit or inadeguate profit, to
approve the remuneration payable to
managerial persons, taking into account the
Company’s financial position, industry trends,
appointee qualification, experience, past
performance, past remuneration while bringing
objectivity in determining the remuneration
package, while striking a balance between the
Company’s interest and shareholders.
Attraction and retention  strategies
employees.

Review employee development strategies.
Assess the learning and development neesds of
the Directors and recommend learning
opportunities, which can be used by Directors
to meet their needs for development.

Review all human resource related issues,
including succession plan of key personnel.

The Committee shall also consider any other
key issues / matters as may be referred by the
Board, or as may be necessary in view of
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations or any
other statutory provisions.

for

ESOP Related

Formulation of ESOP plans and decides on
future grants.

Formulation of terms and conditions on
following under the present ESCP Schemes of
the Company with respect to:

< Quantum of options to be granted under
ESCP Scheme(s) per employes and in the
aggregate under a plan.

% Performance conditions attached to any
ESCP Plan.
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% Conditions under which options wvested in
employees may lapse in case of termination
of employment due to misconduct.

< Exercise period within which the employees
should exercise the option, and that option
would lapse on failure to exercise the option
within the exercise period.

% Specified tme period within which the
employes must exercise the vested options
in the event of termination or resignation of
an employee,

4 Right of an Employee to exercise all the

options wvested in him at one time or at

various points of time within the exercise
period.

Procedure for making a fair and reasonable

adjustment to the number of options and to

the exercise price, in case of right issues |,
bonus issues and other corperate actions.

< Grant, vest and exercise of option in case of
Employees, who are on long leave, and the
procedure for cashless exercise of options.

4 Any other matter which may be relevant for
administration of ESOP schemes from time
to time.

+ Toframe suitable policies and processes
to ensure that there is no violation of
SEBI (Prochibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1922 and SEBI {Prohibition
of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices
relating to the Securities Market)
Regulations, 1995,

»  Other key issues as may be referred by
the Board.

MNomination Related

i

< Formulate the criteria [/ policy for
appointments of Directors, Senior
Management, which shall, inter-alia, include
gualification, positive attributes, diversity
and independence of a Director,

%+ Review and recommend the structure, size
and composition (including the skills |,
knowledge , experience and diversity ) of
the Board and Board Committess,

4 Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity on the Board for
description of the role and capabilities,
reguired for a particular appointment.

4% Identify and recommend to the Board,
persons who are gqualified to become
Directors and who may be appointed in
Senior Management, including Key
Managerial Personnel, in accordance with
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the criteria laid down and their removal
therzof,

< Identify and nominate for the approval of
the Board, candidates to fill Board
yvacancies, as and when they arise.

< Review succession planning for executive
and non- Executive Directors and other
Senior Executives particularly the
Chairman, Managing Directors.

% Recommend suitable candidate for the role
of Lead Independent Director.

< Formulation of criteria for evaluation of
Independent Directors and the Board.

% Conduct an annual evaluation of the overall
effectiveness of the Board, the committee
of the Board and the performance of each
Director.

< Review the Terms of Reference of all
committees of the Board, including itself on
an annual basis, and recommend any
changes to the Board.

The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are
in accordance with the reguirements as specified in
the Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2012 and
other applicable laws, if any. Apart from the above,
the Committee also exercises the role and powers
entrusted upen it by the Board of Directors from
time to time.

Momination and Remuneration Committee
Report for the year ended March 31, 2021

To the Board of Directors of Vikas WSP Limited, The
Momination and Remuneration Committee
comprises of two MNon- Executive Independent
Directors and One Executive Promoter Director. The
main responsibility of the Committee s to
incentivize and reward Executive performance that
will lead to long-term enhancement of shareholder
performance. Further the Committes is also
responsible  for formulating policdes as to
remuneration, performance evaluation, Board
diversity, etc. in line with Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Committee conducted the performance
evaluation of Directors for the Finandial Year 2020-
21, The Committee was also provided information
on compensation policies for employees and the
information to decide on grant of options to various
employees.,

Place: Sr Ganga Magar Ram Awtar Mittal
Date : 07.09.2021 Chairman
MNomination and

remuneration committes
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{c) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In compliance with the Regulation 20 of the Listing
Regulations, requirements and provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, The
Committee comprises three members including two
Independent Directors. Mr, MNeeraj Chhabra, non-
Executive Independent Director is the Chairman of

lp

Issue Duplicate Share certificates in Lieu of the
original certificates of the Company.

Approve, register and refuse to register transfer
J transmission of shares.

To further delegate all or any of the power to
any other employees, officers, representative,
consultants, professional{s], or agent{s].
Overses & review, all matters connected with

the transfer of securities of the Company.

+ DOverses the performance of the Company's

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Committee. The committee specifically redresses » Recommend methods to upgrade the standard

the grievances of the shareholders. of services to the investers.

= To deal with the Company’s undcaimed [
undelivered shares, as prescribed in the
relevant Regulation of the Listing Regulations.

The key responsibilities of the Stakeholders’ » To do all such acts, deeds and things as may be

Relationship Committee include the following: riecessary in this regard.

= to open/ close bank account{s) of the Company
for depositing share/ debenture applications,
allotment and call monies, authorize operation
of such account(s) and issue instructions to the

Bank from time to time in this regard.

« to look Into redressal of shareholders” and
investors” complaints like transfer of shares,
non- receipt of annual report, non- receipt
of declared dividends, etc.

« any allied matter{s) out of and incidental to
these functions and mnot herein above
specifically provided for.

the Committee.

Key Responsibilities of the sStakeholders”
Relationship Committee

= Formulation of procedures, in line with the
statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal
of various requests received from shareholders
from time to time.

= Consider and resolve the complaints /[
grievances of security holders of the Company,
including complaints related to transfer of
shares, nonreceipt of balance sheet and non-
receipt of declared dividend.

= Dematerialize or re-materialize the share
certificate.

= Approve the transmission of shares or other
securities arising as a result of death of the sole
[ any of joint shareholders.

s Sub-divide, consolidate and / or replace any
share certificates of the Company.

The meetings of the Committee are generally held
as and when deemed necessary, to review and
ensure that all investor reguests / grievances are
redressed within stipulated time period.

Meetings, Attendance and Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee The
Stakeholders” Relationship Committee presently comprises of the following Members: -

5. No. Name of Member / Chairman & Company Designation |
Secretary |

- |_Mr. Neeraj Chhabra Non-Executive - Independent Director, Chairman |
2. Mr. Ram Awtar Mittal Mon-Executive - Independent Director, Member |
3. Mr. Pawan Singla Executive Director, Member |
4 | Mr. Guman Kumar Karn Company Secretary |

During Financial Year 2020-2021, the committee met Five times l.e. 26.06.2020, 07.09.2020, 31.12.2020,
22.01.2021 B 31.03.2021. The composition and the attendance of members at the meetings held during F.Y.
2020-2021, are given below:

s. Name of Director Designation Attended

MNo. 26.06.2020 | 07.02.2020 | 31.12.2020 | 22.01.2021 | 31.03.2021

1, Mr. Neeraj Chhabra Chairman ji=] Yes | Yes Yes Yes

Z, Mr. Ram Awtar Mittal Member Yes Yes | Yes Yes Yes

3 Mr. Bajranag Dass Member Yes Yes MNa No Mo
Aggarwal

4, Mr. Pawan Singla Member Mo Mo | Yes Yes Yes

5. Mr. Gunjan Kumar Company Mo Yes Yes Yes Yes
Karn Secretary
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In order to provide efficient services to investors
and for speedy redressal of the complaints, the
Committee has delegated the power of approving
transfer and ftransmission of shares and other
matters like split up / sub-division and consolidation
of shares, issue of new certificates on
rematerialization, subdivision, consclidation and
exchange, subject to a maximum of 10,000 shares
per case and for dematerialization upte a maximum
of 40,000 shares per case, jointly to any two of
Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal, Director and Mr. Gunjan
Kumar Karmm, Company Secretary with help of
Reqgistrar and Share transfer Agent (Link in time
Private Limited).

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Gunjan’ Kumar Kam, Company Secretary acts
as the Compliance officer of the Company for
complying with the requirements of the Listing
Regulations and reguirements of securities laws,
including SEBI {Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

NATURE OF COMPLAINTS AND REDRESSAL
STATUS

During F.¥, 2020-2021, the complaints and gueries
received by the Company were general in nature,
which include issues relating to non-receipt of
dividend warrants, re-validation of Dividend
warrant, shares, annual repocrts and cthers, which
were  resolved to  the satisfaction of the
sharsholders.

Stakeholders” Relationship Committese Report
for the year ended March 31, 2021

To the Board of Directors of Vikas WSP Limited,

SVHEAS o

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

comprises of four Members.

The main responsibility of the Committee is to
ensure cordial investor relations and supervise the
mechanism for redressal of investor grievances
pertaining to transfer of shares, non receipt of
annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends
gic. It performs the funchons of transfer/
transmission/ remat/ demat/ split-up/sub-division
and consolidation of shares, issue of duplicate share
certificates and allied matter{s).

The Committee approved all cases of transfer,
cases of transmission, cases of re-materialization,
cases of dematerialization, cases of sub-division,
case of consolidation, cases of name deletion {due
to death) and cases of issue of duplicate share
certificates.

The Committes facilitate the issuance of duplicate
share certificates and transfer/ transmission/
consciidation/ subdivision/ remat of more than
10,000 shares per case/ demat of more than
40,000 shares per case, within the prescribed
timelines.

The Committes also reviewed the status of
investors” grievances on quarterly basis. The
Company received all complaints during the year all
of which were redressed. As at the close of the
Financial Year thers were three complaints pending
for redrassal.

NEERAJ CHHABRA
Chairperson
Stakeholders’

Relationship Committee

Place:
Sri Ganga Magar
Date : 07.09.2021

The details of grievances received from the shareholders during the year 2019-2020 are as follows:-

Sr. No Complaint received through No of complaints Status

1 GEBI(Score) Resolved

2 ESE Resolved

3 RTA Resglved

4 | Investor 130 _Resplved
TOTAL 20

(d) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The Company is required u/s 135 of Companies Act, 2013, to spend at least 29 of the average net profit
made by the Company during the three preceding Financial year on CSR activities provided in schedula
VI and constitute Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Committee for this purpose.

The Committee Consist of three members Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal, Mr. MNeeraj Chhabra, Mrs. Bimia
Devi Jindal, Mr. Gunjan Kumar Karn, Company Secretary of the Companies Acts as a Secretary of the

committes,
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5. Mame of Director/ | Designation Attended |
No. | Company Secretary 26.06.2020 | 07.02.2020 | 31.12,2020 | 22.01.2021 | 31.03.2021 |
1. Mr. Neera] Chhabra Chairman Yes Yes Yes | Yes Yes '
2, Mr. Bajrang Dass Member ez Yes Mo Mo Mo

Agoarwal
| 3. | Mrs. Bimla DeviJindal | Member Yes | Yes | Yes Yes Yes
£, Mr. Pawan Singla Member Nao | Mo | Yes Yes Yes
4, Mr. Gunjan Kumar Company Mo Yes Yes Yes Yes
Karn Secretary
*= Mr. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal expired as on in the Company and to ensure a proper reporting of

21.00.2020. So that in place of Mr. Bajrang Dass
Aggarwal the committee appointed ™Mr. Pawan
Gingla Member of the Committee

(e) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has formed a risk management
committee under Regulation 17 & 21 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("Listing regulations™). The
Committes is reguired to identify the risks involved

the risks to the Board of Directors, so that they can
form their business strategies as per that.

During the Financial Year 2020-2021, the
Committee met four times on  26.06.2020,
07.09.2021, 31.12.2020, 22.01.2021 &
31.03.2021.

The details of attendance of Members are given
below:

The Committee consist of three members namely:-

S. | Name of Director Designation Attended
No. 26.06.2020 | 07.09.2020 | 31.12.2020 | 22.01.2021/31.03.2021
i, M. Bagrang Dass Agoanwal Chaiman es Yes Mo 1] Mo
2i M. Kamen Jindal Chairperson eg fes es fes fies
|_Mrs. Bimla Dew: Jndal Member | Yes R Yes | Yes | Yes
a2, | Mr. PawanSngh Mamber Ho Ho Ves Yes Yes

The Committee has laid down a policy known as
Risk Management policy for identification of risk
involved.

The role of the Committee is as under:

1. Preparation of Risk Management Plan, reviewing
and monitoring the same on regular basis.

2. To update Risk Register on guarterly basis.

3. To review critical risks identified by Joint Chief
Risk Officer({s) and Management Committee of the
Company an gquarterly basis.

4. To report key changes in critical risks to the
Board on quarterly basis.

5. To report critical risks to Audit Committee in
detail on yearly basis.

6. To perform such other functions as may be
deemed or prescribed fit by the Board.

Risk Management Committee Report for the
year ended March 21, 2021
To the Board of Directors
Limited,

fa) The Committes consists of one Independent
Director, two Executive Directors, one Promoter

MNon-Executive Director and two KMPs being MNon-
Board Members.

of Vikas WSsP

H_rES'_

(b} The primary responsibility of the Committee is
to prepare the Risk Management Plan of the
Company and to review and monitor the same on
regular basis.

(c) During the Financial Year 2017-18, the
Committee identified and assessed the risks faced
by the Company and procedures to mitigate the
same. The risks were assessed categorically under
the broad heads of high, medium and low risks with
high and medium risks sub categorized as critical
and low risks as non-critical

Place: Sri Ganga MNagar Mrs. Kamini Jindal
Date : 07.09.2021 Chairperson
RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE

Independent Directors” Mesating

During the year under review, the Independent
Directors met on five times on 26.06.2020,

07.09.2020, 21.12.2020, 22.01.2021 &

31.03.2021, inter alia, to discuss:

1. Ewvaluation of the performance of Non-
independent Directors and the Board of

Directors as a whole.
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2. Evaluation of the performance of the chairman
of the Company, taking into account the views
of the Executive and Mon-executive directors.

3. Evaluation of the guality, content and timelines
of flow of information between the Management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at
the Meeting.

4. MANAGEMENT

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Annual Report has a detailed chapter on
Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms
part of this report.

5. DISCLOSURES

Related Party Transactions

The Company has formulated a Policy on materiality
of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with
Related Party Transactions, in accordance with
relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
Listing Regulations.

The policy has been disclosed on the website of the
Company at www.vikaswspltd.in . Web link for the
same is http:// www.vikaswsplid.in

All Related Party Transactions are approved by the
Audit Committee prior to the transaction. The Audit
Committee has, after obtaining approval of the
Board of Directors, laid down the criteria for
granting omnibus approval, which forms part of the
Policy on Related Party Transactions. Related Party
Transactions of repetitive nature are approved by
the Audit Committee on omnibus basis for one
Financial Year at a time. The Audit Committes
satisfies jtself regarding the need for omnibus
approval and ensures compliance with the
requirements of Listing Regulations and the
Companies Act, 2013. All omnibus approvals are
reviewed by the Audit Committee on a quarterly
basis.

Details of all Related Party Transactions have been
provided in the annexure of Board Report in form
ADC-2

Disclosure of accounting treatment in
preparation of financial statements

The Company has followed prescribed Accounting
Standards as laid down by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in
preparation of its financial statements.

Details of non-compliance by the Company
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Vikas WSP Limited has complied with 3all the
requirements of regulatory authorities. No
penalties/strictures were imposed on the Company
by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory
Authority on any matter related to capital market
during the |ast three years,

Disclesure on  compliance  with Corporate
Governance Reqguirements specified in  Listing
Regulations

The Company has complied with the requirements
of Part C (Corporate Governance Report) of sub-
paras (2) to (10) of Schedule ¥ of the Listing
Fegulations.

The Company has complied with Corporate
Governance reqguirements specified In Regulation 17
to 27 and Clause (b} to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2] of
Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations and
necessary disclosures thereof have been made in
this Corporate Governance Report.

Code for Prevention of Insider-Trading
Practices

The Company has in place a Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading and a Code of
Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information in
accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading} Regulations, 2015,

The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading lays down guidelines advising the
Management, staff and other connected persons, on
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be
made by them while dealing with the shares of
Vikas WSP Limited and cautioning them of the
consequences of violations. The Company Secretary
has been appointed as the Compliance Officer.

Whistle-Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its
business activities and in line with the best
international Governance  practices, Vikas WSP
Limited has established a system through which
Directors, employees and business associates may
report unethical behavior, malpractices, wrongful
conduct, fraud, violation of Company's Code of
Conduct witheut fear of reprisal. The Company has
set up a Direct Touch initiative, under which all
Directors, employeses/business associates have
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, and also to a three-member Direct
Touch team established for this purposs.

The Direct Touch team comprises one senior
woman member so that women employees of the
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Company feel free and secure while lodging their
complaints under the policy, The Whistle- Blower
Protection Policy aims to:

+ Allow and encourage stakeholders to bring to
the Management notice concermns about
unethical behavior, malpractice, wrongful
conduct, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of policies.

= Ensure timely and consistent organizational
response,

« Build and strengthen a culture of transparency
and trust,

= Provide protection against victimization

The above mechanism has been appropriately
communicated within the Company across all levels
and has been displayed on the Company's intranet
as well as on the Company's website
www. vikaswspltd.in

The Audit Committes periodically reviews the
existence and functioning of the mechanism. It
reviews the status of complaints received under this
policy on a guartery basis. The Committes has, in
its Report, affirmed that no personnel have been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM [/ WHISTLE BLOWER
POLICY

The Company has framed Vigil Mechanism for
detecting the fraud activities, if any, going on. The
Policy provides for complete procedurs to report
any malpractice in the Company, It also ensures
the protection to the employvee who report against
the fraud. The complete details of policy are
provided on the website of the Company
www, vikaswspltd.in .

CFO Certification

As required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing
regulation with the Stock Exchanges, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company have certified to
the Board regarding the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2021 which is annexed to
this Report.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE REPORTING

The Board of Directors reviews in detail, on a
guarierly basis, the report of compliance with
respect to all applicable laws and regulations. The
Company has developed a wvery comprehensive
Legal Compliance System, which drills down from
the MD to the Executive-level person (who is
primarily responsible for compliance) within the
Company. The process of compliance reporting is
fully automated, using the enforce compliance tool.
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Svystem-based alerts are generated until the user
submits the monthly compliance report, with
provision for escalation to the higher-ups in the
hierarchy. Any non-compliance is sericusly taken up
by the Board, with fixation of accountability and
reporting of steps taken for rectification of non-
compliance.

6. SHAREHOLDERS APPOINTMENT/ RE-
APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 20132, Mrs.
Kamini Jindal (DIN- 05268741), Director will
retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in
accordance with provisions of the said Act.

A brief resume of the Directors proposed to be re-
appointed, the nature of their expertise in spedfic
functional areas, names of companies in which they
have held Directorships, Committee Memberships/
chairmanships, their shareholding s=tc., are
furnished in the explanatory statement to the notice
of the ensuing AGM.

Your Directors recommend their re-appeintment at
the ensuing AGM.

The brief CVs of the above Director are given befow
Mrs. Kamini Jindal (DIRECTOR)

Mrs. Kamini Jindal, belonging to promoter group is
an Executive Director in the Company, She has
been appointed by the Board in 2012, Ms. Kamini
Jindal is a person with excellent academic
background and possesses good educational
qualifications.. She is the youth diva in the board of
the Company. She is the daughter of Mr. Bajrang
Dass Agogarwal and Bimla Devi Jindal, from her
childhood she has taken keen interest in the
working of the VIKAS. Her long term association
with Guar Gum Industry has brought immense
value to the board.

7. MEANS OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Quarterly, Half yearly and yearly Financial Results -
The Company’s guarterly results, in the format
prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, are approved
and taken on record by the Board within the
prescribed time frame and sent immediately to
Stock Exchanges on which the Company's shares
are listed.

COMMUNICATION WITH

The quarterly wunsudited financial results are
generally published in the English and Vernacular
newspapers. These results are published in
Financial Express and Business Standard in all
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editions and in two newspapers of regional
language and also submitted to Stock Exchanges to
enable them to put them on their websites. The
Results are also placed at Company website
www.vikaswsplid.in .

Details of publication of financial results for the year
under review are given below:

s | Description Date

Mo.

1. Audited Financial Results
for the quarter/ Financial
Year ended March 21, 2020

26.06.2020

2. Unaudited Financial Results | 07.02.2020
for the guarter ended June
302020 | |
Unaudited Financial Results | 22.01.2021

for the guarter/ half year
ended September 20, 2020

4, Unaudited Financial Results | 04.05.2021
for the guarter [/ nine
months ended December

31, 2020

5. Audited Financial Results | 12.08.2021

for the quarter/ Financial

Year ended March 21, 2021

8. Annual Report

Physical copy of the Annual REeport for F.y. 2020-
2021, containing inter-alia, salient features of the
audited Financial Statements, Director's Report
(including Management Discussion and Analysis and
Corporate Gowvernance Report) was sent to all
shareholders who had not registered their email ids
for the purpose of receiving documents/
communication from the Company in electronic
mode.

iﬂﬂ%@

Governance Report, Business Responsibility Report)
was sent via email to all shareholders who have
provided their email ids and is also available at the
Company s website at www.vikaswspltd.in

9. Website:

The Company s website www.vikaswspltd.in
contains a separate section “Investor” for use of
investors. The quarterly, half wearly and annual
financial results on the website. Annual Reports,
Quarterly Corporate Governance Report,
Shareholding Patterm and other Corporate
Communications made to the Stock Exchanges are
also available on the website,

The details of unclaimed dividends upto the
Financial Year ended 31.03.2021 are also available
in the Investor section, to help shareholders to
claim the same. In addition various downloadable
forms reguired to be executed by the sharsholders
have also been provided on the website.

On-line Annual Reports and Share price tools are
also provided in the Investor Section. Share price
tools include, inter-alia, share graphs, historical
share price data and share series. Communication
to shareholders on email: As mandated by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) documents like
Motices, Annual Report, etc. were sent to the
shareholders at their email address, as registered
with their Depository Participants/ Company/
Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA). This helped in
prompt  delivery of document, reduce paper
consumptien, save trees and ‘avoid less of
documents in transit.

Exclusive email ID for investors: The Company
has designated the email id
csgunjanvikaswspltd1984@gmail.com  exclusively
for investor servicing, and the same is prominently

: displayed on the Company s website
Full version of the Annual Report for F.Y. 2020- www, vikaswspltd.in
2021 containing inter alia, audited Financial e e
Statements, Directors Report (including
Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate
10. DATE, VENUE & TIME FOR THE LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Details of the last three General Body Mestings held are given below
Financial | Date AGM | Category Venue Time No. of Specigl
Year | No. - - i Resolution |
2017-2018 | 29.05.2018 | 307 Annual General In the local area of Regd. Office of | 10.00AM. | 1
Meeting[AGM) the Company at Railway Road, Siwani
— 127045 (Haryana)
2018-201% | 28.05.2019 | 317 Annual General In the local area of Regd. Office of | 10.00AM. | 4
Meeting[AGM) the Company at Railway Road, Siwani
— 127046 (Haryana)
2019-2020 | 28.09.2020 | 32nd | Annual General Through Video Conferencing 11.0048M, | 5
Meeting[AGM)

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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Special resolutions taken up In the last three AGMs
and passed with requisite majority are mentioned
hersunder:

September 29, 2018
1. Approval for Related Party Transaction
September 28, 2019

1. Approval for Related Party Transaction

2. Re-Appointment of Mr. Ram Awtar Mittal
(DIMN: 02303734) as an Independent
Director

3. Re-Appointment of Mr. Kishan Lal (DIN:
01878703) as an Independent Director

4. Re-Appointment of Mr. Neeraj Chhabra
(Din: 08467189) as an Independent
Director

September 28, 2020

1. Approval of Related Party Transaction
2. Re-Appointment of Managing Director

Postal Ballot

During the year under review, two resolutions were
passed through Postal Ballot, Details are given
below,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 110 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, the details of the
special resplution and erdinary resclution passed
during financial year 2020-2021 by way of Postal
Ballot are as follows

MNotice Dated 19.03.2021 following resolution
passed by Postal Ballot

1. Appointment of Statutory Auditors to fill casual
vacancy: The aforesaid resolution was passed
with requisite majority.

The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Vipin
Srivastava, Practicing Company Secretary, as the
Scrutinizer to conduct the aforesaid postal ballot
exercise in a fair and transparent manner. During
the conduct of the postal ballot, the Company had
in terms of Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015, provided e-voting facility to its
shareholders to cast their wvotes electronically
through the Insta Vote(Link in Time India
Limited) e-voting platform. Postal ballot forms and
business reply envelopes were sent to shareholders
te enable them to cast their vote in writing on the
postal ballot, The Company also published a notice

o

in the newspaper declaring the details of completion
of dispatch and other requirements as mandated
under the Act and applicable Rules. The scrutinizer
submitted his report, after completion of the
scrutiny; the results of voting by Postal Ballot were
announced by the Company on 18" July, 2019 and
were sent to the Exchange and displayed on the
Company’s website.

The aforesaid resoclution was passed with reguisite
majority.

The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Vipin
Srivastava, Practicing Chartered Accountants, as
the Scrutinizer to conduct the aforesaid postal
ballot exercise in a fair and transparent manner.
During the conduct of the postal ballot, the
Company had in terms of Regulation 44 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015, provided e-voting facility to its
shareholders to cast their votes electronically
through the Insta WVote(Link in Time India
Limited) e-voting platform. Postal ballot forms and
business reply envelopes were sent to shareholders
to enable them to cast their vote in writing on the
postal ballot. The Company also published a notice
in the newspaper declaring the details of completion
of dispatch and other reguirements as mandated
under the Act and applicable Rules. The scrutinizer
submitted his report, after completion of the
scrutiny; the results of voting by Postal Ballot were
announced by the Company on 21st April, 2021 and
were sent to the Exchange and displayed on the
Company's website,

COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENTS

The Company has complied with all applicable
mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations
as on 31.03.2021. Quarterly Compliance Report on
Corporate Governance, in the prescribed format,
duly signed by the Mr. Gunjan Kumar Karn,
Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer is
submitted regularly to the Stock Exchanges where
the shares of the Company are listed.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCES WITH THE NON-
MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS OF REGULATION
27 OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS

In additlon to the mandatory requirements, the
Company has also adopted the fellowing non-
mandatory reguirements Regulation 27(1) of the
Listing Regulations:

WITH MANDATORY

1) Maintenance of the Chairman's Office
The Cempany maintains the office of Executive
Chairman.
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2) Shareholders Rights

The Company has a policy of announcement of
the audited guarterly results. The results, as
approved by the Board of Directors {or
Committee thereof) are first submitted to Stock
Exchanges within 30 minutes under Regulation
30 of the Listing Regulations of the approval of
the results. The Quarterly, Half wvearly and
yvearly unaudited/Audited finandal statements
are published in newspapers and uploaded on
Companys website www.vikaswspltd.in and
Clipping of Advertisement also Sent to Stock
Exchange.

3) Modified opinion{s) in Audit Report

The Auditors have raised no gualifications on
the financial statements of the Company.

4) Separate posts of Chairman and CFO

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and
the Managing Director 8 Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are held by separate
individuals.

5) Reporting of Internal Auditors

The Internal Auditors of the Company report
directly to the Audit Committes.

GREEN INITIATIVES BY MCA

In compliance with the provisions of Section 20 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and as a continuing
endeavour towards the "Go Green’ initiative, the
Company propeses to send all correspondence [/
communications through email to those
shareholders who have registered their email id
with their depository participant’s / Company’s
regisirar and share transfer agent. In case the
shareholders desire to receive a printed copy of
such communications, they send a requisition to the
Company. The Company forthwith sends a printed
copy of the communication to the shareholder,

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATIOMNM
These information’s are furnished herein below: -
Company Registration Details

The Coempany is registered in Haryana, India. The
Corporate Identification Number (CIN) allctted by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is
L24139HR1988PLCD20300

Annual General Meeting

Date: 30.09.2021

Time: 11:00 AM

Venue: Railway Road, Siwani, Haryana-127046

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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Financial Calendar

The financial year of the Company is 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021.

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021,
results were announced on;

=  First Quarter : 07.09.2020

= Half Yearly : 22.01.2021

« Third Quarter : 04.05.2021

= Fourth Quarter and Annual ; 12.08.2021

Financial Results

*

Ll

The guarterly/yearly results of the Company are
published in leading and widely drculated
English dailies viz. for June Quarter, 2020 and
September Quarter, 2020

(1) The Financial Express - All Editions (Enaglish)

(2) Business Standard-All Edition (Hindi Edition) .

For December Quarter, 2020 following newspaper
results published

{1} The Financial Express — All Editions {Enalish)

(2] Jansatta-All Editions{Hindi Edition)

For March Quarter, 2021 following newspaper
results published

{1} Business Line — All Editions {Enaglish}

(2] Pioneer-all Editions{Hindi Edition)

% The Companys financial/quarterly results are
displayed on the Company's website at
wiwnw. vikaswspltd.in .

Book Closure

Date of Book Closure is from 24 September 2021 to
30 September 2021 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of Annual Book Closure.

Registered Office

Railwav Road, Siwani, Haryana-127046

Listing

The Company is Listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.
The annual listing fees for the Financial Year 2020-
2021 to BSE has been paid.

Vikas WSP Limited Code

ISIN No: INEVOBRAQDLIOZZ

Scrip Code:- 512307

In respect of transfer of physical shares,
shareholders are advised to contact the Share
Transfer Agent of the Company. Shares received for
physical transfer are generally registered within a
period of 15 days from the date of receipt.

As on March 31, 2021, the Distribution of our
shareholding was as following: -
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holding of | Holders

nominal
| value
| Rs. Mum 2 to Amount in % to

ber total Rs. total
| (1} (2] (3} (4) | (5}
| Upto 503 2574 54,8854 S295ZEL 2.5501
4

[501- 1000 | 9606 | 19,2005 | 8231632 | 4.0264
| 1001 - 2080 4435 0.4340 7340163 | 3.5504
| 2001 -3000 | 2081 £ 3040 5514538 |  2.6%74
| 3001 -4000 1071 2.2833 3062308 1.9352
| 4061 - 5000 1166 2.4858 5630070 | 2.753%
| 5001 -10000| 1578 3.3042 12057381 | 5.8573
[100D1 & Above| 1854 | 3.9527 | 156408137 | 76.5038
| Total 46905 100.00 204439600 100.00
"—Eategﬂrv Nos. of | 00 to
| shares held | Total
| Promoters 28757164 14.36
| Mutual Funds/ 10000 0.00
| Foreign Portfolio 1000 0.00
| Investors
| Financial Institutions/ 855643 0.42
| Banks
| Individual share capital 05926653 45,23
| upto Rs. 2 Lacs

Individual share capital 60202590 20,79
| Inexcess of Bs. 2 Lacs
| MBFCs  registered with 5450 0.00

RBI
| Any Other 15273991 8.30
i_TDTAI_ 204439600 | 100.00 |

Shareholding of persons having more than 5%
of Shares

| 8. Name of | No. of shares | %% of
| No. | shareholder _held _shares
1 Bajrang Dass 1,69,77,332 8.3
Angarwal
{2 | Bimla Devilindal | 1,27,74,832 5.23
3 Munni Devi Goyal 1,70,00,000 832

Dematerialization of shares

Owver 98.34 9% of the listed Equity Shares have been
dematerialized. Trading in equity shares of the
Company in  dematerialized form  became
mandatory from May 31, 1929, To facilitate trading
in demat form, In India, there are two depositories
i.e. Mational Securities Depository Limited [(NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
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(CDSL). Vikas WSP Limited has entered into
agreement with  both  these  depositories.
Sharcholders can open their accounts with any of
the Depository Participant registered with these
depositories.

- As on March 21, 2021, 98.34 % shares of the
Company were held in dematerialized form.

- The equity shares of the Company are freguently
traded at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

Dematerialization of Shares - Process

For convenience of shareholders, the process of
getting the shares dematerialized is given
hersunder

a. Demat account should be opened with a
Depository Participant (DP).

b. Shareholders should submit the
Dematerialization Reguest Form (DRF) along
with share certificates in original, to their DP.

c. DP will process the DREF and will generate a
Dematerializaticn Reguest Number (DRM].

d. DP will submit the DRF and ocriginal share
certificates to the Registrar and Transfer Agents
(RTA), which iz LINK INTIME INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED.

e. RTA will process the DRF and coenfirm or reject
the reguest to DP/ Depositories.

f. Upon confirmation of reguest, the shareholder
will get credit of the eguivalent number of
shares in his demat account maintained with
the DP.

Consolidation of folios and avoidance of
multiple mailing

In order to enable the Company to reduce costs and
duplicity of efforts for providing services to
investors, members who have more than one folic
in the same order of names, are reguested to
consolidate their holdings under one folio. Members
may write to the Registrars & Transfer Agents
indicating the folio mumbers to be consolidated
along with the original shares certificates to be
consclidated.

Service of documents through Email

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
service of documents on members by a Company is
allowed through electronic mede. Further, as per
Listing Regulations, Listed Companies shall supply
soft copies of full annual reports to all those
sharcholders who have registered their e-mail
addresses for the purpose. Accordingly, the
Company proposes to send documents like
shareholders meeting netice/other notices, Audited
Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditor’s
Report or any other document, to its members in

Annual Report 2020-21
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electronic form at the email address provided by
them and/or made available to the Company by
their depositeries. This will definitely help in prompt
receipt of communication, reducs paper
consumption and save trees as well as avoid loss of
documents in transit.

Members who have not yet registered their email id
(including those who wish to change their already
registered email id) may get the same registered/
updated either with their depositories or by writing
to the Company.

Stock Market Rate on BSE (Re.l/- per Share)

| Month _High | Low
| April, 2020 6.50 [4.10
| May, 2020 5.35 3.80
[ June, 2020 7.48 | 5.16
[ July, 2020 7.00 529
| August, 2020 7.30 | 5.50
| September; 2020 | 6.71 | 3.73
| October, 2020 4.58 [3.74
| November, 2020 | 4.94 | 3.70
| December, 2020 | 5.75 | 4.20
| January, 2021 5.16 | 3.95
| February, 2021 5.53 | 3.80
| March, 2021 7.55 | 5.39

Diagrammatical presentation of monthly high low of
stock price at Bombay Stock Exchange Lid.,
Mumbai. Share Transfer System/ Dividend and
other related matters.

SHARE TRANSFER

Share transfer in physical form are processed and
the share certificates ars generally returned to the
transferees within a period of 15 days from the date
of receipt of transfer provided the transfer
documents ledged with the Company are complete
in all respects.

All share transfer and other communications
regarding share certificates, change of address,
dividends, etc should be addressed to Registrar and
Transfer  Agents. Stakeholders Relationship
Committes is authorized to approve transfer of
shares in the physical segment. The Committes has
delegated authority for approving transfer and
transmission of shares and other related matters to
the officers of the Company. Such transfers take
place on weekly basis. & summary of all the
transfers/ ftransmissions etc. so approved by
officers of the Company is placed at every
Committee Mesting. A&ll share transfers are
completed within statutory time limit from the date
of receipt, provided the documents meet the

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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stipulated requirement of statutory provisions in all
respects. The Company obtains from a Company
Secretary in practice half yearly certificate of
compliance with the share transfer formalities as
required under Regulation 43{9) of the Listing
Regulations, and files a copy of the same with the
Stock Exchanges.

NOMINATION FACILITY FOR SHAREHOLDING
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
facility for making nomination is available for
members in respect of shares held by them.
Members holding shares in physical form may
obtain nomination form on reguest, Members
holding shares in  dematerialized form should
contact their Depository participants {DP) in this
regard,

MANDATORY REQUIREMENT OF PAN

SEBI vide its circular dated 20™ April 2018 has

mandated compulsory registration of PAN and Bank

Account for all Shareholders in following cases:

# Transferees and Transferors PAN Cards for
transfer of shares

% Transfer of shares to Legal Heirs/
Mominess

4 For Dematerialization of shares

4 Issuance of Duplicate Share certificates.

Shareholders are reguested to keep record of their
specimen Signature before lodgement of shares
with the Company toc obviate possibility of
differences in signature at a later date.

PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH
ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE (NECS)

The Company provides the facility for remittance of
dividend to the members through NECS. To
facilitate dividend payment through NECS. Members
who hold shares in Demat mode should inform their
Depository Participants and such of the members
holding shares in physical form should inform
Company of the core banking account number
allotted to them by their bankers. In casse where
the core banking account number is not intimated
to the Company/Depository Participant, the
Company will issue dividend warrants to the
members,

PENDING INVESTOR'S GRIEVANCES

Any member/investor whose grievance has not
been resolved satisfactorily, may kindly write to the
Company Secretary an
csgunijanvikaswspltd1984@gmail.com or in physical
form at the administration office of the Company
with a copy of the earlier correspondence.
RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT
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As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) quarterly audit of the Company's share
capital is being carried out by an independent
external auditor with a view to reconcile the total
share capital admitted with WNational Securities
Depository Limited {NSDL)} and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and held in physical
form, with the issued and listed capital. The
Auditors” Certificate in regard to the same is
submitted to BSE Limited and is also placed before
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the
Board of Directors.

M/s S Vivek & Associates, & M/s Priyvam &
Associates, an Independent firm of Practicing
Company Secretary, carries out the Reconcdiliation
of Share Capital Audit as mandated by SEBI, and
reports on the recondiliation of total issued and
listed Capital with that of total share capital
admitted / held in dematerialized form with NSDL
and CDSL and those held in physical form. This
gudit is carried out on guarterly basis and the
report thereof is submitted to the Stock Exchanges,
where the Company s shares are listed and is also

placed before the Stakeholders™ Relationship
Committee of the Board.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL
STANDARDS

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a
Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on
various aspects of corporate law and practices. The
Company has complied with each one of them.

UNCLAIMED/UNPAID DIVIDENDS
SHARES:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sechion 124 8 125 of
Companies Act, 2012 read with Investor Education
and Protection Fund Autherity (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 the Dividend
which remains unclaimed/unpaid for a pericd of
Seven (7] years from the date of transfer shall be
transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund {IEPF) Authority.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education
and Protection Fund {(Uploading of information
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with
companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has already
filed the necessary form and uploaded the details of
unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the
Company, with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

AND

The Company has been writing periodical reminders
to all the Shareheolders as a whose Dividends ars
lyving unpaid in the Unpaid Dividend Account.
Members who have not encashed their Dividend for
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the Financial Year 2010-11 & 2011-2012 and
onwards are therefore, requested to make thsir
claims to the Company immediately.

PROCEDURE FOR CLAIMING REFUND OF
SHARES AND UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS FROM
IEPF I1I.E. AFTER SHARES / UNCLAIMED
DIVIDENDS ARE TRANSFERRED BY THE
COMPANY

Once shares / undaimed dividends are transferred
by the Company to the IEPF, members may still
claim refund of shares and unclaimed dividends
from IEPF by making an application to IEPF in Form
IEPF - 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in . The
provisions of the Act relating to IEPF, IEPF Rules
and notifications are available on the aforesaid
website.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: -

For share transfer / dematerizlization of shares,
payment of dividend and any other query relating
to the shares.

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
MNoble Heights, 1** Floor, Plot No. NH 2,
LSC, C-1 Block, Near Savitri Market,
Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058

(Phone: +91 11 49411000

E-mail id : delhi@linkintime.co.in

Website : wwy.linkintime.ce.in

For queries of Analysts, FIIs, Institutions,
Mutual Funds, Banks and others

Chief Compliance Officer

Mr. Gunjan Kumar Karn

Compliance Officer

B-86/87, Udyog Vihar

RIICO Industrial Area,

Sri Ganganagar- 335001

Ph. No.-0154-2404512, 0821873674, 28860858525
E-mail: csounjanvikaswspltd1984@gmail.com

Company’s Registered and Administration Office
Address:

Admin. Office Regd.
B-86/87, Udyog Vihar, RIICO Office
Industrial Area, Sri  Ganganagar- Railway
335001 Road,
Ph. No. -0154-2424512 Siwani
E-mail: 127046
csgunjanvikaswspltd1984@gmail.com |(Haryana)
Website: www . vikaswsplid.in

Annual Regort 2020-21 I-E




REGISTRAR B TRANSFER AGENT

Securities and Exchange Beoard of India (SEBI) vide
Regulation 7 of the Listing Regulations, has recently
mandated that where the total number of security
holders of the Company exceeds one lac, the
Company shall register with SEBI as a Category II
share transfer agent for all work related o share
registry, The Company had appointed LINK
INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED for both
segments, physical and electronic, much before this
was mandated by SEBI. The Company has
appointed LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE
LIMITED as its FRegistrar. As required under
Regulation 7({3) of the Listing Regulations, the
Company has filed a certificate issued by RTA and
the Compliance Officer of the Company certifying
that all activities in relation te both physical and
electronic share transfer facility are maintained by
RTA registered with SEBI i.e. LINK INTIME INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED.

Details of the RTA are given below

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
MNoble Heights, 17 Floor, Plot No. NH 2,
LSC, C-1 Block, Near Savitri Market,
Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058

(Phone: =91 11 42411000

E-mail id : delhi@linkintime.co.in

Website : www.linkintime.co.in

CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with Regulaticn 17 of the Listing
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has framed and adopted a Code of
Conduct for all Directoers and Senior Management
personnel. The code is available on the Company's
website www.vikaswspltd.in . The Code is applicable
to all Board members and Senior Management
personnel who directly report to the Chairman, the
Managing. The Code is circulated to all Board
members and Senior Management Personnel and its
compliance is affirmed by them annually.

Besides, the Company also procures a guarterly
confirmation of material financial and commercial
transactions entered into by Senior Management
personnel with the Company that may have a
potential conflict of interest.

A declaration signed by the Director, regarding
affirmation of the compliance with the Code of
Conduct by Board Members and Senior
Management for the financial vear ended March 31,
2021, is annexed as Annexure XII to this report.

Along with the Code of Conduct for the Board
members and Senior Management, the Company
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has also laid down ‘a Code of Conduct for its
employees. As a process, an annual confirmation is
also spught from all employess. all employees are
expected to confirm compliance to the code
annually. Regular training programmes [ self-
certifications are conducted across locations fo
explain and reiterate the importance of adherence
to the code.

INSIDER TRADING

In compliance with the SEBI regulation on
prevention of insider trading, the Company has
established systems and procedures to regulate and
maonitor insider trading by designated person and
has formulated 3 code on insider trading for
designated persons, whe may have access to the
Company’s price sensitive information. The Code
lays down procedures to be followed and
disclosures to be made, while trading in the
Company's shares,

The Company follows highest standards of
transparency and faimess in dealing with all
stakeholders and ensures that no insider shall use
his or her position with or without knowledge of the
Company to gain personal benefit or to provide
benefit to any third party.

CERTIFICATE FROM SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING
REGULATIONS

A certificate has been received from M/s. Privam
& Associates, Company Secretaries, pursuant to
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, that none of
the Directors on the Beard of the Company has
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
of continuing as director of the Company by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.
The same is annexed as Annexure XIII to this
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANDATORY
REQUIREMENTS OF THE LISTING
REGULATIONS

The Board of Directors periodically reviews the
compliance of all applicable laws. The Company has
complied with all the mandatory reguirements of
the Code of Corporate Governance as specified in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses {(b) to (i) of sub
regulation {2} of Regulation’ 46 of the Listing
Regulations. It has obtzined a Certificate from
Privam & Associates, Company Secretaries, the
Company’s Secretarial Auditors and the same is
attached to the Board's Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &
ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT

The Company VIKAS WSP was established in 1288,
The Company is one of the India's foremost guar
gum powder (GGPY) manufacturer, supplying to all
sectors of the food industry with an extensive range
of guality products. Besides food, the Company also
offers guar gum for technical applications such as
pet food, oil drlling and fracturing, textile printing,
paper making, etc, Per annum production capacity
of all grades guar gum powder is 58800 MT. The
Company is committed to provide its customers
overall services and values that is the best, It has
contributed  significantly fo our national output,
employment and exports.

FUTURE OUTLOOK, OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Your Company is world's leading provider of guar
gum polymers, knows how much traceability means
to food and pharmaceutical producers. It offers a
complete and trustworthy range of guar polymers
world-wide and can fully prove their origins.,
Traceability serves both regulatory and consumer
reguirements. The Company is known for proven
production processes, advanced guality systems
and reliable supplies. These are the reasons that
your Company has abducted most of the expanding
market of guar polymers. Company's R&D has a
gimlet-eye on the application problems and their
solutions which goes a long way in expanding its
business in all segments in the vyears ahead.
Currently, vour Company is the sole producer of
"“Certified Organic guar polymers™ and the same is
an epportunity for the Company to spread its wings
in markets where none existed bsfore. Threats -
Guar is a xerophytes plant and the rain pattern of
the monsoons in the Indian arid zone - mainly
Western desert of Rajasthan provides ideal growing
conditions. The need for just the right amount of
rain at the right time leaves the guar crop heavily
dependent on the annual rainfall pattem and causes
occasional wide swings in guar supply and prices.
With the emergence of irrigated guar seeds,
dependency of guar crop on monscon has been
minimized. Now its crop is irrigated with canal
water at the right time that increased its per
hectare yield greatly.

E_rﬁl
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COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

During the current wyear under review wyour
Company has achieved a total turnover of Rs.
22,161.33 lakhs as compared to Rs. 75,762.89
lakhs in the previous year during the year under
review the Company has net loss of Rs. {11,452.33)
lakhs,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

Your Company remains committed to enlarging
Foresign Exchange Earnings. Earnings from exports
create: arowing value for the Indian Economy and
also serve to benchmark the competitiveness of
vour Company's operations with aglobal standards.

The VIKAS WSP's contribution to Foreign Exchange
Earning from agro exports is a measure of your
Companys growing contribution to the rural
aconomy.

BUSINESS SEGMENT

As the Company is dealing only in Guar derivatives
and Guar Polymers, thersfore, segment wise detail
is not reguired to incorporate.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company is having adeguate internal control
systems and procedures which commensurate with
the size of the Company. All the departments of the
Company are follewing the established rules and
regulaticns for intermal contrel systems. Company
established a Intermal Control Audit Department
which ensure that the intermal control systems are
properly followed by all the concerned departmerits
of the Company.

HUMAN RESCURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Beyond Balance Sheet, Company's singly biggest
asset is its Human Resource. The Company is of
firm belief that the human resources are the driving
force towards progress and success. The Company
coentinued its policy of attracting and recruiting best
available talents so that it can face business
challenges ahead. The Company also offers
attractive compensation packages to retain and
maotivate its professionals so that they can infuse
their best efforts. The industrial relation continues
to be cordial during the year.

Thouah the statement and views expressed in the
above said report are on the basis of certain
assumptions and expectations of future events, but
actual results may differ from whatever is stated in
the annual report.
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Annexure-VI

To
the Members of
VIKAS WSP LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s. VIKAS WSP LIMITED
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses {b) to (i)
of sub-regulation (2} of Regulation 46 and para C, D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compllance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor expression of opinicn
on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify
that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the abowve-
mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
to the efficiency or effectivensss with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Privam & Associates

Priyvam Gupta

Company Secretary

Mem. No.: 51177

Date:04/09/2021 C.0.P. No.: 18567
Place: Meerut UDIN:A051177C000OBS99200

NON MANDATORY RECOMMENDATIONS AS PER REGULATION 27 OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS

Chairman The Company has an Executive Chairman & Managing Director.

Remuneration The Board has 'a Compensation Committee comprising majority  of
independent directors.

Shareholders Right The Company ensures that any new developments related to its business:;
receive wide coverage in the press through regular press releases and
electronic distribution 8/ or sent to Bombay Steck Exchange as Corporate
Announcement

Postal Ballot The business to be transacted at the ensuing general meetings do not require
passing of resolution by postal ballot. The Company will extend this facility of
voting by postal ballet on matters, specified for postal ballot in the
Companies Act, 2013, as and when required.
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Annexure VII

CFO CERTIFICATION

CERTIFICATION BY CFO/MD UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015

To
The Board of Directors
Vikas WSP Limited

Dear members of the Board,

We, Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal, Director, and Mr. Priyanka Bindra, Chief Financial Officer of Vikas WSP
Limited, to the best of our knowledgs and belief, certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief :

(i} these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any materal fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(i} these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b} There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, ne transactions entered intc by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

ic) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial repeorting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disdosed to the Auditors and the Audit & Risk Management Committes,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such intemal contrels, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies

{d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit & Risk Management Committee:
(i} significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year:

(i} significant chanoges in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the managemsnt or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

Bimla Devi Jindal Priyvanka Bindra
Director Chief Financial Cfficer

Place: - Sri Ganganagar
Date:-12.08.2021
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Annexure VIII

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A. (a) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:-

As a part of ongoing energy saving programme your Company has engaged an efficient team to examine the
possibility of energy conservation at all operation levels, especially on higher load machines. Sincere efforts
are being made to improve the power factor and reduce the overall energy consumption.

The Company has taken the following steps towards energy conservation:-
(1) Frequent checking of the capacitors;
(2} Replacement of high power facter electric motors;
{2} Timely greasing of the bearings of all the heavy machines;
(4] Installation of servo stabilizer to boost the voltage;
(b) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION : -

The Company's Research and Development (RBD) center continues to expand and concentrate on the
development of new products and processes to significantly moderate its environmental footprint, The
Company is devoted to sustainable development and explores new ways of environment preservation
and the responsible use of non-renewable resources.

The Company cenfinues to develop new technologies and processes directed at enhancing productivity.
B. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & QUTGOING:

Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new markets of its
manufactured goods and export plans:

Y¥our Company is the country’s leading manufacturer exporter of guar water-soluble polymers. The Company
has always given utmost priority to earn valuable foreign exchange in the larger interest of the nation.

Rs. In lacs
Total foreign exchange earnings during the year 958.10
Total foreign exchange used during the yvear 0.00
Met forsign exchange earned during the year 058.10
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ANNEXURE- IX

Details under section 197(12) Details of Remuneration

Sr.MNo.| Particulars Detail

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median | As per annexure {al
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial
YEar:

) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief | No increment has taken place dunng the
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or | financial vear 2020-2021
Manager, if any, in the financial vear;

3 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of | Mo increment has taken place during the
employvees in the financial vear; wear 2020-2021

4, The explanation on the relationship between average increase in | The remuneration increase 1= subject to
remuneration and Company performance g fixed percentage every year and shall

be subject to performance of employes.

5. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial | The Company has not increased the any
Personnel against the performance of the Company remuneration .of KMP's dunng the vear

2020-2021,

6. Variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price | Pice esmings ratic was 0.97 on
egrnings rabio as at the closing date of the current financial year | 31.03.2020 and it decrease to (5.35) on
and previous financial year and percentage increase .over | 31.03.2021 dus to Profit dunng the
decrease in the market guotations of the shares of the Company | vear.
in companson to the rate at which the Company came out with | The public issie price of the shares was
the |last public offer in case of listed companies. Re 1/- and the Current market guotation

of the zhares of the Company is
Rs.4.50/-

7. Average percentile increase already made in the sslanss of | Mo, increase has taken placg in thes
employvees other than the managenal personnel in the last | salary of the emplovees as well as
financial vear and its comparison with the percentile increase in | Managenal personnel’s.
the managenal remuneration and justification thereof and paint
out if thers are any exceptional crcumstances for increase in
the managerial remuneration;

8. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managenal | The Managenal personnel’'s are pard an
Personnel against the perfformance of the Company; aggregate remuneration of Rs.

24 60,000 P.A.

g, The key parameters for any varigble component of | The directors are not entitied to anv
remuneration availed by the directors varizble remuneration

130, The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to | Not applicable
that of the employees who are not directors but receive
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the
year

11, Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remunerabon | Yes, The remunsration 5 as per ths
policy of the Company. remunerabion policy of the Company.

Annexure — (a)

RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN REMUNERATION OF THE
EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Sr. No | Name Designation Salary(PA) Ratio

1. Bajrang Dass Aggarwal Chairman & Managing Director il Mil

2. Bimla Dewvi Jindal Director Mil Mil

3. Kamini Jindal Director Mil il

4, Pawan Singla Director Ml Ml
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FORM NO. AOC -2

h-section of section 4 of the Act and

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Mame (s} of the related party & nature of relationship Mot applicable
b} Mature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Mot applicable
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Mot applicable
d) Calient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction | Not applicable

including the value, if any

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or | Not applicable
transactions’

f Date of approval by the Board Mot applicable

gl Amount paid as advances, if any Mot applicable

h} Date on which the specdial resolution was passed in General meeting | Not applicable

as reguired under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 1. Vikas Proppant & Granite Ltd,
relationship

2. Vikas Chemi Gums {India) Limited
3. \ikas Dall & General Mill

bl Mature of contracts /arrangements [ | Salef Purchase
transaction

cl Duration of the centracts / arrangements | 2020-2021
ftransaction

d) Salient terms of the contracts or | All the transactions will be related to the ordinary
arrangements or transaction incduding the | course of Business and will be on Arm length
value, if any price and subject to the approvals reguired.
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINAMNCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act,
2013 and rule No.5 of the Companies
(&ppointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rufes, 2014]

To
The Members
Vikas WSP Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of
the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence fto good
corporate  practices by Vikas WSP
Limited{hersinafter called "the Company”™).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in 3@ manner
that provided us a3 reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and ‘expressing our opinion
thereon,

Based on our wverification of the books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the
Company and alse the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized  representatives during  the
conduct of the Secretarial Audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit pericd covering the financdal
year ended on 31st March, 2021, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism  in
place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on 31st March,
2021, according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 20132 {the Act) and the
rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,
1956 ("SCRA") and the rules mads there
under;
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iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations

and Bye-laws framed there

under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and

the rules and regulations made there under to

the
Overseas

extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings; Mot applicable as the
Company.

The following Regulations and Guidelines

prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ["SEBI Act’):

d.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Substantial Acguisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of  Capital and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2002%; Mot
applicable as the Company has not issued
Capital during the pericd under review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{(Employee Stock Opticn Schemes and
Employee  Stock  Purchase  Scheme)
Guidelines, 1299: Not Applicable as the
Company has not issued/proposed to issue
any Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employes Stock Purchase Scheme during
the financial year under review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; Mot Applicable as the
Company has not issued and listed any
Debt Securities during the financial year
under review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with clisnt; Mot
Applicable as the Company is not registered
a5 Registrars to Issue and Share Transfer
Agents: during the financial year under
review.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{De-listing of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; Mot Applicable as the Company has

lp
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not delisted/proposed to delist its equity
shares from any stock exchange during the
finandial year under review.

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
Mot Applicable as the Company has not
bought back/proposed to buy back any of its
securities during the financial year under
review,

i. Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Regulations), 2015

Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which
the Companv belongs, as identified and compliance
whereof as confirmed by the management, that is to
say:

1, The Water {Prevention and Control of
Pellution) Act, 1974 8 The Water
(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess
Rules, 1975

2, The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Act, 1981

3. The Environment (Protection Act, 19856 B
the Environment (Protection) Rules 198a6

4 The MNoise Poflution (Regulation and Control)
Rules 2000;

5. Legal Metrology Act, 2000,

Provisions refated to unfair or restrictive
trade practices of the Monopolies and
Restrictive Trade Practices Act, 19560,

7. Standard Weights and Measure Act,
1976;

2  Trademarks Act, 1999,
¢, Design Act, 2000

We further report that, based on the information
provided by the Company, its officers, authorised
representatives during the conduct of the audit and
also on the review of guarterly compliance report by
the respective departmental heads / Company
Secrstary / Executive Director/ Internal Auditor,
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company, In our opinion, adeguate systems and
processes and control mechanism exist in the
Company to monitor compliance with applicable
general laws.

We further report that the Compliance by the
Company of applicable Financial laws like Direct &
Indirect tax laws, Service tax and others detailed
under Tax Legislations, have not been reviewed and
We have relied on the representations made by the

[8}]
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Company, its Officers and Reports issued by the
Statutory Auditors.

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

During the period under review, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentionad
above subject to following cbservations.

Observations

Company was reqguired to comply CSR
requirements but the company hasn’'t done so
the total unspent Amount was Rs.
02,02,74,000.00 {(Rupees Two Crores Two Lacs
Seventy Four Thousand Only).

Independent Directors have not registered
under Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs

Company has not complied with the provisions
of Advance Tax, TDS, ESI And PF no returns

were filed during the year.

GST And Income Tax returns of the year were
not filled by the company during the stipulated
time.

The Company had failed to file some of the E-
Forms under the Companies Act, 2013.

That Stock exchange had levied penalty for
delay in filino under Regulation 23 for the
gquarter ended Dec 2020, March 2021,
Regulation 19(1) & 19(2) for the gquarter
ended December 2020, Regulation 13(3) for
the quarter ended March 2021, Regulation 31
for the guarter ended March 2021, Regulation
24A for the quarter ended March 2021,
Regulation 27(2) for the quarter ended March
2021, Regulation 17(1) for the quarter ended
March 2021, and regulation 22(9) for the Sept
2020.

We further report that During the period under
review, the Board of Directors of the Company was
duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Mon-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were cammied out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adeguate notices were given to all directors to
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detaiied
notes on agenda were sent adequately in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
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further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaninoful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is cammied through while the
dissenting members” views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes, wherever
applicable.

We further report that there are adeguate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the
Company has not entered into/carried out any
specific events/actions which may have a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the
Company had no spedific events but would like to
comment on few points observed during the
conduct of an Audit:

1. The company has made an application to the
Regional Director in the matter of Compounding
under section 26 of the Companies Act and
Form GNL-1 is also filled in MCA in this regard.

For Priyvam &
Associates
Company
Secretaries

Place: Meerut
Date: 04/09/2021
UDIN: A051177C000807200

Priyvam Gupta
ACS No.: 51177;
COP MNo: 18567

=l
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To

The Members

VIKAS WSP LIMITED
RATILWAY ROAD STWANI
HARYANA HR 127046

Our Secretarial Audit report for the financial
year 2020-21 is to be read along with this
letter.

Management Responsibility:

i Maintenance of secretarial records is the
responsibility of the management of the
Company. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit;

i We have followed the audit practices and the
processes as  were  appropriate to  obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the secretarial records., The
verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion;

il. We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company or verified
compliance of laws other than those mentiocned
above:

iv. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedure on test basis;

v. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Priyvam & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Meerut
Date: 04,/09/2021
UDIN:
AQS1177C000897200

Privam Gupta
ACS No.: 51177;
COP No: 18567
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To

The Board of Directors
Vikas WSP Limited
Railway Road
Siwani-127046 (India)

Sir
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the
Financial Year 2020-2021

We have been engaged by Vikas WSP
Limited{hereinafter referred to as'the Company')
bearing CIN: L24139HR1983PLC0O30300 whose
equity shares arelisted on BSELimited {Security
Code: 519307) to conduct an audit in terms of
Regulation 24A ofSEBI (Listing Obligaticns and
Disclosure  Requirements) Regulations, 2015
asamended read with SEBlI's Circular  No.
CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2012 dated 08™ February,2019
and to issue the Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report thereon.

It is the responsibility of the management of the
Company o maintain records, devise proper
systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all
applicabler SEBI  Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued there under from time to time and
to ensure that the systems are adeguate and are
operating effectively.

Our responsibility is to verify compliances by the
Company with applicable provisions of SEBI
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there
under from time to time and issue a report therson.

Qur audit was conducted in accordance with
Guidance Note on Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and in a manner which invelved
such examinations and wverifications as considerad
necessary and adeguate for the sald purpose.
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report is enclosed,

FOR PRIYAME ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

PRIYAM GUPTA
{ Proprietor)
C P No. 18567

Place: MEERUT
Date: September 04, 2021
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Annexure XI-B

Secretarial compliance report of Vikas WSP
Limited
for the Financial Year ended 31* March 2021

TO

The Members

Vikas WSP Limited
Railway Road
Siwani-127046 {India)

We, Privam#& Associates,
Secretaries, have examined:

Practicimg Company

{a) all the documents and records made available
to us and explanation provided by Vikas WSP
Lirmited ("the listed entity™),

(b} the filings/ submissicns made by the listed
entity to the stock exchanges,

{c) website of the listed entity,

{d} any other document/ filing, as may be relevant,
which has been relied upon to make this
ceriification,

for the year ended 31 March 2021 {"Review
period™) in respect of compliance with the
provisions of:

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ("SEBI Act™) and the ERegulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b} the Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956
("SCRA™), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, guldelines issued
thereunder by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India {("SEBIL");

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the
circulars/ guidelines issued thersunder, have been
examined, include:-

[a) Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issus
of Capital and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2018;

{c) Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acguisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)
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(a)

fe) Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Share (h) Securities
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;
during the Audit Period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable
Preference  Shares)
Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

(Nct Applicable to the Company

Regulations,2013:  (Not

(Prohibition of
2015;
(i)

and based on

and Exchange Board of

India
Insider Trading) Regulations,

and circular/guidelines issued there under;

the above examination, we

hereby report that, during the Review Period:

{a) The listed entity has complied with the
provisions of the above Regulations and

circulars/ guldelines

issued thers under,

except in respect of matters specified below:

Sr. | Compliance Requirement Deviations Observations/Remarks of the

No | (Regulations/circularsfguidelines including Practicing Company Secretary
specificclayse) | ; — N S—

i. Az per Regulation 33 the listed entity shall submit | Company hold meebng | The listed entity did not hold
guarterly and yvear-to-date standalons financial om 04/05/2021 for the | Board M=ehng & filed Unaudited
results. to the stock exchange within forty-five | approval of finenoal | Finanoal Resufts within 45 days
days of end of each guarter, other than the last | results for the gquarter | for the guarter ended December
guarter. ended December 2020, | 2020,

2. &= per Regulation 33 the listed entity shall submit | Company hold meeting | The listed entity did not hold
annual audited financial results for the financial | on 12/08/2021 for the | Board Meeting & filed Audited
yvear, within sixty days from the end of the | approval of finanocal | Financial Results within 60 days
finanoal year afong with the audit report. resufts for the guarter | for the guarter ended March 2021,

ended March 2021

3. The Lsted Entity need to constitute the | Company  failed to | The listed enbtty failed to
Momination & Remuneration committee as per the | constitute committee as | consbtute committee as  per
provisions mentioned under Regulation 15 of | per Regulation | Regulation 19(1)&(2) for the
SEBI{LODR) Regulations, 2015 19{1}&(2} n guarter | guarter ended December 2020

T S — lendedDecemmber2020 | S -

4. The listed entity and its matenal wnhsted | Company failled to filed | The listed entity did not submut
subsidiaries incorporated in India shall undertake | Annual Secretarial | Annual Secretanal  Compliance
secretarial audit andshall annex with its annual | Compliance report | Report under Regulation 248 of
report, a secretanal audit report, given by a | within the time | SEBI {(LODR], 2015 within 60 days
company secretary in practice, in such form as | prescribed under SEBI | from the end of Financial Year and
may be specified (LODR), 2015 for the | further extended by 30 days.

Financial Year 31F
March 2021 L

5. Thefisted entity shall submit: 3 guarterly | Company falled to filed | The listed entity did not submut
compliance report on corporate governance in the | Corporate Governmance | Corporate  Governance  Report
format -as specified by the Board from time to | Report within the time | under Regulation 27(2) of SEBI
ttmeto the recognised stock exchange({s)within | prescnbed under SEBI | (LODR), 2015 for the quarter
fifteen days from close of the guarter (LODR}, 2015 and filed | ended March, 2021.

on 24/04/2021

a. &5 per Regulaton 44(3) the lsted entity shall | Company filed | The listed entty did not submmt
submit to the stock exchange, within forty-eight | declaration of postal | 44{37 within 48 hours of
hours of conclusionof its Generzl Meeting, details | baliot result on | declaration of results of postal
regarding the voting results in the format speafied | 21/04/2021 but failed | ballot.
by the to do compliance under
Board. 44(3) within 48 hours.

7. &= per Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and | Company has an | Company failed to spent the
other rules made thersunder company needs to | unspent amount of | unspent amount of CSR in
spent 2% of Average net profit of last years a= | 202.74 lakh  which | Financial year 2020-21,

Corporate Socal Responsibility. needs tm be spent
- under CSR i | .

8. all the independent directors are reguired to | Independent Directors | Independent Directors of the
register themselves under the Indian Institute of | of the company are not | company fafed to get the
Corporate Affairs: registered under Indian | registrabions under Indian

Institute of Corporate | Institute of Corporate Affairs.
Affairs.
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Insurance, G5TR-1,
stipulated time.

Company was requred to pay advance Tax, GST
file Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
G5TR-3B Returns

Company has not paid
any such Tax and nor
had filed the returns in
prescribed time

in the

The Company 15 not regular n
depositing with appropriate
authonties, undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance,

Income Tax, Goods and Service
Tax, sales tax, service tax, valus
added kax, custom duty, Excise
Daty, Cess and any other matenal
statutory dues applicable to i,
and thers have been delavs in
farge number-of cases,

{b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from our examination of those records.

(c) The followirio are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures
issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines
issued thereunder:

Sr. No | Action taken by | Details of violation Details of action | Observations/
taken E.g. fines, | remarks of the
warning letter, | Practicing
debarment etc. Company

Secretary, if any
Mo reportable observations

The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Sr. No | Observation of the | Observation made in | Actions taken by | Comments of the
Practicing Company | the secretarial | the listed entity, | Practicing
Secretary in the | compliance report for | if any Company
previous reports the year ended... Secretary on the

(the year are to be actions taken by
mentionad) the listed entity

NOT APPLICABLE

FOR PRIYAME& ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

PRIYAM GUPTA
{Proprietor)

C P No: 18567

Place: Meerut

Date: September 04, 2021
UDIMN:A051177C000897209
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Annexure XI1

DECLARATION

I hereby confirm that the Company has received from all the members of the Board and Senior
Management, for the financial year ended March 321, 2021, a confirmation that they are in compliance with
the Company's Code of Conduct,

For Vikas WSP Limited
Bimla Devi Jindal
Director

Date: September 07, 2021
Place: Sri Ganganagar

Annexure XIIT

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(&5 per clause C of Schedule V' of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015
read with regulation 34(3) of the said Listing Regulations).

To
The Members
VIKAS WSP LIMITED

As required by item 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirement) Regulations, 2015 we certify that none of the directors on the
board of M/s Vikas WSP Limited have been debarred or disgualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of companies by the SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

For Priyvam & Associates

Priyvam Gupta
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: 31177

Date:04/09/2021 C.0.P. No.: 18567
Place: Meerut UDIN: A051177C0008920167
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Vikas WSPLimited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Starements

Opinion

We bave audited the accompanyinefinancial statementz of Vikas
WEP Limited(“the Company™), which comprize the Balance
Sheet as 2t March 31, 2021, and theStatement of Profit and Lo
{includimg  Other Comprebensive Income), the Cash
FlowStatement and the Statemiemt of Change: m Equity for the
vear then ended, and a swmmarvef sionificant 2ccounting policies
and other explanatory information(hereinafier referred toaz the
“financial statements™},

In our opmion and to the best of our information and aceording to
the explanations given tous. the aforezaid financial statements
give the mformation required by theCompanies Act, 2013 (Tthe
Act™ m the merner 2o Tequited and zive 2 tme and fair view
meonformity with the Indisn Accounting ‘Standsrds prezcribed
under section 133 of the Aciread with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Bules. 2015, as amended. (“Ind A3 and
other accoumtmg principles generally accepted in India, of the
state: of affsirs of theCompany az at March 31, 2021. and iz loss,
total comprehensive income, s cash flowsand the changes m
equrty for the yesr ended on that date

SVHEAS o

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sudit of the financial statements in accordance
with theStandards on Auditmg specified inder section 143(10) of
the Act (SAg) Our respomsibiitiezunder those Standards are
further descrited in the Aunditor’s Hesponsthility for the Audit
ofthe Financial Stafements section of our report We are
independent of theCompany in accordance with the Code of
Ethics iszmed by the Institate of CharteredAccountants of Indis
(ICAT) together with the ethical requiremensz that are relevant to
ourzudst of the financizl statements imder the prowizions of the
Act and the Fulesmade there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibiliies I accordance  withthess
requirements and the ICAT’: Code of Ethics: We believe that the
audit evidencaohtained by uz iz sufficient and approprate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion o thefinancial statements,

Key Andit Matter

EKev audit matters are those matters that m our profeszional
jidzment, were of mostsimnificance i our audit of the financial
statements of the curment penod. Thesematters were addressed m
the context of our audit of the financial statementsas 3 whole, and
in forming our opimion thereon. and we do-not provide a separate
opimicnon thess matters.

The Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

¢ The company 1z exposed to a vanety of different Central znd
state. laws, regulations and interpretations thereof In this
regulatory emvironment, there iz an inherent risk of litizations
and claims.

¢ In the normal course of buziness; provisions and contingent
liability dizclosures for litizations and claim= may arise from
direct =nd mditect tax  procesdmps, legal proceedings,
mcluding  regulstory and ofher govemment'depariment
procesdings, az well as mvestications by suthomities and
commersial claims.

»  Tkeze estimates could chanpge substantially over time a: new
facts emerge and each leoal caze progreszes

» Grven the imherent complexity and magnitude of potential
exposures across the Compary and the judgement necezzary
to estimate the amount of provizions required or to determine
required disclosures, thiz 15 a key andit matter.

Onr procedures meluded:

Inqummng the stztms. of mpnificant Jmown actual and potential

Litigzfion with the Company™s in-house Legal Comnzel and other

zenior management perzonal wha have knowledge of these matiers

and criticalhy aszeszing therr responzes.

*  (Obtsining. on a sample bans ootten responzes fom the
Company’s in-house legal counzel, contammg their views and
conclusions on material exposwres and any related litigation
and considered the same m evaluating the appropriateness of
the Company”s provizions or dizelosores on soch matters.

= PBeading the lstest comespondence betaeen the Company and
the vanous taxlepal authoribie: or plaintifs and sttomev:
where applicable; for matters selected on zample basiz for
detailed evaluation.

= For the most sigmificant of the matters, we assess relevant
histonical and recent judgments passed by the court anthorifies
and considering  lezal opinton, where obtained by
management fom externzl lswyers, to challenge the basiz
uzed for the provizions recorded and the disclosures made by
the Company

®  Challenging the decizions and rationale for provision: held or
for decistons not to record previzions of make dizclozures.

= For those matters where manasement coocluded that no
provizions zhould be recorded, we have reviewed the
adequacy and completenssz of the Company’s disclozures.

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors 13 responsible for the matiers
gtated m zechion 134(3) of the Compantes Act, 2013 (Fthe Act™)
with respect to the preparation of theze financial statements that
grre = tme and far view of the financial pomtion,
finsncislperformence, (chanpes in equitviand cash Aows of the
Company i accordance with theaccounting principles generally
sccepted in India including the sccounting Standardsspecified
under ‘zection 133 of fhe ActThis responaibilty alse imcludes
meinterance of adeguate accounting IEI'_‘DE'dE in accordancewith
the proviziens of the Act for saiegl.ardmg of the aszets of the
Company and forpreventing and detecting fauds and other
irreguianities; selection ‘amd  zpplicstion ofappropriste
implementation and mamtenance of accounting policies; making
jedgmentsand estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
desion implementstion andmamiensnce of adequafe intermal
financizl controls, that were operating effectively forenzuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
thepreparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view andsre free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the fimancial statements, management is responsible
for asseszing thelCompeny’s ahility to continue as' a gomng
concern, disclozing, az applicsble, matters relatedtc going
concern znd using the pomg concern basz of accounting mnless
manacement efthermtends to hqmdate the Compsny or to ceaze
operations, or has no raslistic alternative butto do 20

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversesing the
company s financialreporting process

Aunditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

{Ohur ohjectives are to obtain reazonable assurance shout whether
the fnancialziztements: 33 a whole are free ffom matensl
mizststement. whether due to fraud or emorand fo issus an
anditor's report that melndes our opinion Reazonable assurance
iz a highleve] of azsurance, bt iz not a guarantee that an audit
conducted m zccordance with SAzwill always detect 2 matenal
misstatement when 1t exstz. Mizstatemeritz can anze fromfraud
or emor and ate comsidered material if individustly or mn the
agpragate, they couldreazonably be expected to. influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese financial
statements.

As part of an sudit I sccordanee with SAs  weexercize
professional judgment and mamtain professiomal shkepticism
throughout the audie We alzoc

+  Identfy and aszess the maks of matenial misstatement of the
financialstatements, whether due to fraud or error, desion
and perform audit procedores responsivete those nsks, and
obtain mdit evidence that iz sufficient and appropnate to
provide & basizfor our opinon. The nsk of not detecting a
material mizstatement resulting from fraud ishigher than for
one resulting from emer, a2 faud mav invelve colluzion,
forgery, intertiomalomissions. misrepresentations. or the
ovemde of internal condrol.

»  Dbfam an understanding of internal fipancial contrel
relevant to the audi In order todesion sndit procedimes that
are appropriate in the circumastances Under - section
143(3)7)of the Act, we are also responzible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company hasadequate intemal
financial comtrol: svstem m place and the operating
effectiveness of such conirolz.

»  Ewsluate the approprizteness of accounting policies used and
the reazomablemes: offccountmp estimates and related
dizelosures mede by the management.

»  Copclude on the appropristeness of management’s use of the
going comcern basis ofaccounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtaimed, whether a matenial uncertaintyexists
telated to evenmts or condihons that may cast sipmificant
doubt on the Company'zability to comtimse 33 3 gomg
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertamty exists,
weare required to draw aifention in ouwr auditor’s report to
the related dizclosures in thefinancial statements or. if such
dizclosures are inadequate, to modify ouropmion. Chr
conchizions are bazed on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of ouranditor’s report. However, future events or
cotidifions may cauge the Compamny to cease toconfinue a5 a
SDINg CONCEmL

= Ewvaluate the overall prezentation. structure and comtent of
the fnancizlstatementz. mecluding the dizclosures. and
whether the financial statementsrepresent the underhing
fanzactions and events I a manner that achieves far
presentafion

Materiality iz the magnitude of misstatements m the finamcial
statements th&:.md.mdualh or in aggregate; makes 1t probable
that the economic decizions of a rf.asembl}immﬂﬂdgeahlu uzer
of the financia]l statements may be mfluepced We
considerquantitative materiality and qualitstive factors m (1)
planning the scope of our andit workand in evaluating the resuliz
of ow worc and (i) fo evaluate the effect of amy
identifiedmisztatements in the financial stztements.

We commumcate with those charsed wath govemance regarding,
among other matters. theplanned scops and timing of the audrt
and sipmificant audit findingz, mchading any
slzm.ﬁﬂamdﬁﬁmemea in internal contral that we 1den11ﬁ during
cur audit. We alse provide thosecharged with sovermnance with a
statement thst we have complied with relevant
ethicalrequirements regarding indepandence. and to communicate
with them all relatonships andother matbers that may reazonably
be thoughkt to bear on our independence, whete appliceble, related
zafermards.

From the matters commmmicaied with those charped wath
governance, . we determine thosematters that were of most
zignificance m the andit of the financeal statements ofthe current
penod and are therefore the key andit matiers. We deseribe these
matiers mour auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure sbout the matter orwhen, in extremely rare
citcumstances, we determume that 2 matter should not
becommunicated in-our report becanze the adverse consequences
of doing so wouldreasonably be expected to cutweigh the public
interest benefits of such commiunication
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We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained 1= sufficient
anid appropnate toprovide s basis for our audit opinion on the
finzncial stafements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Aunditor’s Repert) Order, 2016
(“the Order”) izsned by theCentral Government m terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act. we mive In “Annexure A™ astatement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 znd 4 of the Order.

2. Az regquired by Section 143(3) of the Act. bazed on our sadit
we report that

&) We have zought and obtained all the mformstion and
explanations which fo the best ofour kmowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In cur opinion, proper boaks of account s required by law
have been kept by theCompany so far as it appears from cur
examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss
mcluding Other Comprshensivelncome, the Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes i Equity dezlt with by
thisReport are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In ow opmion, the aforessid finsncial zistements comply
with the Ind ASzpecified under Section 133 of the Act

e) Onthe basiz'of the witien representations received from the
directors as on March 31,2021 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors 1= disqualified as onhiarch
31, 2021 from being appomted as a director o term=z of
Section 164(2)of the Act.

f) With respect fo the adequacy of the mternal fnancial
confrols over fipancial reporting ofthe Company and the
operating effectiveness’ of such controls refer to owr
separate Reportin “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
mmodified opinion on  the -adequacy andoperating
effectiveness of the Company’s internz] financial controlz
over financial reporting.

H.[ Annual Report 2020-21
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With respect to the other matters to be included m the
Anditor’s Beport in accordance withthe requmements of
zection 197(16) of the Act, a2 amended in our opimion and
to the besfof our information and according to the
explamations given to us the remunerabon paid bythe
Company o o= directors during the vear 12 in accordsmce
with the provizions of sectionl 97 of the Act.

k) With respect to the other matters to be mecluded in the
Anditor’s Report in accordancewith Bule 11 of the
Compsniez (Audit and Audrors) Rulez. 2014, a:
amended in owr opimionand fto the best of ouwr
information and according to the explanations grven to
us

(1} The Company kas disclosed the impact of pending
hifigafions on itz financial posttion In 1tz ‘financial
statements

{1} The Company has made provizion as reguired
under the applicable law or accountingstandards,
for misterial foreseesble loszes, if any, om
longoterm contracts includingdesivatie contracts;

(iii) There baz been delay in umférriug amounts,
required to0 be tramsferred. to  thelnvestor
Education-and Protection Fund by the Company.

for A K Chadda & Co
Chartered Accouniants
ICAT Firm Registration No 008683N

Anil Chadda

Partmer

ICAT Memberzhip Mo 087312
Place: Chandigath

Date: Angust 13 221

UDIN 210873124 A2 ABOS132
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(2}

Ly

(e}

ANNEXURE ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to m parazraph | omder ‘Report on Other Lazal and
Resulatory Reqmremeants’sacton of our report of even date)

1 Inrespect of company's fixed azsats:

The Company has maisizined proper records showme fill
partculars, melodinpquantitative details and  siustion of
property, plant and equipment

The Company has 2 program of venfication to cover zll the
ttems of fAxad assets in a3 phased manner which in our opinien,
iz rezsomable having regard to the zize of the Company and the
nzture of itz 2szats. Pursuant to the program, certaim fixed zszets
were physically verthed by the manzsement dormss the vear.
According to the mfcrmation znd explenations given to uws, no
mazterial dizcrapancias were noticed on such venfication

According to the mformation znd explanations =rven to us and
the records exammed byos and bazed on the examimation of the
reciztared: sale deed |/ convevance deed prodoced baforens. we
report that, the title deeds, compramg all the mmmovable
properties of land whichare freshold. ara held m the name of the
Company as =t the balance cheet data.

1. Tha Inventory hzs bean physically venfiad by the management at

rezzonable inferval: durmp the wvear. In- our opmiom the
freqguency of venification 1= reasonable. A3 informed no matenal
discrepanciss were nobced on physical venficahon carried oumt
durine the vaar.

. Az informed, the Company has not sramted any loans. secured or

mmsscnred o compames, frms Limited Lizbeliy Partnarchips or

1. Bazed on wiformation and explanztion given to os, the Company

haz not sranted anv loans or mzde any ivestments in howeaver,
the companv bas prosnded corporate enarantess or security to
the time of Bz, 203000 lacz, to parbas coverad nnder zechion
185 and zection 186 of the Act

v. According to the mformation and explanations grven to uz the

Compary has not accepiedths depozit from the public within the
meanmg of the directives msued by Reserve Bank of India, i
contraivenfion to provisions of Saction 73 fo 78 of the act, amy
other ralavant provisions of the act and the relevant miles framad
thereumder.

v1L The mamtenance of cost records has mot been specified by the

Central Government mnder section 148(1) of the Companses
Aet. 2013 for the busmess actiibes carried out by the
Company. Thus reporting under clause 3{v1) of the ordsr 1= not
applicable to the Company.

viL-Accordmg to the mformation and explanations grven to os, m

raspect of statotory duss:

{a)} The Company 12 not regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities. undizputed statutory dues mcleding provident
fimd emplovee’s state inzurance, incoms tax Goods &
Services fax; sales tax service tfax  valoe added fax
customs duty, excize duty, cesz and anv other matersal
statutory dues, 2= applicable to it and there have been
delay m larse momber of cazes, the datails of which are
ontstanding at the year and for the peried of more than zix
months from the date they became pavable are mdicated

other parhes covered i the register mamtained under Section below —
185 of the Act. Accordmzly, parzsraph 3 (an)(=) 3 (miyk) and 3
(11)(c) of the Order are not apphicable to the Company.
Name of the statote Matore of the Amount Period towhich Due Date Date of
duss fim laes) theamount relates Payment
Income Tax Act, IBS1 DS 46.20 F.X.2016-17 Batwesn Apr-Mar 2017 Mot paid
43.57 FX. 2017-18 Batwean Apr-har-2018 Mot pard
26.97 FY 2018-19 Betwean Apr-hlar-201% Mot pard
1513 F.Y._ 2019-20 Bstwean Apr-Sep-2019 Mot pard
353 F.XY. 2020-21 Eistwesn Apr-Sep 2020 Hot paid
Alimmnm 97386 FY 2017-18 Batwesn Apr-Mar 2013 Mot paid
Altermate Tax
1323 30 FY 2018-19 Betwean Apr-har 2015 Mot pard
= 228.47 FY 201020 Batwean Apr-Blar 2020 Mot pard
Tacome Tax 3071 | FU1985:68 | Between AprAar 1994 | Notpad |
261736 FY 2012-13 Betwesn Apr-Mar 1013 Dot paid
The Employess Provident Fund and Provident fimd 156.61 F-Y. 2017-18 Batwean Apr-hiar 2018 Mot pard
Alizcellzneous Provistons Act. 1932
18418 F¥_2018-19 Batweon Apr-hlar J015 Mot pand
204 62 X 2019-20 Betwean Apr-MMar 2020 Hot paid
128.51 F.Y_2020-21 Batwesn Apr-Sept 2020 Mot paid
Emplovees” State Insurance Aot 3411 F%¥_ 2018-19 Batwean Apr-Mar 2019 Mot pard
1248
4599 F.Y. 2019-20 Batween Apr-Sep 2015 Mot pard
18:14 F-Y. 220-21 Betwean Apr-Sept 2020 Hot paid

a5 follows:

H_rifﬂ

(b} According to the mformation and explanation srven to us, the dues cutstandms with respect to, moomestax, senice tax oo account of  any dispute are
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Name of the statote Nators of Amount Period to which the Forum where dispute 13 pending
dues (in laes) amount relates
Income tax Act, 1961 Imcome fax 13,1573 AY M13-14 Conmuzzionar of lneome Tax (Appaal)
Incomstax Act, 1961 Income tax 237705 AY 201314 Commuzsioner of ncome Tax (Appeal)
Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 263158 AN 201514 Income Tax Appeliate Trbunal
Service Tax Act, 1594 Serce tax 138781 FY 206-07 10 2010-11 Custom. Exciza znd Service Tax Appellate Tnbumal

vuL The Company has not tzken any loans or borrowings from fimancial mstimtionsand govermment or 1szued any debenturas Further, the
Company has defaulted m repavment of loans or borrowimes to banks as' per detail siven below (also refer note no. 33 to the financial

The Company has not rased moneys by way of mitial public offer or
further public offar{including debt mabroments) or term loanz and
hence reporiing under clause (ix) of theOrder 13 mot apphicabla.

% Dunng the course of cur examination of the bocks and records of
the Company, carmiad out in accordsnce with the seneraily accepted
auditing practices m Ipdiz. and: accordins to the informeafion and
explanations zreen to us, we have naither come zeross any imstance
of material frand by the Comipany or cn the Company by itz officers
or emplovees, noticed or reported durme the vesr, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the manzzemant

%L According to the mformation and explanations grven to us, no
managenal remunerziion haz been pardby the Company durns the
vezr and hence reporting under claussa (=) of the order iz not
applicabla

xii. The Comipany is not 2 Widhi Company znd hence reportine undsr
olanze {xm1) of the Orderiz not applicabia.

%11 In oor opmmon and according to the information znd explanations
grven fo us thelompany 1z in compliancs with Section 177 and 183
of the Compames Act, 2013, whereapphicable, for all tram=actions
with the related parties and the detsilz of related partytranzactions
have bean disclosed in ‘the fimanciz] statement= as required by the
appiicableaccountmg standards.

xiv. Dumng the vear, the Company hzs not made any preferantial
allotraent or private placement of shares or mally or partly comvernble

E.[ Annual Report 2020-21

statements -
| Fame of the bank Principal Interest Period of defanlt
Bz laes Bz miaes
Punjab Nationz] Bank
Packins eredst limit 45031 Wore than 360 dayv=
Imterasf on above 2287 | More than 360 dovs
3567 | Loz than 380 davs
A 460.31 58,54
Bank of India
Packme credit limat 4625357 hore than 360 dans
Foregn documsntary bell purchase dizcoumtme ambiy
Inferast on above 263872 | More than 380 day=
TI520 | Less than 360 day=
B 4,656,320 3AET.01
| Union Bank of India P oo
Paclans credst bt 221093 Ddore tham 360 davs
Foreen docomentary bill purchaze'discommime Gohity 242303 IJore than 360 dans
Interast on above 3647 10 | More than 360 dan=
71872 | Less than 360 days
C 4.539.98 436381
Grand total A+B+C 8,724.16 Ty 18025
i 3

debantures and hence reporting under clause {xiv) of the Order 313 not
applicahls to the Company.

zv. In our opmnton and according to the micrmation and explanations
gren to os, durmg thevear, the Company has not entersd imio
norfcash transactions with its diteciors orpesos connected with him
and hepcs. the reporting wnder clansze (xmv) of the ordsr = mot
appliczblie.

zvi The Company iz not reguired fo be ragistered nmder zechion
43014 of the Reserve Bankof India Act, 1534

for AK Chadda & Co
Chartered Accountant:
ICAT Fomi Resistration Wao (03683

Anil Chadda

Partner

ICAT Membershp Mo, 087312
Place: Chandigarh

Date: Ansust 17%, 2021

UDDY - 21087312A A8 ABOS132
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ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2{f) under "Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements 'section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels Ower
Financial Reporting under Clause {i) of
Subsection3 of Section 142 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Vikas WSP Limited ("the
Company™ as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control owver
financial reporting: «criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Cwver Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Thess responsibilities
include  the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal  financial
controls  that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's intermal financial controls owver
financial reporting of the Company based on our
audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial
Controls Over Finandal Reporting (the "Guidance
Mote”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the
Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote reguire that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

E-fBG

about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reperting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectivensss of internal control based
on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatament of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficdent and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

& company’s intermmal financial control over
financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and  the
preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting  principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reascnable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accerdance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only In accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company:
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of wnauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's

Annual Report 2020-21
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assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internmal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected.

Also, projections of anyevaluation of the internal
financial controls ever financial reporting to future
pericds aresubject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may
become inadeguate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
thepolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our epinion, te the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21
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financial reporting and such intermal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, bas=d on the
criteria for intermal financial controf over financial
reporting established by the Company considering
the essential components of intermal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for A K Chadda & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICATI Firm Registration No.00S683N

Anil Chadda

Fartner

ICAI Membership No.087312
Place: Chandigarh

Date: August 12%, 2021

UDIN - 210873212AAAABDS132
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VIKAS WSP LIMITED
Balance Sheel a5 at March 31, 2021 INR in Lacs
M at Ms-at
e March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
BASSETS
Nen-current assats
Fll Property, plant and eguiprment E| 60,000.55 63,406.03
L1} Capdtal work-ir-progress 3 115633 118633
) Other Intangible assets 3 [lexeil] 103
d} Financial assets 4
i:l Hiser financial awsets AE5 A0 AEEOH
e} Other pon-current assets 5 35,241.42 35,244.58
Total Non=current assots 86,655 65 1,00,074.05
Current assels
a) Invantories ] 360320 130317
b} Financial assets r
1) Trade receivables 5752069 603 56073
i) Cash ard cash equivalents 2567 104,18
il Bank balances other than (i} abave ERRCE e
5] Othar current assets H] 53951 77434
Tot! eurfent assats 61,187.55 GEA2E.44
TOTAL ASSETS 1,58,453.24 1,68,896.49
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Ell Equity share capital a9 20440 204400
b} Qehar eguity 12 1,01.527.25 11246363
Total equity 1,03,571.64 1,14,507.03
Liabilitins
Maon-current liabilities
a) Prowisenns 11 35774 TEH.31
b} Befarred tas liabifities (net) 1z [21 632 |60 19)
Total non-currant Rabilities 346,11 184.12
Current liabllities
al Financial habdlites 13
i) Barrowings 10637 89 FERE R
ii) Trade payibles 4,%49.08 7,727.58
W) Oitker Tingncial labiities 15 871 716 10,240.68
b} Oithear current liabiittles 14 20 26505 20,178.88
cl Prowissons 15 1033 1375
d) Curredt tak llakbilitias 15 2 B0 BR 2T IE
Total current labifitles 54,535 4% 5&,205.36
Total Eabilities 54, 88161 54389498
TOTAL ECLITY AND LIABILITIES 1,58,453.25 1.68,896.51

The accampanying notes are an Inbegral part of the flnanclal statements

As per ogr report of even date,

For AK Chadda & Co.
Chartered Accountants
MCAR Firm Registration Mo, (OS683IN

Anll Chadda

Parmar

HEAE Memibership Mo, 087313
Place -

Batpd-

WDEN «

Pawan Singla
Qirector

Gumjan Kumar Karn
Compumy Sectetary

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of Vikas WSP Limlted

Bimia Devi Jindal
Director

Priyanka Bindra
Chiaf Flrancial Dfficas
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WIKAS WSP LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
INR in Lacs
For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars Mates March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Income
Revenue from operatlans 16 22,161,313 7578281
Other income 17 - -
Other galns 17 - 008
Total income 22,161.33 75,762.89
Expenses
Cost of material consumaed 18 23,563,356 B7,167.32
Change in inventory of linlshed poods 18 133.60 254.90
Excise duty on sale of goods 20 - -
Employes benafit expenses 21 Ba5.88 216725
Firance costs 22 3,101.23 416.27
Depreciation and amorhsation expense 23 3.437.28 3,435.45
Other expenses 24 1,915.09 401,33
Total expenses 33,000,944 73,842.51
Profit/[Loss) before tax {10,839.11) 1,920.33
Ineome tax (eredit)/exponze 5

- Current tax [Minisum Alternate Tax ("MAT]] 30.72 A70.49

- MAT credit entitlement )

- Deterred tax 58257 [684.93)
Profit/(Lass) for the year {11,452.39) 2,134.82
Other comprehensive income 26

Items that will not be reclossified to profit or loss

- Remeasuremant of post employment benefit obligations 516.98 [110.61)

- Income tax relating to these items - [34.18)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 516.98 [144.79)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year {10,935.41) 1,990.03
Earning/|Loss) per equity share (Basic and Diluted) 27 {5.35) 097

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of the financlal staterments
A por sor report of even data.
For AK Chadda & Co. Far and on behall of the Board of Directors of Vikas WSP Uimited

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mo, BGAGE3N

Anll Chadda awmn Singla Bimia Devi Jindal

Fartnar Carector Dirmctor

ICA&l Membership kg, 087312

Place -

Dted -

LiDa - Gunjan Kumar Karm Priyanka Bindra
Company Secretiry Chiel Finpncial Officar
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VIKAS WS5P LIMITED
Cash flow statemeant for the year ended March 31, 2021

INR in Lacs
For the year ended For the year ended
Warch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash flow from operating activities
Profitf|loss) before income tan |li3,B39.11] 157038
Adjustments for:
Depreciztion and amortization expense 343728 343545
Finance codts {to the extent paid) 76l AL6.2T
Unrealised Foreign Exchange [gain){Toss . (0.08]
Provishon for Gratulty [433,00) 214.70
Change in operating assets and Fabilties
other non-curent financial assets 0,68 -
othet non current assets 1.16 1100}
financlal assets (corrant)
trade setehvables 31,0801 [8,035.68]
- Inventones 36una? 2. 5661
other current assets 23487 [213.15]
pther Bank Bakances (Unclyimed Dividond)| 4,44 -
fmancial liabilities {owrrant]
- trade poyabdes (2, 7TA.BD) (1,294.90)
otfer financial Nabdlithes 5.430.58 3.121.25
Short term Borroeangs (non cash conssdered under changes) 12A427.02)
pther currenk liablldies 87.17 2IT.66
employes benefit obligationd 516.548 {110.61)
Cash generated from oparatiens 18.84 247688
Direct tawes paid
et cash flow (used in) fgensrated from opsssting sctivities 18.84 247688
Cash flows from Investing ectivitles
Payments for proparty, plantand equipment/ Intangiie assets/capltal work-in- {3077 {47,051
[HORrEss
Net cash generated from investing activities {30.77) {47 .05)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance cost padd (761 [416.27)
Repaymenl of short-term bomowings - 11.964,35]
Mot cash flow generated from/ {used in} financing activities |7.61]) [2,380.62)
Cash and cpsh eguivalents at the beginning of the financial yesr 106,20 5650
Met {decrease]) increase in cash and cash equivalents [19.54] 4532
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 86,67 106.20
Cash and cish eguivalonts mclude
Balences with benks:
In CUrrent accounts 2,64 16.23
Cash in hand #4.03 #9.95
B6.67 1018
Note - The above Statement of Cash Flows has been propared under the "Indirect Method' as set out in ind AS 7, ' Statement of Cash Flows",
The scoormpanying notes are Bn integral part of the financisl statements
As par our repoart of even diate.
For AK Chadda & Co. For and on bohalf of the Board of Directors of Vikas WS Limited
Chartared Accountants
ICAI Firm Reglstration M. DOBEEIN
Anll Chadda Papmn Singla Bimla Devl lindal
Fartner [Hrector Director
1C41 Membarship No. ORT3132
Plate -
Diated - Gunjan Kumar Karn Priyanka Bindre
LIBIN - Company Secratary hief Financial Officer
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NOTE NO. 1 SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES

ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I) CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company Vikas WSP  Limited was
established in 1288. The Hindi word "Vikas”
means “Develepment” and WSP Stands for
"Water Soluble Polymers”. The Company is one
of India's foremost guar gum powder (GGP)
manufacturer, supplying to all sectors of the
food industry with an extensive range of quality
products, Besides food, the company also offers
guar gum for technical applications such as pet
food, oll drlling, textile printing, mining paper,
etc.

The Company has its registered office at
Railwmay HRoad, Siwani, Haryana and its
corporate office (principal place of business) at
Sri Ganganagar, Rajasthan, India.

IT) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

d.

BASIS OF PREPARATION:

These financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS), under the historical cost convention
on accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values,
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India {SEBI}. The Ind
AS are prescribed under Section 123 of the Act
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter
from time to time.

Accounting policies have been consistently
applied except whers a newly-issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change
in the acceunting policy hitherto in usa. As the
year-end figures are taken from the source and
rounded to the nearest lacs, the figures
reported for the previous guarters might not
always add up to the year-end figures reported
in this statement.

The financial statements are presented in INR,
the functional currency of the company, Items
included in the financial statements of the
company are recorded using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the
company cperates (the “functional currency”)

Transactions and balances with wvaluss below
the rounding off norm adopted by the company

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21

L

have been reflected as "0 in the relevant notes
to these finandal statements.

The financial statements of the Company for
the wvyear ended 31st March, 2021 wers
approved for issue in accordance with the
resolution of the Beoard of Directors on 30"
June, 2021.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with Ind AS reguires the
Management to make estimates, judoments
and assumptions. These estimates, judgments
and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets  and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period.
The applicaticn of accounting polices that
reguire critical accounting astimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use
of assumptions in these financial statements
have been disclosed. Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
Approprizte changes in estimates are made as
the management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding  the  estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the standalons
financial statements.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the
global health pandemic from COVID-19
("CcovID-19")

The Company has considered the possible
effects that may result from the pandemic
relating to COVID-12 in the preparation of
these financial statements including the
recoverability of carrying amounts of financial
and non-financial assets, In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the global economic conditions
because of this pandemic, the Company has, at
the date of approval of these financial
statements, used intermnal and external sources
of information including related information and
economic forecasts and expects that the
carrying amount of these assets will be
recovered. The impact of COVID-12 on the
Company’s financial statements may differ from
that estimated as at the date of approval of
these finandal statements.
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OPERATING CYCLE FOR CURRENT AND
NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

The Company presents assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification,

All the assets and liabilities have been classified
as current or non-current, wherever applicable,
as per the normal operating cycle of the
Company as per the guidance set out paragraph
65 and 69 of Ind AS 1 and other criteria as set
out in Division II of Schedule TIT of the act.

The operating cvcde is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash eguivalents. Based
on the nature of activities of the Company and
the normal time between acguisition of assets
and their realization incash or cash equivalents,
the company has determined its operating cycde
as 12Zmonths for classification of its assets and
liabifities as current and non-current.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at
cost of acquisition including attributable interest
and finance costs, if any, till the date of
acquisition/ installation of the assets less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property,
Plant and Eguipment is capitalised only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the ltem will flow fo the
Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Al other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to  the
Ctatement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The
cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated frem the financal statements, either
on disposal or when retired from active use and
the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work-in-progress, representing
expenditure incurred in respect of assets under
development and not ready for their intended
use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related
acquisition expenses, construction cost, related
borrowing cost and other direct expenditure.

DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION ON FIXED
ASSETS

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on
straight-line method in accordance with life of
assets specified in Part C of Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 as per details given
below:

lp

5l. | Nature of Assets | Estimated useful

No. life in years
1 Freehold bulldings | 25-60 years
2 Machinery B-13 vears |

] Furniture, fittings | 8-10 years

and eguipment

AMORTISATION

Expenses incurred on Computer Software are
amortized on straight line basis over aperiod of
three years.

ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

Assets acquired in satisfaction of claim has been
accounted at fair value of the assets acguired
and is marked down by a subseguent reducticn
in the MNet Realisable Value, if any.

IMPATRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Property, plant and eguipment are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrving
amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less
cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined
for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs. If such assets are considered
to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
is measured by the amount by which the
carrving wvalue of the assets exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the asset, An
impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of
Profit and Loss if thers has besn a change in
the estimates wused fto determine the
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its revised recoverable
amount, provided that this amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any accumulated
depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior vears.

The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the camrying amount of any goodwill (if any)}
allocated to the cash generating unit and then
to the other assets of the unit, pro rata based
on the carmying amount of each asset in the
unit. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's
or cash generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less cost of disposal. Value in use is
estimated future cash flows expected to arise
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from the continuing use of an asset or cash
generating unit and from its disposal at the end
of its wuseful life discounted to their present
value using a post-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are
considered. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation medel is
used. Assessment is also done at each Balance
Sheet date as to whether there is any indication
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset
in prior accounting periods may no longer exist
or may have decreased. Basis the assessment a
reversal of an impairment loss for an asset
other than goodwill is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

STOCK IN TRADE / INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value, Cost is computed on a
weighted average basis. Cost of raw materials
and stores and spares includes cost of purchase
and wother costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition. The aforesaid items are valued at net
realisable value if the finished products in which
they are to be incorporated are expected to be
sold at a loss. Cost of finished goods include all
costs of purchases, conversion costs and other
costs incurmed in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. The net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are cash, balances
with kank and short-term (thres months or less
from the date of placement), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue in respect of sale of goods is
recognized when risk and reward of ownership
are transferred. The sale are accounted net of
goods and service tax. Further goods returned
or rejected are accounted in the wyear of
return/rejection.

TAXES ON INCOME

Income tax expense comprises current and
deferred income tax. Income tax expense is
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recognized in net profit in the Statement of
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity, in
which <case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for
current and prior periods is recognized at the
amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheset
date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for all temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements except when the deferred
income tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at
the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are
expected to apply to taxable income in the
yvears in which those temporary differences are
expacted to be recovered or settled. The effect
of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax
assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
expense in the period that includes the
enactment or the substantive enactment date.
A deferred income tax asset is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses
can be utilized. The company offsets current tax
assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a
legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provisions involving substantial degree of
estimation in measurement are recognized
when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events, and it is probable that there will be
an outflow of resources. Contingent liability is a
possible obligation arising from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
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control of the entity or a present obligation that
arises from past events but is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
reguired to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability. Contingent assets are
neither recognized nor disclesed in the finandal
statements.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including safaries
and performance Incentives, are charged to
statement of profit and loss on  an
undiscounted, accrual basis during the period of
employment,

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes
such as employees’ state insurance, employees’
provident fund, employee pension scheme etc.
are charged as an expense based on the
amount of contribution required to be made as
and when services are rendered by the
employees, Company's provident fund
contribution, in respect of certain employees, is
made to a Government administered fund and
charged as an expense to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The above benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as
the Company has no further defined obligations
beyvond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plans

The Company also provides for retirement/post-
retirement benefits in the form of gratuity,
compensated absences (in respect of certain
smployees) and medical benefits (in respect of
certain employees) incduding to the employess
of group companies. For defined benefit plans,
the amount recognised as 'Employes benefit
expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss is
the cost of accrulng employee benefits
promised to employees over the yvear and the
costs of individual events such as pastffuture
service benefit changes and settlements {such
events are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of
net interest expense calculated by applving the
liability discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset is charged or credited to
‘Finance costs’ in the Statement of Profit and
Less, Any differences between the expected
interest income on plan assets and the return
actually achieved, and any changes in the
liabilities over the year due to changes in

actuarial assumptions or experience
adjustments within the plans, are recocgnised
immediately in "Other comprehensive income’
and subsegquently not reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The defined
benefit plan surplus or deficit on the Balance
Sheet date comprises fair value of plan assets
less the present value of the defined benefit
liabilities using a discount rate by reference to
market yields on Government bonds at the end
of the reporting period. All defined benefit plans
cbligations are determined based on valuations,
as at the Balance Sheet date, made by
independent actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The classification of the
Company's net chbligation into current and non-
current is as per the actuarial valuation report.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits, in the nature of voluntary
retirement benefits or termination benefits
arising from restructuring, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates:

fa) when the Company can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; or

(b} when the Company recconises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of Ind
AS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and involves ths
payment of termination benefits.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their presant value

Remeasurements of Net Defined Benefit
Plans: Differences between the interest income
on plan assets and the return actually achieved,
and any changes in the liabilities over the year
due to changes in actuarial assumptions or
experience adjustments within the plans, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
are adjusted to retained earnings.

m. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets are recognised when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial Assets

All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acguisition of the financial asset. Purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
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assets within a time frame established by requlation
or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Subsequent Measurement:

Subseguent measurement is  determined with
reference to the classification of therespective
financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristic of thefinancial assets, the company
classifies financial assets as subsequently measured
atamertized cost, fair wvalue through other

comprehensive income or fair value throughprofit
and loss.

Ei ial Asset ied at tised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
is held within a business modelwhose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows and thecontractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
thatare solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding

Financial Assets at fair value through other

Comprehensive Income (FYOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held
within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates tocash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
uut'_c,tarsdmg

A Fnanﬂal asset whtch is not claﬁsrﬁed in any of the
above categories are measured at FVTPL Debt
instruments included within the FVTOCI category
are measured at fair wvalue with all changes
reccgnized in profit and loss. However currently the
company does not have any financial instrument in
this category.

Equity Investment

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are
measured at fair value except unguoted equity
investments which are stated at cost. Equity
instruments which areheld for trading are classified
as at FVTPL. For other equity instruments, the
company decides to classify the same either as at
FVTOCI or FYTPL. The company makes such
election on an instrument by instruments basis. The
Classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.
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If the company decides to classify an eguity
instrument as at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on
the instrument, excuding dividends are recognized
in other comprehensive income. There is no
recyding of the amount from other comprehansive
income to profit and loss even on sale of
investment. However, the company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair wvalus with all
changes recognized in the profit or loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recoanises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to ancther entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognizesits retained interest in the
assets anmd an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
ascet, the Company continues to recognise the
fimancial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

Ei ial Liabiliti
Financial liabilities are classified, at Initial
recognition, as finandal liabilities at fairvalue

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and

pavables as appropriate. Allfinancial liabilities are

recognised initially at fair valus and, in the case of

lmans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs,

= Borrowings: After initial recognition,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequentty measurad at fair value.

= Financial Guarantee Contracts Financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Company are
those contracts that reguire a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee., Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment
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regquirements of IndAS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.
+« De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabllities are removed from the
balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired,
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized the Statement of Profit and Loss as
other gains/{lossesh.

Offsetting Financial Instruments: Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right
tooffset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis; to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

n. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company measures financial assets and
fimancial liability at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or
liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’'s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset inits
highest and best use, The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.

E_rgc.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the finandal statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair wvalue
measurament as a whole:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets orliabilities

- Lewvel 2 - Valuation Technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

- Level 3 - Valuation Technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable. For assets
and liabilities that are reccanised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing  categorisation  (bassd on  the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Management analyses the movements in
the values of assets and liabilities which are
reguired to be remeasured or re-assessed as
per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest waluation by
agreeing the information in the wvaluation
computation and other relevant documents,

0. EARNING PER SHARE

CURRENT PREVIOUS
Weighted avErage 2044.40 2044.40 |
number of chares at
the end of the vear, |
|_Profit for the year | (10935.41) |  1990.03
Basic and Diluted EPS {5.35) 0.97

Basic eamings per share is computed by
dividing the net profit/ net loss for the peried
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares cutstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of eguity shares
outstanding during the pericd and for all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such
as bonus shares, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares that have changed the
number of egquity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change In resources. For the
purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per
share, the net profit for the period attributable
to eguity shareholders and the weighted
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average number of shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

p. The Company has not received any intimation
from its vendors regarding their status under
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures,
if any, reguired under the said Act have not
been made.

g. Comparative financial information (i.e. the
amounts and other disclesures for the previous
year presented above as  corresponding
figures), is included as an integral part of the
current year's Financial Statements and is to be
read in relation to the amounts and other
disclosures relating to the current year. The
previcus year's figures have been reworked,
regrouped, rearrangsd and reclassified
wherever considered necessary to facilitate
comparison and better presentation of the
financial statements as per financial reporting
framewaork.

r. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

Financial Risk Factors

The Company's financial risk management is an
integral part of how to plan and execute its
business strategies. The Company’s overall risk
management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company.

The Company's business activities are exposed to a
variety of financial risks, namely liguidity risk,
market risk, credit risk and commodity risk. The
Company’s senior management has the overall
responsibility for establishing and governing the
Company's risk management framework. The
Company has constituted a Risk Management
Committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management
policies, The Company’s risk management policies
are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Company, to set and monitor
appropriate risk limits and controls, perodically
review the changes in market conditions and reflect
the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks
and mitigating actions are also placed before the
Audit Committee of the Company.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in ‘market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Company's

H.[ Annual Repart 2020-21

SVHEAS o

income or the wvalue of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company has financial liabilities which are at
fixed interest rates and is therefore not exposed to
the risks associated with the effects of fluctuation in
interest rates.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates, As the company does not deal in forex
transacticn, there is not foreign risk.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk represents the potential loss that the
Company would incur if counterparties fail to
perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations
to the Company. The Company limits its credit risk
by carrving out ftransactions. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position. There is no risk in
terms of Bank Balances, since the counterparty is a
reputable bank with high guality extermal credit
ratings.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Cormnpany's appreach to managing liguidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation, The Company
manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of the financial assets and liabilities,

5. Foreign Currencies :

Foreign currency transactions are translated infto
the functional currency using exchange rates at the
date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses from settlement of these transactions are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabifities are translated into functional currency at
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date,
the gain or less arising from such translations are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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VIKAS WSP LIMITED

Statament of changes inequity Tor the year ended March 31, 2021

1) Equity share capital {INR in lacs)
Amounts
Balance a5 at April 1, 2018 2,044.40
Changes in equity share capital during the year [refer note 9 (iii)] -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,044.40
Changes in aguity share capital during the yvear [refer note 3 (iii)] =
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,044.40
I} Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2021 INR Ir Locs
Particulars Reserves and surplus Tokal eguity
Retainad earnings | Capital reserves |Securities pr!mlum| Gengral reserve
Feseree

As at April 1, 2020 50,809.95 1oL 36,424.22 25,126.75 1,12 45264
Profity[Loss] for the year (10,535.41) . [10,535.41))
Transactions with ownears in their capacity 2s owners

Praczeds from lssue of equity shares - - -
Other comprahensive incoma . - - - .
Total comprehensive income 38,5374.54 101,72 3642422 25,126,795 1,01,527.73 |
As at March 31, 2021 38,874.54 10L.72 36,424.22 25.126.75 1,01,527.3
For the year ended 31 March, 2020 INR in Lees

Particufars Reserves and surplus Total equity
Retained earnings | Capital reserves |Securities premium| General reserve
FRSRTYE

As at April 1, 2018 48,513.92 i) By g 36,424.22 25,126.75 11047261 |
Profit for the year 1,990.03 - - 1,990.03 |
Transactions with owners In their capaclty as owners

Proceeds from lssue of eguity shares [refer note 9 (ii)]
{ther comprehensive incoma - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 50,809.95 oL 3642422 15,126.75 112 452.64 |
As at March 31, 2020 50,8049.55 10L72 342422 25,126.75 1,12 46264 |
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Notes of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

H_rgst

INR in Lacs
As al As al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non current asset:
Financial assets
Other financial assets (security deposits) 26540 20608
265.40 266.08
Other non-current assets
Capital advances 20.43 2023
Service tax deposited under protaest 509.95 509.95
Advances other than capital advances:
Advance to suppliers® B6T2.08 B,673.24
Advance recoverable in cash or kind 240.96 240,96
Claim recelvable {refer note 32) 27 B00.00 27.800.00
35,243.42 35,244.58
A jncludes dues from related parties (refer note 34)
Current assets:
Inventories
(Al lower of cost ond net realisable velue)
Raw materials 3,182.04 641792
Finished poods: -
- In stores 140.81 7441
< I transit ; -
Packing matsrial 53.47 61.75
Stores and spares 226.89 549.09
3,603.20 7,203.17
Fefer note 33{aiul) for details of inventaries under pledge as security for loans tzken fram the bank,
Fimancial assets
i) Trade receivabless
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Debts recoverable 57.520.69 559,643.58
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Cebts recoverable 917.21 917.21
Less: Provisions for doubtful debts {917.21) -
57,520.69 60,560.79
# includes dues from related parties (refer note 34)
ii) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
in current accounts .64 16,43
Cash on hand 24.03 29495
BB.6T 106.18
fii} Bank balances other than [il) above
Unciaimed dividend account (refer note 14) 3743 7792
37.48 77.92

lp
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Motes of the finzncial statements for the year ended March 51, 2031
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Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
@ Other current assets
Advances other than capital advances:
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance to suppliers 2.37 40.98
Advance recaverable in cash or kind 31861 543.19
Advance tax-and tax deducted at source 2,51 2.43
VAT & G5T credlt receivable 216.02 18779
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances 1o suppliers 150.00 150.00
Less; Provisions for doubtful advances (150,00 {150.00]
Total other current assets 539.51 774.39
3 Equity share capital As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Authorised Share Capital
750,000,000 {previous year 750,000,000 | equity shares of Re.1 sach 7,500.00 7,500.00
7,500.00 7.500.00
hsued, subscribed and Paid up capital
204,439 600 {previous year 204,439,6500) equity shares of Re.1 each, fully pald up) 2,044 40 2,044,420
2,044.40 2,044.40
O Micwnsnts fnpquiky shase: caplial Number of shares Equity share
{in lacs) capital {par value)
[Rs. in lacs)
As at Apnl 1, 2018 1.944.40 1,844.40
Add: fssue of equity shares dunng the year Under ES0P-2017 [refer note i) below] 100,00 100,00
Balance as at March 31, 2019 2,044.40 2,044,340
Az at dpnl 1, 2015 2,044,480 2,044.40
As at March 31, 2020 2,084,490 2,0434.40
As at April 1, 20220 2,044.40 2,044.,40
As at March 31, 2021 2,044.40 2,044,480

{1} Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

{iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company #

Thee Company has one closs of equity shares having a por valee of fe. 1 per share, Each holder of equity shares 15 entitled toone vote per share, The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject ta the appraval of the sharehelders i the ensuing Annunl General Meeting, except in case of Interm divcend,

In the evant of liguidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to recaive the remaining assets of the Company #ftar distribution of all
praferential amounts: The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

# As per the records of the company, Including register of members

immediately preceding the reporting date.

E.i Annual Report 2020-21

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Mumber of shares Mumber of shares {in
{in lakhs) % holding fakhs) % holding
B O Aggarwal 169.77 8.30% 16977 8.30%
Bimiz Devi Jindzl 127.75 6.25% 127 6.25%
Hanuman Prasad Goyal - 0.00% 170.00 B33
bAunnt Dewi Gayzl 170.00 832% 170.00 B.32%

{iw] The Company has not issued/allotted any class of shares as fully pald up pursuant to contract|s) without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus
shares during the pefiod of five yesrimmediatoly preceding the reporting date. Further, no shares of sy class were bought back during the pariod of five year

QEI_E




HI:%H%

Mores of the financial statemeants for the year ended March 31, 2021

INR in Lacs

10  Other equity As a3t Asat
March 31, 2021 harch 31, 2020
Retalned earnlngs A9,874.55 56,800.93
Capital reserve 101.72 101.72
Securities premium resende 36,424 22 l64d4.22
General reserve 2513675 25,126.76
Total reserves and surplus 1,01,527.25 1,12,4562.63

al Retalmed Earnings: This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remaasurement af defined banefit
obligations, This Resarve can be utiiized in accardance with the provisions af the Companies Act, 2013,

b}  Capital Reserve: this Reserve represents grants of capital natura.

¢} Securities Fremium Account: this Reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be wtilized in accordance with the provision
of the Companies Act, 2013,

d}  General Reserve: this Reserve is created by an appropriation from one component of equity (generally retained eamings) to another, not being
an item of Other Comprehenzive Income. The same can be utilized by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013,

Mon-Current Liabilities
11 Provisions As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for defined benefit obligations ;
Frovision far gratulty {refer to note 31) 367.74 TBE.31
367.74 788.31
12 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax labllities
Difference in written down value of fised assels 1,5989.47 2,920.60
Deferred tax assets
Provislon for gratuity {84.14) [270.73)
Provision for doubtful loan and advances {34.32) (50.07)
Bizallowances under sectlon 43b of Income tax Act, 1861 {1,793.09) [204.78)
Minimum alternate tax credit entitiement (99.55) {2,3299.21)
(21.62) (604.19)
13a) Movement in deferred tax balances Opening as at Recognised in profit Closing as at

April 1, 2020 and loss March 31, 2021
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in written down value of fixed assets 2,920,60 1931.13) 1,989.47
Deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity (270.73) 186,59 (54.14)
Provision for doubtful loan and advances {50.07} 15.75 134.32]
Disallowantces under saction 43b of Income tax Act, 1961 [804.78) {988.31) {1,793.09)
(1,125.58) {785.97) {1,811.55)
1,795.02 {1,717.09) 77.93
Minimurm alternate tax credit entitfement {2,299.21) 2,209 66 {99.55)
(2,399.21) 2,299.66 (99.55)
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Notes of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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Movement in deferred tax balances Cpening as at Recognised in profit Closing as at
April 1, 2019 and loss March 31, 2020
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in written down value of lined assets 3.564.53 {B44.23) 2,920.60
Deferred tax assets
Praviston far gratulty {208.39} {B2.34) (270.73)
Provision for doubtful loan and advances (52.41) 234 (50.07)
Disallowances under section 43b of Income tax Act, 1961 {858.25} 53.47 {204, 78}
(1,118.05) {6.53) {1,125.58)
2,445.78 [650.76] 1,795.02
Minimum alternate tax credit antitlement {2,299.21) {2.399.21)
{2,399.21) - (2.399.21)
Current Habilities As at As at
o . March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
13 Fimancial liabifities
i} Borrowings [refer to note 33)
Secured:
from banks
Export packing eredit 7,295.x1 890247
Fareign documentary bills purchased 2,429.05 324881
Unsecured loans
from director 913.63 913.63
10,637.89 13,064.91
it} Trade and other payakles
Trade payables
- to-micro, small and medium enterprises (refer to note 28)
- to others 4.949.08 72798
4,949.08 7.727.98
ili} Other Financial Liabilities
Salary and bonus payable 1,842.34 2,036.27
Interest acorued on borrowings [refer note 33) 7,442.43 197514
Other payables G,486.51 5,429.27
15,871.26 10,440.68
14 Other current liabilities
Book over draft L 3.72
Unclaimed dividend 36.86 T7.26
Share application money (money refundable j# 850.00 B50.00
Statutory dues (including interest thereon) 19.379.19 19,247.90
20,266.05 20,178.88
#includes dues from related partles [refer note 34)
15{a)  Provisions
Provisian for employee benefits:
- Provision for gratuity (refer to note 31) 10.33 2275
10.33 22.75
15{a) Current tax Habilities
Provision for incame tax
- lneame Tax payable 2,800.88 2,770.16
2,800.88 2,770.16
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INR in Lacs
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations
Lale of products 2216133 75, 762.81
Other operating revenue -
Total revenue 22,161.33 75,762,681
Other income and other galns/{losses)
a) Other income
Interest income from financial assets -
Total other income . .
{b} Dther gains
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and
equlprment -
Foreign pxchange gain 0.08
Total other gains/{losses) - 0,08
Cost of material consumed
Raw materlal consumed
Dpening stock 541792 8,021,858
Add: purchases 20,307.15 G4,631.098
26, 725.07 73,553,866
Less: Closing stock 3,182.04 b417.92
Cost of raw material consumed* 23,543.03 57,135,94
Packing material consumed
Opening stock 61,75 62,14
Add: purchases 12,04 31,03
73.80 9313
Less: closing stock 53,47 51,75
Cost of packing material consumed 20.33 3138
Total cost of material consumd 23,563.36 67, 167,32
Details of raw material consumed
Guar 20,092,08 63,251.52
Guar split ® 345095 3,276.04
Other - 7.98
23,543.03 67,135,494

*Duwring the Tinanclal year under conslideration, raw materials (Guar cplith to the extent of 46647 Quintals amounting bo Rs, 305537 lacs has been

destrayed by the management being obsolet2 and not being fit for usage and consumptian

Changes in inventories of finished goods
Opening balance

“Fintshed goods 74,41 529,31
Total opening bakance 271441 529.31
Closing balance

-Finished goods 14081 27441
Total closing balance 140.81 27441
Change in lnventary of finished goods 133.60 254,40

Encise duty on sale of goods
Excize duty

H_fg-ﬂ
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INR in Lacs
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
21 Employes benefits expanse
Salaries and ather allowances 64,17 212815
Contribution to provident and other funds B1.8%3 145.11
Staff welfare expenses 3.E3 4,60
Total employee benefit expense 840.88 2,277.86
22 Finance costs
Interest on financial labilities 3,101.22 41627
Finance costs expenses in profit or loss 3,101.22 A416.27

Interest to the tune of Rs. 1435.91 lavs for the financial year 2019-20 provided as expense during the year as the same was not provided duting the Fy
2029-20. The non provisioning of Interest during FY 2019-20 was due to zpplication made by the company for one time settlerment with the bankers
for their sutstanding dees which had been classified as NPA.

23 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciztion on property, plant and equipmeant

[refer note 3(aj) 343625 343376
Amartisation of Intanglhle assets

[refer note 3{c]] 1.03 1,68
Total depraciation and amortization expanses 3,437.28 3,435.45

24 Other expenses

Cansumption of stores and spores 32454 40,36
Repairs and mainienance

- achlnery 0.51 0,16
- Bullding 037 1,89
Pawier and fuel 172.28 162.66
Rates, feps and taxes 16.10 1167
Insurance 1173 161
Travelling and conveyance 6.62 33.42
Provision for Doubtful Bebte 917.21 -
Other manufacturing expenses 161 177
Bank charges 2.18 1212
Port handling charges 237 3.20
Legal and professional (refer Mote 24 a) 378.95 24.79
Forergn exchange fluctuation loss 0.72 a.a7
Laboratary and testing charges L3 030
Freight 19.97 2872
Mizcellzneous expenses [refer note 24 b) 5444 71.29
Other expenses 1,915.00 401.33

243 Logal and professional expenses include payment to auditor

As auditor®;

Audit fee 200 5.00
Limited review . .28
Tax audil - 0.75

.00 B.00

* euclusive of GST

246 (I} During the cutrent year This Company has no llability towards the Carporate Social responsitdlity expendituie.
{ii} Rz, Mil {Provicus Year Re, NIL) spent towards varsows schemes of Corporate Soclal responsibility as prescribed under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013
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INR in Lacs
For the year anded For the year anded
March 31, 20321 March 31, 2020
Income tax {credit)/espense
Current tax
« Current tax for the year (Minlmum sltemate tax) - 470.49
- Adjustmznts for current tak of prioe periods
- Adjustments for provisions of Lax for prior perlods .7 -
Total currant tax Expense 30,72 470.4%
Deferrod tax
- (Decrease) fincrease in deferred tax liabilities {1,717.09) |B50.75)
- Minirmum alterrate tax eredit entitlernent 2,299,866 -
Total deferred tan expense/[banefit) SE2.57 |B50.75)
613.29 |180.26)

25(a) Effective tax reconciliation
Impact of tax rate change: During FY 2019-20, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 1158A4 of the Income-tax Act,

1961 as introduced by the Taxalion Laws {Amendment] Crdinance, 20319.

Accordingly, the Company re-measured Its Net Deferred Tax Assets basis the rate prescribed In the sald section, The full impact of this change was

recognised in the standalone statement of Profit and Loss in the current financial year.

Profit/(Loss) before tax {10,839,11) 1,920.38
Deefarred tax credit in profit and loss as per effective tax rate [2479.99) 57611
fmpact of Loss of tax benefit due 1o permanent disallowancoes of certain items urder income tax . .
Impact of Deferred tax not recognised on unabsorbed losses and depreciation/amertlsation on 247999 1576.11)
prudence basks
Impact of benefit from previously unrecognized deferned taves an disallvwances vnder section 438 of
Income Tax Act, 1961 in view af unabsorbed losses an prudence basis
Impact of other miscellaneous Hems 306771 |280.27)
Expected tax after adjustments 306771 H-_Hllz?]
As per statement of profit and loss
Tax (credit)/charged to profit and loss
- Current tax [Minimum Alternate Tax ['WAT)] 30.72 47048
- MAT credit entallment -
Deferred tax 58257 1650.75)
613.29 [{1B0.26)
Othar camprehensive income
fterms that will pot Be reclossified to prafit or foss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 516498 |110.61)
Income tax relating to these items (34, lﬁ:l
516.98 [144.79)
Earnings/[Loss) per equity share
[Basic and diluted***)
Earnmgs/iLoss} attributable to eguity shareholders' (for basic and diluted caming) [10,935.41) 1,990.03
Total number of shares outstanding as at the year end 2,044 40 2,044,480
Welghted average number of sguity shares for besic and diluted eamings per share
(face value-of Re.1 per shang) 204440 2,044,490
[5.35) 0.97

***0wing to net loss attributable to equity shareholders, there is no dilutive effect of potential equity sharoe
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Motes of the financial statements for the year endad March 21, 2021
28  Detail of dues to micro and small enterprises defined under the MSMED Act 2006

Dizclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2008”7 is based on the information
avallable with the Company regarding the status of registration of such wendors under the said Act, as per the intimation recemved from them on
reguests made by the Company. There are no cverdue Principal amounts/interest payvable amounts {or delayed payments to such vendors at the
Balance Sheot date. There ate no delays in payment made to such suppliars during the year of for any earlier years and accordingly, there is no
intergst pakd or outstanding intarest in this regard in respect of payments made durng the year or brought forward from previoos years,

29  Contingent liabilities INR in Lacs

As at Asat

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debis March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

a} income Tax matters, disputed and under appezal 5004 .61 503533

b) 5ervice Tax matters, disputed and under appeal 138781 135781

) Settlament claim matters, disputed and under appeal {refer note 33} 27,800.00 -

d) Corporate Guarantes (refer Note 34) 4.050.00 A,050.00
38,292.42 1047314

The sbove amounts includes demand from tax authorities for varisus matters. The Compaty has preferred appeals on these matters and the zama
are pending with appellate suthorities, The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations ang procecdings and has adegquately provided for where
provisions are requined. Considering the facts of the all abowe matters, no further provision is consldered necessary by managamant

30 Capltal and other commbitments
Capital commitments
istimated amaunt of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital sccount and nat provided for (net of advances] 13 R 11,95 lacs {previous year Rs.
11.95 lacs)

31 Post-employment benefit plans
i) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, Gratuity ks payable ta all eligible empleyees of the Company on retirement or separation fram the

Company after completion of five years of sérvice with the company, For the year For the year
ended ended
a, Changes in defined benefit obligation March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Liability at the beginning of the year 81105 595641
interest cost 55.15 4563
Current senvice cost 2883 5841
Actuarial [Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption - 0.40
Actuarial [Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Finandal Assumplion 0,65 10326
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience Adjustrment |517.63) 695
Liability at the end of the year A78.06 811.06
b. Arovpt recogn'sed 'rthe balsrce sheest
Lizbility at the beglnning of the year B11.05 596,41
Expenses for the year {233.40) 214,64
Liability at the end of the year 378.06 811.05
¢. Expenseas recognised in the statement of Profit and Lozs
Current sefvice cosl 28.83 58.41
Interest cost 55.15 5,63
Wet actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year {516.98] 11061
Net benefit expenses (433,00 214,54
d. Planned benefit obligation bifurcation at the end of the year
Current liability (amaunt due with in one year) 10.33 22.75
Mon-current liability (amount due over one vear) 367.73 78831
I7E.06 B11.06
e, The principal assumptions used in determining the post employment defined benefit obligation
are as ghven below:
[Hscount rate B. 70N G.20%
Salary escalation rate (paa;) B0 B.00%
Expected average remaining working [ife of employees (years) 21.31 2241

The discount rate is based on the market yields aof Sovernment bonds as at the balancs sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation. The salary
e=calation rate takes into account Inflation, seniority, prometion and other relevant factars,
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As at As at
Demographic assumption March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1. Retirement Age 60 years B0 years
3 Mortality race 1AL [2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
3, Leaving sedvice ; Withdrawal rate Withdrawal rate
Upto 30 years % 3%
31-44 years 2% 2
Above 44 years 1% 1%
Sensitivity Analyzls of the defined benefit obligation.
1] impact of the change in discount rate
Present Valug of Dbligation a1 the end of the perlad
1) Impact due to Increase of 0,50% {30.80) (B2.97)
2) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 3452 T0.06
162 o9
i} impact of the change in salary increase
Present Yalue of Obligation ot the end of the perod
1) Irmpract due to ncrease of 0.50 % 33.95 G245
21 Impact dueto decrease of 0.50 % 30,71 (G2, 16}
3.24 6,23
. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Year
Apr 2020 Mar 2021 - 22.75
Apr 2021- Mar 2022 1033 17 67
Apr 2022- Mar 2023 B.51 1358
Apr 2023- Mar 2024 T.41 16,64
Apr 2024-Mar 2025 1.39 25,60
Apr 2025-Mar 2026 41 16.08
Apr 2026-Mar 2027 775 E93.73
Apr 2027 onwards 127.55 -
Description of Risk Exposures:

Iy Waluations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time, As such company is exposed to vardous riskz as
ool low -
3} Salary increases- Actual salery increases will increase the Plan's lability. Increases in saiary Increase rate assumption in future valuations will also
Inereasethe llability.
by Investment Risk - If Plan Is funded then assets liabliities mismatch & zctual investmant return on assets iower than the discount rate asumed at
thelast valuation date can impact the lability,
£} DiscountRate: Reduction in discount mtein subsequent valuations can increasa the plan's liahility.
d) Mortality & disabillivy —Actual deaths & disability cazes proving lower or highar than assumed in the valuation can impact theHabllities.,
e} Withcrawsls - Actugl withdrawals proving kigher or lowertham assumed withdrawals and changs af withdrawal rates at subseguent valuations
canimpact Plan‘s fiability,
i} During the year the Company has recorded an expense of Rs 67.08 lscs (previous year Re: 109.07 lace) towards provident fund, a
defined centribution plan.
I} Lesves are encashed st the end ofthe yearand not carrled forwarded.,
vl Postemployment benefits are determined by an Independent Actuary an overall basis and hence have not heen separataly provided for
key management personnel.

Settlement Claim

The Company had filed & legal suit in US Court of [3w against My's Economy Folymers 2nd Chemicats, USA {*Economy Polymers') in the manth of
Movember 2013 for non perfermance of purchase orders [ssued by Economy Palymers, During the year 2014-15, the Company had ertered into a
settlement for USD BO Million, Eguivalent As.494 82 62 |acs with Economy Polymers against their daim for compensation, The Company had
recognized Rs.474 46.08 [acs in the Statement profit and loss and balance of Rs. 2036.54 |acs has been adjustad against putstanding recaivable for
seed distribution from Economy Polymers as per the settlerment agreement. In turn, to discharge to the Company's liabliity towards non-
performance of agreements for purchase of material for Econormy Polymers, the Company had settled with suppliers for Rs, 285, 00,00 lacs. The same
had beesn recagnized In the statamant of profit and loss during the financlal yvesr 2614-15 onaczrual basis.

Hoewever, subseguent to payment of USD 40 million |Equivaient IMR 24565.80 lacs, In July 2015 Economy Polymers stopped paying tha balance
instalmeants due as per the afareszid settlement agreement . Consequently, due to non recovary of the said duas to the extent of USE 40 mitlion
approximataly 10K 26,028.00 tacs, the Company has filed a court casa agalnst Economy Polymers In United States District court for the Southarn
District of Texas Howston Division, for recavery of balance USD 40 millicn (Equivalent INR 26028.00 lacs) which was dismizsed by court resultantly,
the company went into appeal in higharcourt . Considering the ongoing litigation the receivable haz been classified under other non-current assets.
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Motes of the financial swetements for the year ended March 31, 2021

#(a]{l}] Tha Compsny was svailing various axport credit fadlitias amaounting Rs. 9,724,265 lacs (previous year Rs. 12,151 38 lacs) for Export from
Punjab Mational Bank, Union Bank of india and Bank of India under consortism arrangamants; The aforementionad credit facilities of tha
Company were classifled as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) for Punjab Matlonal Bank on 30,/11/2019, Unlon Bank of Indla on 31,/03/2016
and Bank of india on 31/12/2016. Howsaverduring the currentyear the Company hasnot repaid any ioans 1o the aforesaid banks,

33 (a}{f}] Thea rate of interest on the warking capital loans from banks have been considered as 15.50% p.a. 25 par the tarms of sanction. Tha
unsecured loans of the Cormpany are interest frée and repavabla within 12 morths, upon demand by thelendar

33a (iii) Mature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
7021 | 2020

Sanctioned limited

HES R DRI Mature of secy

Punjab INRin | INRin Ll

National Bank lacs lacs

Packing 3,000 3,000 sacured by:

credit limit &) pari passu charge with consortium members on inventery including stores and

spares net relating to plant & machinery, bills receivable and book debts and all
other movables, both prasent and future and

b} charge created pari passu basis on eguitable mortgage of Industnal Land and
Bullding of the Company at SP-241 and B-86/87 Udyoa Vikar, RIICO Industrial
Area, Sriganganagar and hypothecation of plant & machinery instalied gt SP-
241 and B-86/87 Udyag Vihar, RIICO Industrial Arga, Sriganganagar.

¢ additional securities by way of equitable moertgage of Industrial land and bullding

Forelgn 3,000 3,000 of the Company situated at F-B8/89, Udyog Wihar RIICO IndustHal Area,
documantary Sriganganagarand SP-82, 1GC kKhara, Bikanar

bill purchase/ d) addithanal securlties by way of equitable rnortgage of Industrial plot no. E-255 to
discaunting 257 aof the Company at Agro Food Park, RIICD, Sriganganagar and Industrial
facility Piot at F 92, Industrial Area, Udyog Vihar, Phase - I, Hanumangarh Road,

Srlganganagar
&' Mrs, Bimia Devilindal, Mr. 8.D. Agarwal and Mrs. Kamini Jindal, directors of the
Campany have also provided their persaonal guarantess.

Bank of India
Packing 4,000 4,000 sacured by;
credit limit a) pari passu charge with cosartium membears on Inventory Incuding stores and

spares not relating to plant & machinery, Bills receivable and book debts and all
other movables, both presentand future and

; b) mortgage of Immoveable assets of the Company at SP-241 and B-86/87 Udyog
i 2,000 2,000 Vihar, RIICO Industrial Area, Sriganganagar and hypothecation of plant &

gﬁf”mi“h:w machinery installed at SP-241 and B-86,87 Udyog Vihar, RIICO Industrial Arez,
di P G e Sriganganagar.
F;fi:lﬁin ng c) Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal, Mr. B.D. Agarvial and Mrs. Kamnini Jindal, directors of the

Company have alzo provided thelr personal guarantees,

* However, maximum limit is capped at Rs.5,100 lacs

Uniton Bank of India

Packrng S,DDD S,HUD secured hf:

credit limit a) pari passu charge with consartium members on inventory including stores and
spares not relating to plant & machinery, bills receivable and bock debts and all
othar mavables, bath present and future and rmortgage of immaoveable assets of

. the Company at SP-241 and B-86/87 Udyog Vihar RIICO Industrial Area

zumlgn - 5,000 5,000 Sriganganagarand ' '

b'if””‘“g ry b) hypethecation of plant & machinery instslled at 5P-241 and B-86/87 Udyag

d! p""“:ﬁ ase/ Vihar, RIICO Industrial Area, Sriganganagar.

éﬁﬁ'ﬂn ng ¢) The company has provided additional security by way of mortgege of land and

bullding of the Company situated at G-1-237, F-30 and B-B5, Udyog Wihar,
RIICO Industrial Area, Sriganganagar.

d} Mrs. Bimla Devi Jindal, Mr. B.D. Agarvial and Mrs. Kamini Jindal, directorsof the
Company havea also provided thelr parsanal guarantees,

22,000 22,000

* The limits are not available to the Company subsequent to classification of its accounts as NPA
Further, Dlrectors of the Company have pledged his 169,336,900 (provious year 169,36,500) shares of the Company with
Puniab Mational Bank, leader bank for leans taken by the Company.
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33 (b) Detail of defaulis existing as at the Balance sheet date March 31, 2021

MName of the bank Principal Interest Period of default
Reinlacs Rz in facs
Punjab National Bank
Packing eredit limit 460,31 Miore than 360 days
Imterest on above 22.87 More than 360 days
35.67 Less than 360 days
460.31 58.54
Bank of India
Packing eredit limit
Fareign documentary bill &,623.57 MMore than 360 days
purchase/discountng facility
Interest on abowve 2,638,72 More than 360 days
719,20 Less than 360 days
4,623.97 3,357.91
Union Bank of India
Packing credit lim(t 221093 - fMore than 260 days
Forelgn documentary bill 243505 - fare than 360 days
purchase/discounting facility
Imterast on-abowve 3.647.10 More than 360 days
Ti6.72 Less than 360 days
4,639.98 4,363.81
Grand total A+B+C 9,724.26 7,780.26
Getail of defaults existing as at Balance sheet date (March 31, 2020)
MName of the bank Principal Interest Period of default
Rz in lacs Az in lacs
Punjab Mational Bank
Packing credit fimit 460,31 Less than 180 days
Intarest on above 4776 Less than 180 days
460,31 47.76
Bank of India
Packing credit limit
Foreign documentary bill 4,656,30 More than 360 days
purchase/discounting facility
Interest an above 191952 hare than 360 days
4,656.30 1,919.52
Union Bank of India
Packing credit [imit 3,948.15 - More than 260 days
Forelgn documeantary bill 324881 Maore than 360 days
purchase/dizcounting facllity
Interest on above 53164 hMore than 360 days
7,197.00 531.64
Grand total A+B4C 12,313.61 2,498.92
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Motes of the financisl statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2021
34 Related party disclosures

Transactions with related parties are summarised below :
Tranzactions which have taken place during the year

1) Mame of Key management personnel and their relatives (KMP)
Mrs. Kamini lindal - Director
Mrs. Bimla Dewvi lindal - Director
Mr. Gunjan Kumar Karn - Company Secratary
Mr. Privanka Bindra - Chiel Finance Officer
2} Entities controlied by KMPs
Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited
Vikas Dall and General Mills {Partnership firm)
Vikas Chemi Gums India Limited
Vepan Colloids Umited

Tramsactions with related parties

{a) salesfpurchases of goods and services
The fellowing are the sales and purchase during the reporting period in

Entities controlfed by key monogement personne!

Sales:
- Wikas Chemi Gums (India} Limited
-Vikas Dall and General Wil

Purchase of raw material

- Wikas Chemi Gums [India} Limited
Wikas Proppant & Granite Limited
- Wikas Dall and General Mill

{b) Short term employee benefits #
- M. B D Agarwal
- Mrs. Bimla Devi lindal
- Mrs. Kamini Jindal
= Mir. Gunjan Kumar Karm
= Mir. Umesh Bansal

(¢} Interest free unsecured loans from director
= Mrs. Bimla Bevl lindal

{d} Trade receivahles
- Vikas Proppant & Granite Limited
= Vikas Chemi Gums India Ltd
- Vepgan Callpids LimitedS
-Wikas Dall and General Mill

Total receivables from related parties

E.i Annual Report 2020-21

retation to transactions with related parties:

For the year ended

IMR In Lacs

For the year ended March 31,

March 31, 2021 2020
12,660,98 22,743.03

6,848.01 12,447.68
19,508.99 35,190,71
8449 64 45,838,318

546.61

5,284.76 6,753.40
14,281.01 52,591.78

= 36.00

- 5.00

= 12.00

12,60 1185

12.00 12.00
24.60 80.85

51363 91363

8,312.78 §,856.26

4,626.07 1,134.28

. 817.21

8,595.41 7,118.64

21,534.27 18,026.39
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(=) Advances to suppliers March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
» Vikas Cham| Gums India Lid 4 205.66 4,205.66
-Wlkas Proppant & Granite Limited 2.250.00 2,250.00
5,455.66 5,455.66
(£} Payables
Mr. B0, A I linciudi h icati
r. B.0 Agarwal (including Share application 4,312.50 43858
miony)
- Mrs: Bimla Devi Jindal [includes unsecured loan) 92885 978.85
- Mrs. Kaminj lindai 42.09 42.09
Mr. Gumgan Kumar Karn 1653 9.26
- Wr. Umesh Bansal 7509 20.98
5,325.07 5,290.01

Shares pledged by certaln directors for loan taken by the Company
- B D Agarwal # 1,69,36,900 1,68,36,900

* The aforesald director of the Company have pledged his 169,33, 600shares of the Company with Punjab National Bank, leader bank forloan  taken by
the Company. #Pcst employment benefits zre determined by an Independent Actuary on overzll basis and hence have not been separately provided for
kaymanzgement parsonnel.

& The recoverable amount is doubful as the company s upder llquidation,

The company has provided carporate gusrantee to the tune of Rs, 4050.00 lacs to the related parties as defined under Saction 185 and Section 186
of tha act;

Terms and conditions of transactions with Related Parties :- All Related Party Transactions enterad during the vear were In ordinary course of the
business and on arm's length basis. Dutstanding balances at the year-#nd are unsecured and settlement acours In cash, There have been no guarantees
provided or recaived for any related party recevabies or payables ather thzn thosa reported above. Forthe year ended 315t March, 2021, the Compary
has not recarded any impairment of recelvailes relating to emounts owed by retated parties {2012-20: 0 crore}, This assessment s undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market [n which the related party operates.

35, Operating leases
a, The Company has not taken any assets on an aperating lease basts,
b. Lease peyments recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year is Rs. NIl (Previous year Rs. NII)
36 Segmentinformation
#sperind As 108, Operating segments are reportad in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chisf cperating decision maker,
Accordingly, sepmiental reporting is performed on tha basiz of geopraphical lacation of customer which s alse usad by the chief operating decision
miaker of the company for allacation of availzole rescurces and future prospects,
Geographical segrments at the Company primarily comprize customers located in US, Europe, india {Domestic] and others. Income In relation to
sepmients |5 categorized bazed on items that are individually identified to thase segments. It is not practical to identify the expenses, fixed asseis vsed
in the Company's business or ligbilities contracted, to any of the reportable segments, a5 the expenses, assets and lisbalitizs are used interchangeably
between sepments. Accordingly, no disclosure relating to total segment results, toral segment assets and liabilities have been made. There are no

assets/lizbilities outside India specifictoany segment. INF iy Laes
Year ended | ¥Year ended March
Particulars March 31, 2020 31, 2018
Segment Revenue
Unfted States of America 738 126524
Europe 13187 |-
Dromeastic 75,3B7.09 78,553,380
Unallpuatad - (Exporns) 2636 TEBE
Totzl 75,762.81 70,987.89
Add :
Unallocable ravenue 0& 301650
Less
Finance cost 415.27 210761
Depreciation and amortization 3,435.45 3.454.45
Unafiocable expenditure 59,900.79 72,815.81
Loss bafore tax 1,920.39 4,636.60
Tax (credit)/'expenses [214.44) {55.58)
Other comprehansive incama = -
Profit after tax 2,134.83 A,692.18
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37(a) The Company has 2 customers that individually aceount for more than 10% of segmaent sates n domestic market.
37(b) The Campany sells only Guar based products and that 2 the anly product line of the Company.

3% Financial instruments by category

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars FVTPL Amortised cost® FYTPL Amortised cost®
Flnancial assats
Other financial assets (non current) - 265,40 - 266.08
Trade receivables * 57,520.69 - B0,560.7%
Cash and cash equivalents - &6.67 . 105.18
Bank balznce othar than above - 37.48 - 77.92
Other financlal assets (current) - 539.51 - 77438
Total financlal assets - 58449.75 - 61,785.34
Financial liabilities
Barrowings fEUI'FEﬂtJ - 10,637.E5 : 1306491
Trade payables E 4,949.08 . 7,727.898
Other financlal llabilities - 15,871.26 . 10,440.68
Total financial labilities - 31,458,24 - 31,733.57

For instrumnents measured at amartised costs; carying value reprazents best astimate of the fair value.
Derivative instruments and unhedgad foreign currency exposure

Thie Cormpany s no outstanding derivativa IRstrameant ot the year end. The amount of foreign currency sxposure that are not hedged by derlvative
Irstruments or atheryiss ere a3 under -

March 21, 2021 March 31,2021  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020

Foreign Currency Amount in INR Foreign Currency Amount In INR
Trade recelvables in Toreign currency {Im faes) [Im facs) [In lzesh {tn iaes)
Forsign currency |LISD) 120 B3.44
Clalm recefvable in forelan currency
Ferelgn currency (WSO} 400,00 27,B00.00 400.00 27,300.00
A00.00 27 800.00 401,20 27.8583.44

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's orincipal financial liabilities other than derivatives, comprises trade and other payables, security deposits, employea liabilities. The
Company's orincipal financlal assets include trade and other receivables, inventories and cash and short-tarm deposits/ loan that derive directy from its
operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, cradit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's managereant cversees the management of thess risks. The
Company's senior managemant is supported by 3 Risk Management Compliance Board that advises an finandial risks and the appropriste financdal risk
governance framework for the Company. The financlal risk commities provides assurance to the Company's management that the Company’s financial
risk activitioz are governed by appfopfiate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company's policies end risk objectives, The management reviews and agrees polices for meneging each of these risks, which are summarised belaw,

I. Marketrisk
Foreign currency sengitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In skchange rates,
Fareign currency risk sensitivity is the impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities. The following tables dernonstrate the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in USD with 2l other variables held constant.

Change In USD Effect on profit
rate befors tas Rs. In lacs
For balance outstanding as at March 31, 2021 +5% 1,390.00
-5% (1,350,00)
For balance outstanding as at March 31, 2020 +5% 1350.00
-G8 11.350.00)
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Il Credit risk

A. Tradereceivables

faresee any credit risk.

Notes of the financial statemints for the year endad March 31,2021

B. Financlal instruments and cash deposits
Credit rlsk from balancas with banks and firancial institutlons is manapged by the Company’s treasury degartment in accordanse with the

Cradit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrurnent or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company Is exposed to credit risk from |15 operating activities primarlly trade receivables.
Themaximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by the carrying value as at the Balance Shest date.

Animpairment analysis s performed at each reporting date on an Individueal ba=iz for major clients, The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in the financial statements, The Company does not hald
collateral as security, The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trede raceivebles as low, 85 its customers are located
in several jurisdictions and operate in fargely indepandent markets. Cwing to the paymeant records of customers the Company does not

Company's policy.
Wiarch 31, 2021 INR in Lacs
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount
cafrying amouint losses
Other financial aszats (non current) 26540 28540
Trade receivablas 57.520.69 - 57.520.69
Cash and cash equivalants 8667 2567
Bank balance ather than above 37ag - 37.48
Cther financlal assets (current) 53351 538.51
March 31, 2020 INR in Lacs
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount
carrying amount losses
Cther fimancial assets (non current) 266.08 - 266,08
Trade receivables 60,560.73 - 60,560.79
Cash and cash equivalents 106.18 - 10618
Bank balance other than above f7.92 - TR
Cther financial assets (cumrent) 774.38 - 77448

i1l Liquidity risk

the financial staternents.
349, Investor Education and Protection Fund

Unelalmed Dividend account.
40. Long term and Dervative Contracts

Liquidity risly is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligations associated with its financial lizhllities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financizl azset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure a3 far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to maet it iabilltes when they are due. All eorrent the financial llizbilities of the Company are current in nature as disclosed in

There is delay In transfering the smount to Imvestar Eduaction and Awsreness Fund to the tune of Rs. 36.84 lacz which |5 kept separately under

The Companyis not dealing in derivatives and has no foreseaable losses on zccount of dervatives or other long term contracts, which requires
provision under applicable laws or accounting standards an long-term cantracts and derivative contracts,

For AK Chadda & Co,
Chartered Accountaznis
ICAl Firm Registration Mo, DOBG683IN

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Vikas WSP Limited
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